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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEEE

For the year ended 31 December

Operating results (RMB’'000) #EX&(AR%¥ T )

Revenue
Gross profit
Profit for the year

Profitability (%)
Gross profit margin
Net profit margin
Return on equity
Return on total assets

Liquidity

Current ratio (time)

Quick ratio (time)

Trade receivables turnover
(days)

Trade payables turnover
(days)

Capital adequacy
Gearing ratio (%)
Net debt to equity ratio

Per share data

Earnings per share — basic
(RMB)

Dividend per share (HKD)
— Interim
— Final

BE12A31ALEE
2020 2019 Increase/(Decrease)
—ECE2E el EA/(TE)
%
0 &= 763,808 481,530 282,278 58.6
EH 117,247 74,171 43,076 58.1
F A% F 36,968 20,481 16,487 80.5
2 F £ (%)
EHE 15.4 15.4 — —
) & 4.8 4.3 0.5 11.6
P # [0] 3 11.1 8.5 2.6 30.6
BEEBRE 5.6 45 1.1 24.4
REBES
BN K (%) 1.2 1.4 (0.2) (14.3)
REL X (fF) 1.2 1.4 0.2) (14.3)
FEW AR IE R A X
(XR) 58.1 69.4 (11.3) (16.3)
BOENFERERY
(X) 51.5 57.3 (5.8) (10.1)
EXRRKF
EEBBELE(%) 30.0 25.7 4.3 16.7
SFEEE R X Net cash Net cash
position position N/A N/A
FRERR FREMR i A =
BREE
BREN —ER
(AR®IT) 0.07 0.04 0.03 75.0
BRREGET)
— 5 0.01 0.008 0.002 25.0
— RH 0.012 = 0.012 N/A
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise RAFRF  r BRXEIZEEI THHAE
requires, the following terms and expressions shall have R FAGBE B WM TRE - Z XA H
the meanings set out below. The English translation of fEEH RG] BMNENELERBRZH -
company names in Chinese or another language which

are marked with “*" for identification purposes only.

“Anhui Bund” Anhui Bund Property Management Company Limited* (%2 9N gk ¥ %
EE AR QA a limited liability company established in the PRC on
26 December 2005, which was a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and indirectly owned as to 51% by the Company and as to
49% by Anhui Wan Tou Property Company Limited* (& &6t % & %
BEREE A7), a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level until the Company disposed of its entire interest in December 2020.
Please refer to the Company’'s announcement dated 22 December 2020
for further details.

[ 2 B 5N ] | TRINEMEEBER AT - —HR2005F12 4268 FEF R 8B R
BEERA BRA/ALFEZENMBLRAR  HEARAIRLZBRKRESE
ERECEAA(RRAMBAREEAMEAL) D RIFEEEFI% R
49% - RABR200FNALERALRBINEZ 28R - £—F A
BAHFL2HARRI020F 128288 M2 R E -

“Anhui Pu Bang” Anhui Pu Bang Property Management Company Limited* (% #UH FH ¥
¥ZIE AR AT, a limited liability company established in the PRC on
4 August 2015, the associated company of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 49% by the Company and 51% by an Independent Third

Party

[ &2 08 8] 5 ZROBAMEERBRAR - —ER2015F8A4BEFRB K LB B R
BEERQA RARABELE BAARAIKR—EBBIYE=A5H5lHE%E
HBEA9% K% 51%

“Anhui Pu Jing” Anhui Pu Jing Property Company Limited* (2B HESWEBR LA, a

limited liability company established in the PRC on 10 May 2017, a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and indirectly owned as to 51%
by the Company and as to 49% by Bozhou Yaodu Tourism Development
Company Limited* (=M % &K #23 R G R A 7)), a connected person
of the Company at the subsidiary level

[ BUH =] i ZRBASWEBRAR - —HR2017F5A10BEFREKIHEBERE
ERF REARFRIFEZEMBRAR  AXRARZBMNERLIKEEREA
RAR(ARRIMBRARIEENEZEAL) D AIMEEES1%K49%

“Audit Committee” the audit committee of the Company
[B%EEE | KRR EREES

SEITHREERARAR F82020 3



DEFINITIONS

e

“Bengbu Zhi Xin"

[ 18 B (5

“Board” or “Board of

Directors”

[Exg

“BVI"
(RERE XS]

"CG Code”

[ % &R <RI

mR

“"Company”

1

“connected person’

[FEALI]

“controlling

Shareholder(s)”

42 B B3R )

“Director(s)”

EE

"GFA"
[ 2Emta ]

“Group”
(A& E |

Bengbu Zhi Xin Property Company Limited* (BT EEWEBR A
Al), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 13 September
2004 and a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and is indirectly
owned as to 58% by the Company, as to 12% by an Independent Third
Party and as to 30% by Bengbu Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (¥R & &
[ & R 2 7)), a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level
HIETEGEWEARLQA > —HN2004FIABREHREXRINAR
BERA RARBINFEL2EMBLAT  AARAIREEARS»S  —
EEBIUFE=ZFHEAN%LHEEREEEAFR AR (RARAMNBARER
HMEEALT)HEA30%

the board of Directors of the Company
KABIEEE

the British Virgin Islands
RERZES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules

T AR RIB &% 1 70 P 8 4 X E DR T A

Riverine China Holdings Limited &I EIZE B R A7), an exempted
company incorporated under the laws of Cayman Islands with limited
liability on 27 July 2016
HAIPBEERERAR - R2016F7A27BREHSHSZEFMK
WERRBREEAA

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LR BRI ATE T % & 8 OR &

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the context
of the Company, means a group of controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Partner Summit, Vital Kingdom, Mr. Xiao, Source Forth,
Mr. Fu, Pine Fortune and Mr. Chen

BEALFTRAMETZANREE  BRARQRAME  BARAMERRK
REE Rem ZEH HEE R B4 EHEREE

the director(s) of the Company
RARIWES

gross floor area

EEEME

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZAN/NETD S RN = N
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“"Hefei Zheng Wen”

[&REE X 18

“HK$"” Or “HK dollars” or
"HK cents”

[ 7T sk Bl ] B
“"Hong Kong” or "HK"”
(&5 B
“"Hong Xin”

35k iR 1 B

“Independent Third

Party(ies)”
(B E=7] |
"Leading Way"”
(37 B ¥
“Listing”
Wi =}

DEFINITIONS
Bx

Hefei Zheng Wen Bund Property Management Company Limited* (& /BT
BXNEEEIEBRAT), a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 14 April 2004, a joint venture company of the Company and
indirectly owned as to 50% by the Company and 50% by an Independent
Third Party

ERETHRXINEMEERBERLDA - —EEFENR2004F47148 K
YHERBEERA  RARAIALLERA AXRAREEAF0%
KBE—B2BLFE=-HBEEEBS0%

Hong Kong dollars and cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BILEEN BEANEEEY

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEARKMBEE BRI THR

Hong Xin Environmental Group Company Limited* (GAMRIREEE AR
72A]) , a limited liability company established in the PRC on 5 July 2000,
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is indirectly owned
as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by Independent Third Parties
SARIRBEE AR AR - M2000F7ASBEFRBEK L ABREE AR -
RRRIKERENBRR  BARRAIMEEEESI%  BYUE=7%F
49%

an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are independent
and not connected with (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) any
directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any of their
respective associates and not otherwise a connected person of the
Company

BINRARAE EMBRARIZEMNESE  HRTERABXRFERR(CE
ERFTHRANIHEZEZEMNBEA(EER FMARA BRI &
BE(EER EMARAMERRRZHAEATHEASRA]

Leading Way Holdings Limited (37 & & & B fR 2 &), a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong on 20 May 2016 with limited liability, which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino Ease, and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

VEEEBRRAGF - —MBR2016F5HA208 RIBF B AR TMA L
ERAR BRPLRHN2EMBRARIRARRNEELZENB AR

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BRI ERERZ T EIR BT

ET R ER AR AT ) 2020 5



DEFINITIONS

e

“Listing Rules”
[ =78 A
“Model Code”

4

SHiet

58]

“Mr. Chen”
[ PR 5 & |

“Mr. Fu”

[fE 4]

“Mr. Xiao"

[H k4]

“Mr. Xiao YQ"

(BT & EE]

“Nanjing Songzhu”

[ R R ARAT )

“Nantong Pu Sheng’

[ 78 58 F A%

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BMXMEsLETRAY - BTRER - M AREMIT N EK

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRAME TR LT ETAEFETESFRINFETA

Mr. Chen Yao (FR ¥#£), the Controlling Shareholder
PR¥ESCAE  ERBE

Mr. Fu Qichang ({8 & &), the Controlling Shareholder, vice-chairman of
the Board and an executive Director

BEEXRE BEEER EFSTFERANTES

Mr. Xiao Xingtao (H #%&), the Controlling Shareholder, chairman of the
Board and an executive Director

HEBLE ERERR EZSIFRRATES

Mr. Xiao Yugiao (H ¥ &), an executive Director, chief executive officer,
and the son of Mr. Xiao

BEY&ERE ATESRTREIRELTENE T

Nanjing Songzhu Property Management Company Limited* (& & 2 77 97
¥ EE AR AE]), alimited liability company established in the PRC on 5
July 2012, an associated company of the Company and indirectly owned
as to 44% by the Company and 56% by two Independent Third Parties.
MRMTYMEEEARAR - —HAEPER2012F7A58 s B IZAY
EREFTRAA RARTBELE AARRHEERIM%LARE
BYE=FHEE6%

Nantong Pu Sheng Intelligent Property Company Limited* (7 & i &% &
BEME B BRAR]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
18 October 2017, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
indirectly owned as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by Nantong
Sheng He Property Management Limited* (R E YW EEEFR A R])
MBRESREMEERAR  —RN2017F10R18AEFBEK YN A
REMLRR ARFINEZTEMBRR ARG REERNYEE
BEAR AR DR EEEAS1%Kk49%

6 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



“Ningbo Plaza”

(BRI ES]

“Partner Summit”

“Period”

[ )

“Pine Fortune”

['= 18]

“PRC"” or “China”

[ B )

“Pujiang Holding”

R IT 4% A% |

"

“Pujiang Property

I E]

DEFINITIONS
Bx

Ningbo Plaza Property Management Company Limited* (3 & i1 ¥ T & 35
YI¥E IR B R AA]), alimited liability company established in the PRC on
20 January 1995, an associated company of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 49% by the Company and 51% by an Independent Third
Party

BERTHTESMEEREARAF  —BEHRBEMN1995F1520H K
VHEREBERE RARFMERCE  AARAREHEFL9% KX H
—EBUE=FEEEEN%

Partner Summit Holdings Limited (& = 1% #% A PR 2 A1), a company incorporated
under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability, which is owned as
to 87% by Vital Kingdom, 10% by Source Forth and 3% by Pine Fortune and is
one of the Controlling Shareholders

EmERAERRAR - —FER2016F6H16ARBRBR LA S AFET
MRZHBERAR  HEH  REREHEIANEFT%  10% K3% -
BREBRBRRZ—

the year ended 31 December 2020
B E2020F12A318 L& E

Pine Fortune Global Limited (& #2838 ¥k & R 2 1), a company incorporated
under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Chen and is one of the Controlling Shareholders
EHRXARLDA > —HR2016F6A16ARBERABR X BESEET
MRZOBRRR  NHERRRZ-BRE+E2E%HA

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purposes of this annual
report, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

PEARAME  ERAFETE  FTREEE RPRAE

Shanghai Pujiang Holding Company Limited* (/&8 T2 H R A 7)),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 18 June 2007, which
was beneficially owned as to 87% by Mr. Xiao, 10% by Mr. Fu and 3%
by Mr. Chen

EFBBEIERERAT - —BR2007F6RA18BEFBEK LN ERE
ERA DRBAEEE BEENRELEERERST% - 10%M3% K
&

Shanghai Pujiang Property Company Limited* (/88T ¥ B R A7),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 2 December 2002
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FEBIMERRRAR S —EEFRBEN2002F12A2BKIBNERE
ERF  BRARABNEEEZEHB AR

EITHREERARAR F82020 7



DEFINITIONS

e

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
AR

“SFO”

[ 5 & & 501
“Shanghai Aidepu”

[EBYNEE]

B

“Shanghai Bund”

[ £/ 5NE ]

“Shanghai Bund Green”

[ 7 5w 1L ]

“Shanghai Bund Ke Pu”

[/ NERHR

“Shanghai Hong Ji”

[ g =]

“Shanghai Jie Gu”

[EBNTA]

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE  fEONEEEHS

Securities and Future ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
(BHERBEGEOYEBENESTIE)  KTEEE] - MRk Kb
N T

Shanghai Aidepu Trading Company Limited* (F /8 ¥ B8 E M Z AR A A,
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 23 November 2006
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FEXSERERR AR —BN2006F11A23REH B K 76 F R
BEERA BRARAEEZENREBE AT

Shanghai Bund Property Company Limited* (L /& 9MN# ¥ ¥ AR 2 7)), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 8 April 1996 and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EBINENEERDR > —HAERBERI996F4AHK LN AR E
RA REARFBHNHELZENE QA

Shanghai Bund Green Construction Company Limited* (_t & M 4% 1k
ERAMR A, a limited liability company established in the PRC on 10
August 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EBINEZAEERBRAR - —HEFRBER2004F8A10HK LM E
REEQR RARGINEEZEWBE AR

Shanghai Bund Ke Pu Engineering Management Company Limited* (&
BINHERENE TIEEE AR AA]), a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 30 November 2004, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and indirectly owned as to 97% by the Company and as to 3%
by an Independent Third Party
FENERBIRERBBERAA - —MR2004F 1M A0 EHRE KL
MAEREBEERR  RARAMEEIFZENMBARAR  AXRAHERE
TN KB —EBILE=TTFHE3%

Shanghai Hong Ji Property Management Company Limited* (/&4 & %)
¥EIEEMRAA]), alimited liability company established in the PRC on
18 March 2016 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FBUEMEERBERAR  —HAEFRBENR2016F3R18EK LN A
REAQR RARGINEEZEWE AR

Shanghai Jie Gu Technology Company Limited* (L& AR AR QA A,
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 3 May 2016 and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FEMTARBRERAA - —HEFBER2016F5A3BXN LN EREE
NAE BRARTNEEEZEN B AT

8 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



“Shanghai Jiu Yi”

[EBAME] 15

“Shanghai Puyun”

(L8Rl B

“Shanghai Qiang Sheng”

[EB®RAE] 18

“Shanghai Rui Zheng”

[ 8% IE ] Ec

“Shanghai Xin Shi Bei”

[ mit] 15

“Shanghai Xin Di”

[ 78RR 8 15

DEFINITIONS
Bx

Shanghai Jiu Yi Property Management Company Limited* (/8 A 1&%)
¥ EEBEMRAA), alimited liability company established in the PRC on 8
April 1996, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by an Independent
Third Party

FBACYEERBERRAR  —HAEPBEMNI996F4A8E K LB R
BEERAF REARAIMNIELZEMBLRA > BARRAIHEREAFN% R —
BB E=FEBI%

Shanghai Puyun Environmental Technology Company Limited* (- & & 3
IRIEBHE B R AR]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
29 November 2017, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
wholly owned by Shanghai Jiu Yi
FEFEBRRHEARAA - —BEFTBENR2017F11A29BK I E
REMERR BRARBIFZEMBAR BHEBAREEHEE

Shanghai Qiang Sheng Property Company Limited* ( E /R4 E AR
72 \]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 17 December
1992, an associated company of the Company and indirectly owned as to
30% by the Company and as to 70% by an Independent Third Party
LEBEMERAERLDR  —HEPBEMINFLZATTEXRLNERE
ETAF REARAIBMERLE  AARGBMEREBIONEB—BBEILE
= EEERT0%

Shanghai Pujiang Rui Zheng Property Company Limited* (_E /88T 5 IE
Y% F R A 7A]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 8
January 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EEBIRENEBRAR  —HETEN2004F1ASEKRIHER
BEERR BRARTNEEZELZENEB AT

Shanghai Xin Shi Bei Enterprise Management Service Co., Ltd* (/& %1
Mt EEERB AR AF]), a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 6 July 2005, an associated company of the Company and
indirectly owned as to 27.5% by the Company and 52.75% and 19.75%
by two Independent Third Parties

FEFHIEGCEXEEERAA - —HAEPBER2005F7H6R KN A
REFERAF  RARABELE HARAREEB27.5% K B M @E
B E = ¥EH52.75% M19.75%

Shanghai Dong Fang Xin Di Commercial Service Company Limited* (&
RAMRABAEERAER A, a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 10 December 2015, an associated company of the Company
and indirectly owned as to 45% by the Company and as to 55% by an
Independent Third Party
EERIMEBMBERBERRA - —HEPBER2015F12H108 KL
WEREELQA  ARARAFBELE  AAXARAREEFIS% LA —
BELE=FEEEBSSY

EITHREERARAR F82020 9



DEFINITIONS
e

“Share(s)”
[ B 15 18

“Share Option Scheme”

[BE AR AT 2] i1
“Shareholder(S)”

[ A% =R J i1
“Sino Ease”

[ £ | i

“Source Forth”

R R 5
“sq. ft.”
RN |
“sq. m.”
75K ¥

"Stock Exchange” or
“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

XA B [ BB BRI PT 48

“Vital Kingdom”

el 5

" %u

[%]

10

or "Per Cent”

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
AABRAREREEINETHEBER

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 15
November 2017
RRAT2017F 11 A158 B 16 14 5 4% & 8 A 4 =1 3

holder(s) of issued Share(s)
RSN

Sino Ease Global Limited (FZ3REK B[R AF]), a company incorporated
under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability, which is
directly wholly-owned by the Company

FRIRIRER AT - —ER2016F6A16BRBEEBERHESERET
MEKZWBERAGT  RARRNEEZEMBE AR

Source Forth Limited (RBXB R A F]), a company incorporated under
laws of the BVI on 8 June 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Fu and is one of the Controlling Shareholders
EREBERAR  —HR2016F6ASHRBERBREXHSFMKINE
RAR - ThEHEEE2ERG ERERKRRZ—

square feet

FHR

square metre

FH K

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EEBMAERIMARDT

Vital Kingdom Investments Limited (2% & B R A7), a company
incorporated under laws of the BVI on 17 May 2016 with limited liability,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Xiao and is one of the Controlling
Shareholders

ZHREBRAR S —ER2016F5 17T RBERBREXBESEET
MARXZBBRLRR  DHEAE2EHF BRERKREZ—

per centum or percentage
A7

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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The Group is a comprehensive provider of urban public
services in the PRC and is mainly engaged in the
provision of both property management services for
high-end non-residential properties and integrated urban
sanitary services in the PRC.

The Group provides a wide range of property
management services and value-added services to a
variety of properties. The properties managed by the
Group can generally be classified into four categories
based on nature and usage, which are comprised of
(i) public properties (including public arenas such as
cultural venues, stadiums, exhibition halls and public
transportation properties such as rail station and airport
etc.); (ii) commercial establishments (including shopping
malls, hotels, commercial and entertainment complexes)
and office buildings; (iii) residential properties; and (iv)
others (including schools, land parcels, industrial areas
and properties under construction).

The integrated urban sanitary services include
road cleaning, refuse classification, collection and
transportation and maintenance of public environmental
sanitary facilities such as public toilets and garbage
containers.

THE GROUP
REH

AEBARTEGAMTREHER  TER
ERTEEmFEEMEREMEEERS
MEEHEBE-BLERERE -

AEERTRERENDEREZEDXER
MG RIBERY AEENEEWE KA
REEMEMAESSOERER - BIOAR
MEBREXLSHR BEEMREESA
TG EARERUEREISEARIBYE)
(IAEERER (BREES  RAERREEAR)
R AKE: (IVEEWE: RivEMLYE(E
RER R ITXRENREEZYE) -

N

WE-RBLEREAMBEBERRERBR
TR FRIBEIA R WA R P B3R A F R
HKRBFRENEE -

SEITHREERARAR F82020 13



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERHE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Introduction to the Report

Riverine China Holdings Limited (“Riverine China”, “the
Company” and “we"” or “us”) is pleased to publish the
fourth Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company (“this Report”), which aims to disclose the
Company’s performance in the past year in relation to
the environment, society and governance, in respond to
the concerns and expectations of stakeholders regarding
the Company’s sustainable development management.

1

Scope of the Report

Unless otherwise specified, the report covers the
Riverine China and its principle subsidiary Shanghai
Pujiang Property Company Limited (“Pujiang Property”),
Hong Xin Environmental Group Co., Ltd. (“Hong Xin")
and other subsidiaries. The specific statistical scope
of environmental data will be described in the “Green
Operation” section.

The report covers the period from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 (the “reporting period”), and part of the
contents may be extended as appropriate.

Basis of Preparation

The Company has prepared this report in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (2016 Edition) (“Guide”) under Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules. This report has complied with all
the “comply or explain” provisions in the Guide and is
based on the four reporting principles of the guidelines:
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency.

Form of Publication

This Report is published in two language versions,
i.e. Traditional Chinese and English. If there is any
inconsistency between the two versions, the Traditional
Chinese version shall prevail. You are welcome to
access this Report in the PDF format from the annual
report published on the Company’s website at
www.riverinepm.com, and SEHK’s HKExnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.
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Source of Data and Reliability Assurance

The data and cases in this report are mainly derived
from the statistical reports and relevant documents of
the Company. This report does not contain any false
information or misleading statement, and the Company
accepts responsibility for the contents of this report as to
its authenticity, accuracy and completeness. This report
was approved by the Board on 30 March 2021 following
the confirmation by the management of the Company
and the environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
Executive Committee.

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

ESG Concepts

As a leading property management company in China,
Riverine China has always adhered to the core values
of "integrity, innovation, dedication, win-win". Riverine
China is committed to promoting and leading the
fulfillment of corporate social responsibilities with
practical actions. At the same time, it establishes a good
relationship with our stakeholders, actively responds
to the expectations and needs of all stakeholders with
efficient and smooth communication mechanisms, and
works together towards sustainable development.

We attach great importance to corporate sustainable
development, plan social responsibility from the aspects
of quality service, benefit creation, scientific and
technological innovation, employee development, safety
supervision, environmental protection and community
public welfare, and adhere to corporate governance
according to law to continuously promote corporate
sustainable development. In addition, we have carried
out a series of social responsibility practices to strengthen
communication with stakeholders and work together to
create corporate value.

RIR - HERERBE
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ESG Governance Structure

The Company is committed to establishing good
corporate governance practices and achieving corporate
sustainable development. The Group has established
internal control, risk assessment and management
systems, and the Board of Directors reviews and
maintains their suitability and effectiveness. In order
to actively respond to ESG-related risks, the Company
integrates ESG risk management into the Company’s
risk assessment and management system. The Board of
Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
ESG risks, to ensure the effectiveness of ESG risk
management and internal control systems.

To reduce the impact of ESG related risks to the
Company’s sustainability, the Company has set up a top-
down ESG governance system, which will be initiated by
the Board of Directors of the Company, review by the
ESG Executive Committee and implemented by the ESG
Working Group to clarify the division of responsibilities
from management to implementation and ensure a better
integration of ESG concepts into the corporate strategic
planning and operational decision making process.

The ESG Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing
and discussing the focus of sustainable development
work, as well as the operation status of the management
system related to ESG, in order to ensure the sustainable
development work is in line with the Company’s current
business development, and to effectively respond to
stakeholders’ expectations and concerns. The Company
will continue to promote ESG management and optimize
the ESG management system in accordance with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange and the actual
situation of the Company, to make ESG management
more systematic and professional.
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Board of Directors =Eg

Main Responsibilities: FERE
Responsible for assessing and determining ESG-related risks
Ensuring that the Company establishes an appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control system
Examining and approving ESG-related policies and reports

ESG Executive Committee
ESGHI{TZES

Main Responsibilities: FEEZE
Responsible for implementing ESG risk management and internal control
B EHITESGRE S B 1R N A AR EL R
Guiding the work of ESG team and reporting to the Board of Directors
EEESG/ETIRY FRERS
Examining and approving the ESG reports and ensuring the accuracy of
performance indicator

EHLESGHRE - R ABUBIZRERE

ESG Working Group ESGI{E/)N

Main Responsibilities: TERE

Responsible for collecting ESG-related data o B EESGHEBZERNWEFRE RS
and preparing reports Ik

Reporting to the Executive Committee TEHAMITEESER - UBARAF]
regularly to help the Company assess and A R EEEESGRR EIE K AEPESIE R
determine whether the ESG risk management HEBBBERAEN

and internal control system is appropriate and

effective
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Communication with Stakeholders
Stakeholders play an important role in promoting
the Company’s sustainable development. We attach
great importance to the opinions of stakeholders and
actively understand the expectations and suggestions
of all parties, with a view to better formulating
the Company’s development strategies and policies
through communication with all stakeholders, to
create environmental and social value in the process of
improving the Company’s performance. We identified
the following six main types of stakeholders who had
decision-making rights or influence over the Company
and a close relationship with us:

Employee

BT

NEMEELEE

NEEB TR ARAAKBERNER
AE - BMSEERNAEETNER &
HBERSTNHERERZRE  HEBBEEZH
HAEETHNER  EFHREARANER
WEE RO ERARRBERNBRES -
BERENHEEE - RMBHIHARFA
BERRESTEN THERMBETIHN
ATRNMEH s A8 B8 5

Shareholder/
Investor

BRR/REE

Riverine China

L E

Community

HE

Supplier

HEE

18  RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Government
and regulatory
authority
BT ERBE
EHE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIR - HERERBE

To understand the expectations and requirements of
stakeholders more clearly, we actively communicate with
stakeholders through various channels to adjust and
improve ESG related measures and respond regularly.
The table below shows the expectations and requests

of stakeholders and their respective communication
methods in the reporting period.

Expectations

Communication

REFBWBEENSABE I NP ERER
BMEEBREZEREBEENEHE T RS
BMEER ABNRERTESGHBER X
MEERE - TRERTAREHASH A
M EEFRKRABNERT A -

Frequency of

Stakeholders and Requests Methods Communication
MEHEER HA S B R R BEAN BERE
Government and e Compliance of operations ¢ Information submission e Monthly
regulatory authority e Safety and environment protection e Conversation with * Yearly
¢ Payment of taxes regulatory authority
¢ Promotion of local economy
BT EE B s ARKE ¢ ERWMX * HE
s ZRRIR s EERBYR s £
o BT
s WEEIMKHE
Shareholder/Investor e Revenue and return e Company announcement e |Irregular
e Business development e General Meeting * Yearly/quarterly
e Compliance of operations e Site visit e lrregular
e ESG governance e Regular report e Yearly/quarterly
RE/REE o U155 Bl ¥R s RAIRE o NiEH
s XBUR c RRAE s FE/EE
« ARKE s EMER o NiEH
* ESGIAIE s THRE s EE/FE
Client (Property owner, ¢ Quality of service and satisfaction e Telephone communication e Irregular
tenant, property of the property owner e Joint meeting e Yearly
user, etc.) e Communication with property e Annual meeting e Yearly
owner/user e Appointed visit e lrregular
e Integration between business and
local community development
e Compliance and legitimacy of
operations
EF(FEX -HFP Y e REmEREXIREE s BHEAER o NiEH
XRRES) c XX HREER s MEEGSR s £
s XBHEEHMHBERMAS s FERE s £
REARKE o EHFD o NiEH

TR BEZERABRAR F3R 2020
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Expectations

Communication

Frequency of

Stakeholders and Requests Methods Communication

MEHEEL HA 28 Bk R BEAR BERAR

Supplier Lawful operation and quality Conference with supplier e Yearly
standards Online survey on opinions e Irregular
Fair and reasonable treatment of Audit and assessment e |rregular
business partners Bidding activities e |rregular
Compliance and legitimacy of
operations
Quality of service and satisfaction
of the property owner

fHER HEBSEZEERMmERE HEBSH s £
EBRHERTEBENGTE HLrERAS o NEH
BERKRES Bz MEt ik o NEH
RERERETREE BRZED o NEH

Employee Employees’ welfare and benefits Employee representative o Yearly
Staff safety and health meeting e |rregular
Legitimate recruitment and use of Company activities e |rregular
workforce Letter and visit e |rregular
Staff training and education Suggestion box
Quiality of service and satisfaction
of the property owner

BT BETRBEEAN BIRRKS « £
BEIREEZS NCINEE ) o NEH
BEAHRATL =& o NiEH
BETBBEHE EEM « NEH
RERERETREE

Community Community environment Community e lrregular
Charity and public welfare communication meeting e Irregular
Community contributions Visit and investigation e |rregular
Compliance of operations Press release/

announcement

R HEERE HEERE o NEH
BELNE EERE o NiEH
R R HER/ AE o NEH
AREE
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Materiality Assessment

Materiality assessment is an important reference for
identifying the risks and opportunities of an enterprise
and formulating business strategies and decisions. To
ensure the full disclosure of ESG issues, the Company
has further improved the evaluation method and
determination process of materiality to respond to the
expectations and requests of different stakeholders on
the Company’s fulfillment of social responsibilities.

The assessment process of the Company’s materiality in
2020 includes the following three steps:

° Review and examination of materiality: we reviewed
and examined the materiality issues identified
in 2019 based on business operations, industry
development trends, ESG related standards and
guidelines and other information, and confirmed of
the importance of ESG issues.

o Identification of potential ESG issues: Based on
the Company’s existing business, ESG reporting
guidelines, and industry ESG management priorities,
we selected potential ESG issues covering five areas,
i.e. environment, employee, products and services,
community, and governance.

o Response to materiality issues: we determined the
disclosure focus of the report content according
to the ranking of importance; analysed the key
concerns of stakeholders and determined the ESG
governance response strategy.

RIR - HERERBE

EEMBEENG
BEZMHEBETERCEERAKREKE X
FIERERBARKNEELRE - BRERE
Eih B BECEESGHBERE A G#E—F
ETEEZUHZETHEAIABATRE  UE
ETAREFMEEEFEARABITHEEREN
HAsB EAER 5k -

20200 EARAIMNBERM R AT HBIERR
AT=EZ5%:

e EEMZBLEMER: GAEKEL
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oI EEE H09FEHANENEES
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e BAEEESGEE: REARARAER
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During the reporting period, after the assessment and HEHA @ L@ LM EEUHZETH LT B
analysis process of the abovementioned materiality B ARG EEERRUTEZHZERN R
issues, the management of the Company confirmed SHAMER EARXBRENKRESEZ )
that the following materiality issues were still applicable AARQARFBETEETIEHIEER X Ma 8 3%
during the reporting period. As the focus of disclosure B A AR B B K E :

in this report, it also provides important basis for the

Company’s continuous improvement of the management

system and sustainable development direction:

Environment Employee Product service Community Governance

R J—r EmR% HE =P

Use of raw materials Employees’ welfare and Protection of users’ Communication with Compliance and

and its impact benefits property, health and property owner/user legitimacy of operations
o BEMEHERRZE o BTHBEER safety o XX FREBR o BEARBE
* Waste treatment and o Staff safety and health o RIBFERAENTE - 2 * Integration between e Lawful operation and
emission reduction s BETREHEZE ke business and local quality standards
o FEEY) IR EURHE e Staff training and * Quality of service and community o HEFSAEERME
* Water resources development satisfaction of the development T
consumption and o BTHIEERE property owner o EISHE MR ¢ Standardized
water preservation e Legitimate recruitment o REMEEEETHEE & management
o KERHFEELIK and use of workforce * Equipment reliability o fEE(ETR
o AEAHRAT o RfGEISEME
S A, E—
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND wEER SRR
REGULATIONS, WIN-WIN COOPERATION
Major Honors FERE

The major honors received by the Company during the RI|EHER  KRAGIESHNETBELEMT:
reporting period are as follows:

o Platinum membership of Building Owners and BEREEEEEEREH S EE(BOMA)

Managers Association (BOMA)

e 2020 Top 100 Property Service Enterprises in terms e 2020F F/BEMYERBLEAERD %
of Comprehensive Strength of Shanghai

e 2020 Integrity Enterprise of Shanghai Property o 20204 F & %) ¥ & B 17 % ¥ (5 & &%
Management Industry *x

e Commendations at the 25the anniversary o FEMYEBBITERE5BAERTE

of Shanghai Property Management Industry ¥ xETHERE
Association — Best Guardian Award
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Compliance Operation

Riverine China has been abiding by the business ethics
standards as well as honesty, legal compliance, integrity
and self-discipline. It strictly complies with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and has formed a top-down policy and operation
atmosphere with the orientation of anti-embezzlement,
anti-corruption and anti-fraud. We require employees
to have a high level of awareness of anti-corruption
practices and are committed to maintaining openness
and accountability within the scope of the Company’s
operations.

The Company is strictly complied with the “Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and other relevant laws and regulations.
The Company has set up the Discipline Inspection
and Supervision Department to manage the related
work of fighting corruption and promoting integrity.
The Company has formulated the Measures for the
Assessment of Integrity and Self-discipline (B2 B8 &
FEIZZZ %)) in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations, in which the prohibited items are listed in
detail and corresponding penalties are set up. We require
the Company’s management personnel to sign the
“Letter of Commitment on Personal Integrity and Self-
discipline” ({8l A R R B E &% E)) every year, and
have designed and released “zero tolerance” posters and
opened an audit and supervision hotline to strengthen
the construction of corporate culture of anti-corruption
and integrity. In addition, we have integrity and self-
discipline clauses in our contracts with suppliers and
contractors, requiring them to abide by the laws and be
strictly disciplined in their work.

RIR - HERERBE

EREYE
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Besides, in daily operation, we strictly require our
employees to be honest in performing official duties
and not to abuse power for personal interests. Once a
violation is found, the employee can report it through
the hotline or email address set up by the Company. The
Company will conduct an investigation on the reported
case. In the event of a criminal case, it will be submitted
to the judicial body after the approval by the board of
directors; otherwise, the case will be jointly handled
by relevant functions and we will seriously investigate
and rectify illegal conducts. The Company keeps highly
confidential the identity of the reporter and the reported
issues, and strictly limits the scope of knowledge of the
investigation.

During the reporting period, the Company received no
corruption proceedings against the Company or any of
its employees.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are one of the important stakeholders in the
Company’s sustainable development process, and also a
guarantee of our quality services. Supplier management
is an important part of the Company’s business
development. The Company takes fair and equitable
cooperation attitude and implements a standardized
operation model of integrated planning, bidding and
procurement to standardize bidding and business
cooperation process; and actively communicates with
suppliers to establish good cooperative relations. We
also attach importance to the environmental and social
performance of suppliers, prevent and combat unfair
competition, prevent potential corruption and fraud in
the supply chain, enhance communication with suppliers,
and maintain fair and just cooperation.

The Company has formulated policies including the
“Regulations on the Evaluation and Management of
Material Procurement Suppliers”, which clearly regulates
the procurement process of the supply chain, admittance
criterion, evaluation and hierarchical management
of suppliers, etc. Meanwhile, it effectively manages
potential risks in the supply chain, and implements
supplier screening and performance evaluation system, to
improve service quality. During the reporting period, the
Company had a total of 1,027 suppliers.
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Number of major suppliers by geographical region in
2020

RIR - HERERBE

20208 EmtmE oM EER-ERHAE

Number of

suppliers

HEBHE

Shanghai EBm
Beijing il
Tianjin RAEM
Anhui Province ZRE
Hubei Province Wik &
Henan Province A
Jiangsu Province and Zhejiang Province T 3 &
Fujian Province w|EA

Service Procurement

The Company has formulated the “Review Procedures
for Service Procurement Contract ({(R% KB A FFE
R FE))", the "Management Measures on the Evaluation
of Party for Material Procurement ()& & B 5 ¥ &
EIE L))" and the “Management Measures on the
Evaluation of Party for Labor and Technical Procurement
(B BT BEBE T EEE RN E))", to strictly
standardize the selection criteria and audit process of
new suppliers. We adopt standardized management for
bidding process, and strive to be fair and equitable. In
the implementation of procurement, we give priority to
the material, labor, service and technical suppliers with
the qualifications of ISO 9001 (Quality Management
Systems), ISO 14001 (Environmental Management System)
and OHSAS18001 (Occupational Health and Safety
Management System), and adopt different selection
criteria according to the type of industry in which a
supplier operates and policies that meet environmental
and social risk management requirements.

861
30
60
10
53

PR % £ 8
AARIHETCRBEBESRTERE) W
ERBEHRIITEERAT) (B%  HWHE
BEHEFITEBREEETENE  BRA
EHEENONBESTEREZRE - AQ
AYHBEEREEMRIZEENLER  SIkA
F -REBROEBLEECES |SO9001(T£
BEEEEZE)ISO 14001REESIEE X)M
OHSAS18001(%%ﬁ)ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁm%)m;j
WE 8% BRELREMERER  WIRE
HEBITELEHETIRANEREERT S
RREEMERABREREERMHBE
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To ensure the quality of service procurement, we
continuously optimize the procurement process and
strengthen the management for supplier. Procurement
personnel searches for business related suppliers through
professional market surveys, trade fairs, etc. We carry
out supplier review work in accordance with the quality,
delivery date, price, labor standards, occupational health
and safety and professional ethics, etc. of suppliers, and
have prepared the “List of Qualified Service Providers”
((EHBBR M 5 & E)) and listed qualified suppliers
in the supplier database based on review results. We
divide the qualified suppliers into three levels, i.e. Level
A, Level B and Level C, according to evaluation results
from the highest to the lowest, and have developed the
corresponding procedures for drawing up and examining
and approving contracts, respectively. In addition, we
regularly eliminate unqualified suppliers, establish a long-
term and stable cooperative relationship with excellent
suppliers, and promote efficient management process.

RERRBRBEE  RASEELYRR
A THIEHREREE KBABRA
BEXTLRAE EmRBESFHESHA
EBHEEnEER - ARG HERNEE -
RAER - B BIEE BERERANZ
ENBRERERE  AR|EEHAETE
MECERRBET R TARBIES
R BERHEBIIAHRERBEES - &
MHERHERRBRILAERLESIES S
A-B C=fARHR ELDRHETHENE
R E  BHRE < 1o RAISEHH KR
TREBXMHEER MEEFHEFREYL
EHRENAFRAE MBESXEERE -

Supplier Leve

IR AR

Level A Level B

AR B &

Level C
C#&

¢ To further develop partnership e To maintain the existing ¢ To gradually reduce cooperation

with the suppliers. When
entering a new labour services
contract, management office
should preferentially select the
suppliers from those with
Level A.

- PEREZHERNS
ERAR - BB ERE# 5
BREE RER A BEtER
hEsERE

partnership, namely renewal
of the contract when it is
expired.

s RERBNGIERE A5

A2 BRaE =2
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with the supplier. In principle,
contract will not be renewed
when it is expired.

o BHRAEZHITNAE

RAI L& RIZIE N BERR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Service Supervision

We continue to track and monitor the service level
of suppliers to ensure that the service quality meets
the Company’s requirements. We conduct unified
management of suppliers, and the relevant departments
shall inspect suppliers on a sampling basis from time to
time, supervise the work quality of suppliers according
to the contract requirements, and report the “Monthly
Return of Project Management” every month to ensure
service quality of the service suppliers meets the terms
agreed with the Company. In addition, we also regularly
organize supplier exchange meetings, mutual visits and
relevant trainings, including experience sharing, safety
education, environmental compliance and emergency
response, etc., to commend outstanding suppliers.
Supplier management department arranges interviews
with the suppliers with unsatisfactory performance
to analyse the reasons, formulate and supervise the
implementation of the rectification plan so as to help the
suppliers to enhance the overall management standard.

STRICT MANAGEMENT, BEST SERVICE
Quality Management

In order to allow owners to enjoy high-quality and
considerate property management services, Riverine
China has established a quality management system since
2004, striving to continuously improve the Company’s
service quality. Over the years, the Company has
continued to optimize our service quality control system
and has obtained the authentication of the National
Standard and International Quality Management System
GB/T 19001-2016/1SO 9001:2015 “Quality Management

System Requirements”.
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RIR - HERERHE

The Company strictly abides by the “Network Security
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({# % A K L
Bl 48 4% 22 2 %) )", The “Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((FR#EA R LB EEE))", the
“Property Management Regulations (¥ % & I & 1) )"
and other laws and regulations related to the health
and safety of services provided, advertising, labelling
and privacy as well as remedies, and has formulated
and implemented the “Management Manual”, the
“Management Manual on Service Outsourcing”, the
"Property Inspection Manual” and guidelines on
implementation of specific issues such as the “Risk
Control and Management Procedures” and the “Non-
conformity Management Procedures” aiming to provide
standards of management, review and evaluation
in the course of operations. The Company regularly
reviews, rationalizes and revises internal regulatory
documents, and continuously updates the quality control
specifications in many aspects including risk control,
surveillance and measurement control, internal audit
and error correction. The Company formulated detailed
operation instructions according to the characteristics
of the project, and strengthens the concept of quality
training through employee training to promote the
improvement of quality management level continuously.

In terms of owner information and privacy protection
management, the Company strictly complies with the
relevant regulations of the “Cybersecurity Law of the
People’s Republic of China” on information security and
privacy protection, established the customer information
management system specification and detailed rules
for the implementation, clarified the department
responsibilities of information system safe operation, and
standardized the specific work of information system
such as permission management, emergency handling,
computer room management, data backup and recovery,
ensuring the safe and stable operation of the information
system. We carry out special training for employees who
need to access customer information, and require them
to comply with responsibilities of public safety. Before
seeking approval from the property owners, any trespass
of visitors will be prohibited. We never expose the family
and financial situation, address, phone number and other
customer information of the property owners to anyone,
strictly protecting customer privacy security.
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As for advertising, the Company strictly abides by
the laws and regulations including the “Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China” as well as
the code of practice in the industry. The legitimacy,
authenticity, scientificity and accuracy of the publicly
released information are strictly evaluated. Publication
of deceptive and misleading marketing information and
materials is strictly prohibited to effectively protect the
legitimate rights and interests of customers.

Customer Communication and Service

Riverine China is committed to providing customers
with a good service experience and maintains good
relationships with customers in a variety of ways. On the
basis of strictly implementing industry standards, the
Company has revised a series of guidance documents
to improve customer experience, such as the “Standard
on Repair Services” ((RIERTFIZAE)) and the “Basic
Manners for Conferencing Services” ((&@ ARG E K
7 %)), so as to improve service quality and satisfy
customer’s service experience.

The Company proactively communicates with customers,
keeps in touch with customers during and after the
service, to actively obtain feedback from customers
(including owners) including their evaluations and
opinions on us, and makes timely adjustments to
the service content based on customer opinions.
Our channels for communication with customers are
comprised of two parts: communication between senior
leaders of the property companies and representatives
of the property owners; and communication between
management office of the property projects and
responsible parties of the property owners. The former
is made mainly taking into account of overall services,
while the latter is made mainly taking into account
of the improvement of service quantity and service
standard of the projects. Through combination of
these two communication channels, we adopt different
communication frequency and communication methods
respectively, so as to effectively optimize communication
with customers.
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The table below shows the main channels through which U TERT AR R BREHRNERFEBD
the Company communicates with its customers during F EZRE:
the reporting period:

Frequency of

Type of meeting Agenda of meeting meeting Participants
eRER ERIERR E N BEHEgh
Annual meeting Annual work summary for ~ Once a year, generally in Leaders of the property
property services, work December every year owners, companies,
plan for next year project managers
FEEER MERBERTERLE: BF R —REBF FXHEZ YWERA
TEEIEsTE 112 A HE - EEKRE
Monthly meeting Monthly work report for Once a month, generally Department leaders of
property services, work convene at the end of ~ property owners, project
plan for next month the month managers, each division
manager of the projects
FEg& MERBAEIEER: BSA—K —MREAR XEXFHEMESE 1HAE
TAI{EGE A RIE - HARGRERE
Special meeting Special or sudden events Convene irregularly Department leaders of
occurred in property property owners, project
services are the core issues managers, each division
of the meeting manager of the projects
HEER ) 2 BR 75 7 R TR ok 2R B NE H 4 XX HErIRE  1HA
EHREEZD g3 BB RIGRKRE
Satisfaction survey Service quality satisfaction; Once a quarter, Department leaders of
service improvement generally convene at the property owners, project
recommendations end of the quarter managers, each division
manager of the projects
WEERS RBEERERE RERE BFTE—XK —REFT EXEXHIHMEZ - EA
THE & EFS IR BB IGRRERE
Immediate Various types of events Anytime and anywhere  Relevant personnel
communication occurred in property
services
EERE MERBTNEREM A] B8 By A B HEIIEAE
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In order to comprehensively understand the customer
satisfaction evaluation of the Company’s service quality
and understand the demands, advice and suggestions
of the targets of service, we have been continuously
carrying out the third-party customer satisfaction
evaluation work. During the reporting period, we
entrusted the Customer Evaluation Center-An Affiliate
of SAQ to carry out an evaluation work. Based on the
GT/T19038:2009 “Guidelines for Customer Satisfaction
Evaluation Model and Method” General Model, we
have applied SMART criteria (which stands for specific,
measurable, attainable, relevant and timely) to collect
opinions on the specific indicators of the Company’s
service reception, equipment and facilities management,
security services, cleaning services and maintenance
services through three methods, which are home-visit,
on-site intercepts, and on-site inspections.

A total of 89 assessment points were covered and 660
valid samples were collected. The results show that the
customer satisfaction on Riverine China Holdings Limited
in 2020 was 93.50 points, which was higher than the
93.08 points for 2019. Through the evaluation results,
we fully understand the customer’s satisfaction with
service quality and what needs to be improved, and
collect feedback and suggestions from interviewees to
continuously improve service quality.

Customer feedback is the driving force for our continuous
improvement. We handle customers’ complaints and
opinions according to related provisions of the “Measures
for the Management of Complaints (3% &F & 2 $ %) )"
and the “Procedures for Control of Non-conformity ({
AIEHIFRFF))" in a timely manner. In particular, the
“Measures for the Management of Complaints ({#% & &
E ##5%))" has specified the responsible department and
detailed procedures in handling customers’ complaints,
and established a handling scheme which includes the
first-complaint responsibility system, signature and
circulation system, customer acceptance system and
follow-up and return visit system.

RIR - HERERBE

AT2EBRBREFPHARAIREEENRE
EE UERBRBEHROER  BERMES -
BB ERRE=FAEFP MEERNFIE-
HEBHAN RMELTLETEHBAFETES
DR ROBIFETE - % #8&E E MW GT/T19038 -
2009 R MERTER R FEIERMBEA
RHE - EASMARTIRAI (BARER) - AIETEAY -
AEIMN - AEN - RN BBEMN
e BESEENBRSERAI=ZEFX X
NERFGERE REXIREE RERHB -
RERBNEECREAEFANEEEEZR
FERKE-

ARRBFHBEZ T8OEBIFEAL TKT
66010 B M AR E U - & RFE R - 20204
EREIHPEMNEBEEmSE A93.50% #2019

FEHIB.08DEMET - BBRFER R
MEEFPARBEENHERENRFT2SE
ZERETEAETEEER YWEINZTE
REMNBEAMES KtMRERMABETS
RIFEE -

EFOREBREMIEELNE N - KRR
RORFEERE) (TEBEFEFINE
ARENREEEPMRFMER - HP (K
FEBWE AMEEEPRFNAEAEEN
MAEFMALR ZUNEFREEH RERE
B BPRAIS IR MEE B R D R R

CERX

SETHREERARAR F82020 31



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

= .

32

HERERBRE

First-complaint responsibility system:

o The person who received a complaint
from a customer will be the first recipient
of the complaint, who is responsible
for delivering and passing on the
complaint to relevant departments.
The first recipient cannot put off or
give up its responsibilities during the
course. It shall sign on the Complaint
Handling Circulation List as the first
responsible person, and undertake all the
responsibility to receive further questions
from the complainant and inform it of the
final results.

Signature and circulation system:

J For every customer’s complaint, every
circulated handling procedure shall be
recorded in writing to ensure that every
complaint case is well-documented.

Customer acceptance system:

o In respect of handling a complaint,
completion of handling complaint is
not dependent upon the adoption of
measures. Instead, such completion of
handling complaint culminates in the
satisfaction of the complainant who is
informed of the results of the complaint.

Follow-up and return visit system:

o After completion of every complaint,
property management department shall
make a follow-up confirmation with the
complainant via phone conversation. For
more severe complaints, it shall make a
return visit the complainants in person,
and continue to handle the complaints
if there are still problems pending to be
handled until the customers are satisfied
with the results.
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The Company has a quality risk control department
to manage the preparation, modification,
release of complaint documents. After the complaint is
received, it will be transferred to the relevant business
department for acceptance and then processed by the
corresponding project personnel. After preliminary
verification, investigation and analysis, providing solutions
and customer visits, the project personnel will feedback
the processing results to the business department. After
verification by the business department, the quality risk
control department will verify the results, and form the
Customer Complaint Record Form, which is convenient
for tracking, recording and feedback of complaints.

review and

Innovation and R&D

With the progress of the times and the development of
the industry, scientific innovation and informatization
applications are becoming more and more important for
the development of enterprises. Therefore, Riverine China
has proactively conducted research and development, as
well as application of digital and integrated technologies,
in order to provide high-quality and efficient services for
customers. We have particularly established Shanghai
Jie Gu, which devotes a huge amount of resources on
research and development of “Dynamic Building Matrix”
("DBM") system, overall digitalization of building, and
organic integration of the contents such as equipment,
energy, personnel, supervision and environment by way
of deployment of visualization and Internet of Things
(loT).

RIR - HERERBE

ZN/NCTIE! HERESM BREEEERHAX
HFrmE fIKEAZ %V&?F‘ﬁﬁ ERERF

ZRFE =
HEBERBAEBRE -KEBNFRE HED
frofaTRRER BHEPESXR A
ANERBRBERRBEEXEBEHM  BBREK
MPIRER - BHEERZEIETERAE -
KB ERFLER) ERERFERE

REEREEKIFPIETIIE

TTIRHE - e MR EE o
£l Fr A B 3%
BERARNEFULRITENER B2

oGRLERERNEENERMEARE
Z-RAt  HITBEEGEMEHRFTNERE—
BLEERMALEERER REFPIRHES
BEMSRENRE - RRRRFHKILT L
BNR BRAREERPEIGRY X R
(bBMD) > B F 28 F Bt X\
BRI R MY EEE (o) BEN T KRB -

BER - -AB EE REZFRNTES -

ETPRIERARAT 482020 33



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIR - HERERHE

The DBM system is composed of a “Three-tools- DBMEZAIZTA—FAEIMEEAMNK - B
One-platform” structure, which stands for mission TKEEITE -BEEEITAE BEFEET
management tool, assets management tool, tenants EURHEREBFE 5EITESkL &£
management tool and data presentation platform 8{t - EFEHNGEAERE RS - EEERAW
respectively, in order to build into an intelligent, F:

ecological and digital integrated management system.

The specific functions are as follows:

Name

=x

Mission management
tool
THERTA

Function

&R

Optimizing inspections, managing repair plans in advance, managing work order
electronically, conducting detailed data statistics
MR TIERIL  #IEFEIBAETRE ITESFLER FHASEBA

Assets management
tool

BEEBEITA

Comprehensive equipment information, equipment warning, real-time
examination of equipment’s situation, automatic formation of maintenance
work order

PHREES REBE BERETERBURIL BBTKEEIESE

Tenants management
tool
HEEHEIA

Recording information of tenants, mobile payment, repair transparency,
enhancing user stickiness

LHEEFPER BHHE JREEAL REAPKE

Data presentation
platform

BERATE

Presentation of visualization, statistical analysis by themes, linkage of
information state, viewing on various platforms
ARIEERE RIBHAON  ERNEHRDY  ZF¥EEFH
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In order to continuously optimize the efficiency and
innovation of engineering services, the Company has
independently developed the Platform of Operation and
Maintenance System of Equipment and Facility (POMS),
which quantifies the process and results of the operation
and maintenance of engineering facilities. The platform
utilizes technologies including Al, loT, cloud computing
and big data, relies on the Company’s operational
experience of offline engineering facilities services as the
means and combines intelligent facilities management
platform tools with innovative and efficient operational
teams to provide customers with continuous, stable and
efficient intelligent services. POMS covers all aspects of
on-site operation and maintenance work, and realizes the
digital management of six major tasks of daily operation,
corrective maintenance, preventive maintenance, safety
and protection, energy management, construction and
supervision, and establishes a sound operation and
maintenance system.

Riverine China further strengthens the transformation
and upgrading of traditional property management to
modern property services. We continue to optimize the
enterprise innovation process, improve the Company’s
innovation culture atmosphere, and create quality
service experience for our customers. We constantly
encourage innovative research and development from
our employees, and we have built a knowledge base
(information-knowledge list) that aggregates experience
from internal sources (e.g., relevant experience of
intellectual property; knowledge gained from failures and
successful project experiences) and external sources (e.g.,
industry standards; academic exchanges; professional
meetings, opinions from the customers or external
suppliers), and extracted specified knowledge sharing for
employees to learn from and reference. Meanwhile, we
properly manage the pooled knowledge base (including
intellectual property) to ensure that our intellectual
property rights are not infringed.

RIR - HERERBE
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RIR - HERERHE

UNITY FOR JOINT PROGRESS, SHARING
DEVELOPMENT

Employment Management

In order to establish a reasonable and fair talent selection
and appointment mechanism, the Company strictly abides
by relevant laws and regulations including the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({f & A B HA1E %
%)), the Labor Contract Law of People’s Republic of China
((PFEARZEMBELH AR E)Y) and the Implementing
Regulations of the PRC Employment Contracts Law (%
ARIMBELEEREET MIEH)). In addition, we have
prepared the “Employee Handbook (& T F fff)”, which
regulates related systems for recruitment, compensation,
dismissal, promotion, performance appraisal, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other welfare system; and, we adopt the “fair, just and
open” model of recruiting outstanding talents who fulfill our
requirements so as to supply the Company with new blood.
The Company also strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors ({(FF % A R
H A B KK F ARHEE)) and Provisions of Prohibition
of Child Labor ({ZE 1 FAZE T E)) and other relevant
laws and regulations, and resolutely eliminate the use of
child labor and all forms of forced labor. The Company’s
recruitment system automatically filters all applicants
under the age of 16, and verifies the valid identification
documents of the applicants in the employee recruitment,
entry examination and approval, entry registration and other
links to ensure the authenticity of their information. During
the reporting period, there were no cases of violation of any
laws and regulations on employment or child labor or forced
labor in the Company.
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We advocate diversity and provide equal job opportunities,
and do not discriminate on the basis of race, gender, age,
religion, ethnicity and other factors. Based on the principle
of “Priority to Internal Recruitment, Open Recruitment,
Fair Competition and Merit-based Selection”, we have
formulated and implemented the Recruitment Management
Regulations ((IBEEE IR 4 F ) ), which clearly defines the
principles, standards and procedures of recruitment and
allocation of personnel. The Company has entered into a
labor contract with each employee and strictly enforced
the terms of the contract to maintain good labor relations.
We also comply with regulations including the Law on the
Protection of Women's Rights and Interests of the People’s
Republic of China ((FEARKEMBEFBLZEZREE))
to take reasonable protection for female employees to fulfill
their needs for rights and interests.

The Company is committed to providing competitive
compensation and benefits for employees. We have
formulated the “Corporate Title, Rank and Grade Table ({&
AIBE L F 5 E A ER))" and our “Salary Grade Standard
(CHFEZMIZA))”, which has detailed regulations on
compensation standards and promotion standards, and
made annual salary adjustment according to the relevant
national policies, enterprise operating conditions and
individual performance. The Company encourages staff
at all levels to be diligent and perform their duties, and
strive to create a work environment of more pay for
more work for employees, and hope that employees can
actively leverage on their expertise and skills to increase
their income. The Company has established a “part-
time allowance” for the escrow project, which is issued
according to relevant standards during the escrow project.
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In terms of holiday benefits, according to the practical
situation, we have formulated the Guidelines Related to
Holidays on the basis of the regulations on holidays such
as the Provisions of the State Council on Working Hours
of Workers and Staff (B % B B8 7 B T I 4 5 A A9 48
FE)). In addition to statutory holidays, the employees
also can enjoy paid leave including annual leave, sick
leave, maternity leave, marriage leave and bereavement
leave. In addition, the Company purchases commercial
insurance including group medical insurance and
employer liability insurance for qualified employees, and
provides regular health check for employees, including
extra special check for female employees, to provide
comprehensive protection for employees.

Number of employees in 2020!

2020F E R E & B &K

Total number of employees 4,432
HEBAH 4,432
By type of employment

REREIE S

Full time 4,412
a3 4,412
Part time 20

e B 20

L During the reporting period, the scope of employee data
statistics has been expanded, and includes the Company and
Hong Xin
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Number of employees by gender Number of employees by age

BHRIBSHNETIAE BREREINEIAY

Under 30
30 AT
Above 51 196
. 51 5RAE
emale
2,947
it 30-40
2,351 30-40 5%
632
41-50
Male 41-50 5%
ELs 657
2,081
Total number of employees Total number of employees by
by geographical region type of occupation
REZINETAE REEERESWETIAHY
Anhui Province Jlang\;slu;r/;vlnce Zhejiang Province
?ngé 31 Mfé Senior management Technical staff
- : BREEE KITAR
Hun;;;rgmce \ ;a/gg 11 340
75 1

Jiangxi Province
TEE
96

Fujian
Province
BEE
1,964

Henan Province
AEE
145

Sichuan
Province
m)l&
875

General staff
EBET
4,081

Shanghai
i3
1177
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RIE -t ERERBE
Total employee turnover 2,660
BEERAAH
By gender Male 1,100
®RIERE D S
Female 1,560
g
By geographical region  Fujian Province 1,341
i = 8l o mER
Sichuan Province 817
&
Shanghai 179
EB™
Henan Province 137
A
Jiangxi Province 76
ANt
Hunan Province 52
MEE
Anhui Province 45
ZHAE
Jiangsu Province 12
AN )
Tianjin 1
RAE™
By age Under 30 86
REW®E D 30 AT
30-40 194
30-40%%
41-50 247
41-505%
Above 51 2,133
515% A £
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Talent Promotion

Riverine China attaches great importance to the growth
of internal excellent talents and gives promotion to
employees with talent and integrity, outstanding
performance in a professional way or with special skills
by providing them with various means such as gradual
promotion, internal transfer and discretionary promotion
based on the combination of “vertical” and “crisscross”
promotion to foster staff development in accordance with
the “Promotion System (& F+#//&))". We encourage
internal competition, uphold the principle of “suitable and
applicable” and select and promote internal employees
who meet the job requirements with outstanding
performance. In addition, we regularly carry out
performance appraisal, adhere to the principle of “flexible
promotion and demotion” so that demotion measures are
in place for the staff who are not sufficiently competent
to perform their duties, and strive for fairness and justice.

RIR - HERERBE
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Discretionary

Gradual Promotion Internal Transfer

BREHA

The Company encourages
young employees at all
levels to continuously
improve their professional
skills in their respective
positions, and to make
achievement s in their
professional fields.
The Company gives
employees promotion after
recognizing the year-end
performance evaluation

ARBBBERFEET
EEBITEMMI ETER
THEAMFEERE  LHE
EXEHAMER  &F
RERFERESAAE -
S E

R 5 B

In order to establish an
internal talent competition
mechanism, optimize
human resource allocation,
and motivate employees’
enterprising spirit, the
Company establishes
an internal competitive
recruitment mechanism.
When there is a vacancy
in the company’s internal
management positions, it
first conducts an internal
selection and recruitment,
providing unimpeded
promotion space for
employees at all levels

BEANBANA T
#BILEAHEBRES -
HMEETHEIUES AR
RIS NP AR BE e 5 - ¢
PR ASEREEMNZE
B RETAERE 4
ERETRHEGBOFAR

Z= ]

e 3 § B

Promotion

WA RN

For those who make
outstanding contributions
to the Company or have
special talents, they may be
nominated by the human
resources department of the
Company for promotion,
examined by the party
committee and is subject to
the approval of the general
manager

HARRIEHRBER K
BERHRABE BANE
REpRw  BZEZ &
S T2 e A 12 AT DABR AR B2 4K

According to the employee’s
career development plan,
employees can be promoted
according to their professional
positions, or they can be
promoted to other professional
positions as their ability develop

REEBEIBRXLEERR
BE - ATARBERELE
T A ABEEE T
MERMABEAMEE
L & 7t
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Employee Communication

Riverine China is committed to establishing a system of
"Happy Riverine — Sunshine Lighting” and creating a
good, harmonious and simple team human relationships,
and advocates an effective communication and
cooperation between individual and company, individual
and individual. We are willing to listen to employees’
opinions and suggestions and establish the following

ETESE

HIREZNRRIZRBII — BER=
MAE - &R BA BENEEAR
AE - REEARME BAAREAZEH
ERABEAFERN RAZLRERETH
BEAMER YRBINTZRBRBEBERE:

communication channels:

Open-door policy
9 5 B BX

Work meeting
THER

Job interview

TR

Employee committee
BIZES

Satisfaction survey
mMEERE

Managers welcome employees to directly present their ideas and questions
with an open mind. Managers are also required to actively follow the
thoughts and emotions of subordinates
ERABURMREEBOLETIEZREVZEZMER AREREABNSE
EXHPETTEONBENS &

The Company advocates managers to attentively listen to the team’s opinions
through work meetings when setting an objective so as to co-share the vision
EEEREAMTERNREBBATIFERMEREEGNER KRS ZM

=2
538

Under the circumstances of new employee regularization, employee salary
adjustment or job change, making a job evaluation, career development plan
and employee resignation, superior leaders will conduct an interview with the
employee to understand the situation and listen to his/her opinions
MEIEE BEIRFAEUEE TEFIEH BEZERASIURETIER
HEBEERT  FRAESHMKEETETER  THER BIRER

The basic function of employee committee is to participate, communicate
and supervise. Any employee can make his/her opinion and ideas heard by
reporting to the Company through the employee committee
BIZESENELAREI2HE BB EE -MREIBFERMEZE A
ABBRIZEEMALNRRE

The Company consults its employees on the business and management of
the Company through a regular anonymous opinion survey to understand the
overall satisfaction of employees with our working environment
AATBEBAERANTCLCEEAFAECNEIHAYER TESEFENER -
THREIHIERENERRERE
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Health and Safety

The Company has consistently adhered to the principle
of “safety first” and strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations in relation to occupational health and safety
including the “Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Law of the People’'s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases”, “Regulations on the Administration of
Occupational Health Examination”, “Administrative
Measures for Work Safety Training” and “Regulations of
Shanghai Municipality on Safe Production”. Moreover,
based on the actual operations, we have formulated
the ”“Manual of Occupational Health and Safety
Management” and “Employee Code of Conduct”, which
clarify the safety and fire protection responsibilities of
employees, and identify and reduce occupational safety
risks, to create a safe, healthy and comfortable working
environment for employees and protect employees’
physical and mental health.

The Company has obtained the occupational health and safety
management system GB/T 28001-2001/OHSAS 18001:2007
certification. In view of the hazard, the Company has compiled
and implemented the “Hazard ldentification and Risk
Assessment Procedures” (/&R ¥ FMERTEEREFT))
and the “Risk Control and Management Procedures” (/&
RIEHIEEIEF)) based on the “Measures of Shanghai
Municipality for the Management of Hazardous Chemicals”
(EEmERIEEREEIIE)), "Identification of major
hazard installations for hazardous chemicals” ({f& /b 2 5
BEREBIREY#)) and “Catalogue of Special Equipment”
(@XM B E)), aiming to identify occupational health
and safety hazards in various activities within the Company,
evaluate and determine important risks, and thus carry out
effective control. We conduct safety inspections regularly to
comprehensively check potential safety hazards, formulate and
implement rectification plans, and effectively promote the risk
prevention work.

RIR - HERERBE

REEZE
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In the process of identifying and assessing safety
risks, for the identified hazard in the operation, we
consider effectively reducing its risk by successively
adopting elimination, replacement, engineering
control, identification warning, management control
and personal protection. Besides, the Company strictly
requires all employees to hold relevant certificates,
including operation qualification certificate, professional
qualification certificate and certificate for special
operations, etc., to strengthen the safety awareness of
employees engaged in work related to hazards.

To ensure that all employees have sufficient safety
knowledge, we organize fire safety trainings for
security guards, controllers and security administrators
in accordance with the provisions of the “Manual of
Occupational Health and Safety Management” and
the “Employee Code of Conduct”. The key training
contents include importance of safety production, on-site
safety education, fire safety, national safety production
guidelines and policies, situation and accident education,
casualties and first aid.

During the reporting period, the Company and Hong Xin
suffered a total of 9 work-related injuries, and the total
number of work days lost was 640 days. There were 2
fatal accidents that occurred due to work relationship2.
The Company attached great importance to production
safety issues, so the relevant departments also deeply
summarized the accidents. Although the reasons of these
2 fatal accidents is the traffic accident on the way to
the worksite and the sudden disease outbreak during
the operation, which are both irrelevant to the process
of safety production, the Company still consolidated
the safety production risk investigation, reviewed and
continuously improved the safety production related
policies, and implemented safety production to avoid
accidents.

2 The Company had no fatal accident that occurred due to work
relationship in 2018 and 2019. In 2018 and 2019, the total
number of work days lost due to work was 242 days and 640
days, respectively.
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Case: 2020 Fire Safety Training Activity
RO 20208 EEB R E2BIED

In order to improve the safety management awareness
of various project personnel and the management
level of fire safety, the Company organized the 2020
EHS (Environment, Health and Safety) work conference
on 6 November 2020, and hired experts to provide
relevant fire safety training.

The training emphasized the implementation of the
key fire safety units accountability system of and
the practical knowledge of fire safety management,
including: publicity on basic fire safety regulations
and specifications, how to assume and perform
fire protection responsibilities, violations of fire
protection law and punishments therefor, fire accident
investigation knowledge, fire emergency rescue and
drills, fire safety characteristics of non-residential
properties, how to conduct fire safety management,
fire protection inspection, inspection of fire protection
account files, basic principles of fire protection
facilities, daily safety inspection precautions, etc.
The experts let all students have a more vivid
understanding of fire safety and emergency response
based on typical accident cases and VR (virtual reality)
fire scene escape simulation.

Bl R
|- W

AR ARBSHEEAEBNTE2EEEH
REBZ 2 A EANEEKFE - B2020511
P6HE 8 % B 5 T20204F EEHS GR35 - 2
REZ2)IEEZ YEFEXHAREME
BE R 2E -

BERIFRATER LT 2 E BB A&
MEBREMZ2ERBERMNE  NEE
FEREMLZ2ERARGBEE - A%
EBITEWEM HBEEREES X
KEWAEEBRAE - B ESZRIEREE
mEEMEENLDER - NAEITHE
B2 EE - HBBARSE - KEHEHAE
EREREAY BEMREEARRE - AER
EPREIEZTHS -BRECHAEHE
PIRVR(EBRER)ANKBIG R LIS FE
B OEAMAZEHENLZERERERE
BETELEMIER -
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Training and Development

Riverine China regards the learning and development
of its employees as one of the driving forces for the
sustainable development of the Company. The Company
continues to improve the training system and learning
exchange platform, hoping that employees can show
their strengths based on their skills and interests. We
also improve the career development channels for our
employees, so that they can grow together with the
Company.

Vocational Training

In order to meet the Company’s development goals and
enhance the comprehensive ability of the employees,
the Company has formulated and implemented the
“Management Measures of Employee Training” ({8 L
=3Il & & 32 %)) based on the development needs of
the Company and employees to standardize the training
management work and specify the requirements for
the skills and work experience of the employees in each
position, so as to ensure that they are competent for the
work. We provide suitable training for different targeted
participants according to the Company’s training needs,
and organize two types of training, i.e. practical training
and qualification training, to meet employees’ diversified
learning needs and improve their professional skills.

Practical training

=i

A EEE

HITBERETIRREERREEARFER
XS 30 DA DA IV NN - b =
EMBBXRYE FEETIAUREBD
MXBENEB-—RAK - RMATREITE
BEERBE SIBEIHRMPEHAKE -
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RTEALERRAEE RBABINKER
N ARBKBARBDRETIERTESE
WHITCE THIREEBE) - HiFlE R
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RERTEE&REXR BREERAEE
BETHE - RARBEIFK  SHHARE
IERRERGENEIAT  LEHBTHE
Fl R ERBEIEMBAEIN U8 IZ
BIEMBEFR RSEINERRE -

Qualification training

ZEEd

Corporate training, including safety production, supervision
of the property service center, new employees’ induction,
daily management knowledge, project manager class of
Pujiang Academy, practical operation training for each
position

EEAN - BELT2LE MERBDLES HETAR -
HREIEA BT RREEB IR - SR ERIRES
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® Qualification training, including intermediate and senior titles
(engineers, economists), technicians and senior technicians
(management, engineering, security), various types of
engineering recertification, registration certificates of security
qguards, security officer certificate, etc.
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The Company will carry out regular assessment according
to the completion of the training, integrate performance
of the trainee in the later period for appraisal of overall
learning results, so that the training outcomes can be
guaranteed. The training assessment results will be
used as a reference basis for human resources related
activities such as job mobilization, rank adjustment and
performance evaluation. During the reporting period, the
Company carried out a series of face-to-face and online
training courses, including training courses on brand
management, human resource management, building
operations, green engineering, and property project
management, which were offered by external and
internal lecturers, which consolidated the knowledge of
the Company’s employees and improved employees’ skills
to help them grow together with the Company.

Statistics on

participants?

RIR - HERERBE

RIFFHINERMRR  ARAEHFREEZF
i BAXIETIRIERRETERS
BRRHE - BEARZ KK - BA IR H
ERAERESBEIRMAD BERAE &
BMEREANZRINSERE - BEHA -
ARARRT—RINER REREIIRE
ETEEMBREE ANEREE BFE
B meliR MMMEBEEBEFHIRE
BBIEBR A EMETER  EEEALQ
AETHMBORE R MmAN e &
REFKRKE °

Average
training
hours (Hour)
F 15 32 5l B #

No. of
Percentage*

training in total A% ZIlA &3 B2k (NEF)
Staff training by rank REREINZIET
Senior management =SREEEB 11 0.16% 120
General staff ERBE 6,452 94.84% 74
Technical staff RiTAE 340 5.00% 50
Staff training by gender ZHRIBI2MWZIHIET
Female Z it 3,807 55.96% 76
Male B 2,996 44.04% 66
3 During the reporting period, the statistical scope of the number 3 BREPAZRIARBEBESRAEEERBER - &
of trainees has been expanded to include the Company and B HER SRR KRALRK
Hong Xin
4 Refers to the percentage of the group’s number of participants 4 BZoEZINAREBRZINANRFAEES

in the total number of participants
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, GREEN
HOME

Environmental protection management

As a leading sustainable development property
management enterprise in China, Riverine China has
always adhered to the objective of “Caring for the Earth,
Protecting the Environment and Maintaining Sustainable
Development” and always followed the development
of environmental protection and implemented
environmental protection to make contribution to the
establishment of a beautiful China. The Company strictly
complies with the laws and regulations on exhaust gas
and greenhouse gas emissions, pollution to water and
land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste,
and reduction of major impacts on the environment and
natural resources including the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and the Regulation on Realty Management. We
have also prepared management systems including the
“Environmental Factor Management Procedures ( {3z &
=E I F))" in accordance with the abovementioned
laws and regulations and regularly updated our internal
management policies. The Company has been certified
with the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System.
During the reporting period, the Company has not
violated any environmental laws and regulations.

A8 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

RERR  REXE

REREBEERE
HIFRBERTRELENAKRBELERMEE
Bir¥ REFEMIR RERE  AIF
BRERINTE BERTERRERBY
ERERBERELFE REUEEYEMEER
Ble RRAIBEET(PFEAREMEIRIE
REE) (PEAREMBIASRBAE) (F
EARAEMBEEEEYSERERRZE) (R
EARLEMBEEHOERE) - (MEZEIKH)
ZEBEANMBERBEEN  MAKKE LA
5 AEREEEEYVNES  REYHR
BRERAERERKERTZENEREER - K
MM E AR ERFITCRERRER
ER)SEBEHE YETHEHRRITER
B - RAFIEHAEISO 14001REEEE X
RE - WREHHA - AQA W EAMERRR
HEEPERIBR -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIR - HERERBE

We have established the “Procedures for Management of HMIH E(RERZEBEREF)HREREZE
Environmental Factors” ((FRIFEXREIRIZF)), which BRBETHREE W EHRABKTEEFINIE
standardizes the environmental factor management BE G #MEERRHWHARARGTRELEE
process, specifies duties of each department and REBEPHRFEZHPEFTEHEIE  F
effectively controls significant environmental risk factors, WIZHIEARBERBAEZ EAARARIRIE
so as to systematically carry out the identification and FHEHEBEZHNH EREKE - Edh - ATE
assessment of environmental factors in the Company’'s BRHMEERRME TWENERER AR
business activities and service processes, effectively &3 A DBMIE W EMEETRE B EIEET
control major environmental risk factors and provide the 3FEE L ETRETEILEERZR -

basis for the environmental guidelines and environmental

objectives of the Company. In particular, in order to

more effectively manage the energy performance of

our properties, the “DBM" developed by the Company

continuously monitors the energy usage data of the

properties and implements an intelligent environmental

management system.

Procedures for Management of Environmental Factors
BREREEERERF

Person in charge/

Department in charge

BEAEEDM

Quality and Risk
Management Department
BEEREE

Quiality and Risk
Management Department
BE2REE

Integrated Management
Department
fraEIEE

Quality and Risk
Management Department
BEEREE

Quality and Risk
Management Department
B EEE

Outline of procedures
MM E

Identifying environmental
factors

RIG A EHA

Evaluating environmental
factors
RIFREE

Formulating environmental
aims/targets
T RE B IR/HE12

Recognition and update
of environmental factors
and significant
environmental factors
RERZMEBIRKEEE
MR R E AT

Significant environmental
control

BERRES

Relevant documents/forms

R, RIE

“Research and Evaluation
Sheet for Environmental
Factors”
CGREEZRAZRAER)

“List of Significant Environ-
mental Factors”

(BEEREAZFE)

“Aims and Management
Solution”
(BERMERTR)

“Research and Evaluation
Sheet for Environmental
Factors”, “List of Significant

Environmental Factors”
<<%%%§J%?&E¥E%>
(BEERBEAKRBFE)
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In addition, in order to reduce the environmental impact
that the Company may have on the environment and
resources during its operations, the Company has also
formulated a series of accident emergency plans including
the Contingency Plans for Environmental Pollution, the
Contingency Plans for Leakage of Dangerous Chemicals,
and the Contingency Plans for Leakage of Toxic Gas,
and set up a relevant emergency response team, clarify
the emergency handling procedures, prevent problems
from occurring, and minimize the losses caused by
environmental emergencies.

Green operation

Resources and Energy Management

The main resources used in the operation of the
Company include water, electricity, unleaded gasoline
and paper. In order to ensure the rational use of
resources and reduce the Company’s operating costs,
the Company has formulated and implemented the
Resources and Energy Management Requirements and
the Regulations for Motor Vehicle Management, to
clarify the content of energy saving, while implementing
unified vehicle management and a special maintenance
responsibility system to improve management and
control of resources and energy. As the Company’s water
comes from the municipal pipe, there are no problems in
obtaining water sources, and the wastewater generated
during the office process is preliminarily treated by the
sewage treatment facilities of the property in the building
where it is located and discharged into the municipal
sewage pipeline.

In order to better manage the Company’s environmental
impact, during the reporting period, the Company’s
property management of office buildings, public places
and commercial complexes obtained the environmental
management system certification from the Shanghai
Quality Center of Quality System. In addition, the
Company has also introduced a series of measures to
reduce the use of energy and water resources and waste
generation, and to reduce the generation of waste gas
and greenhouse gases due to energy consumption,
to achieve the effect of energy saving and emission
reduction:
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Electricity consumption management

Cleaning the air conditioning air return filter
quarterly to increase the air volume as much as
possible

Carefully calculating the maximum monthly
power demand value, so that the monthly power
consumption is less than the maximum demand
value reported to the power supply bureau
Standardizing the upper and lower limits of
temperature adjustment for exhibition hall
Monitoring the optimized set up of energy facilities
Setting escalator at idle mode

Inspecting all floors of the building after the office
staff of the building are off work and turning off
the air-conditioning and lighting that the office staff
forget to turn off in time

Turning off other lights in public areas except for
the normal lights for meeting the needs of security
work at night

The staff in the equipment room should turn off the
lights when he/she leaves the room

Other electric device shall be switched off
immediately after use to avoid idling of machines
The cooling temperature of air conditioning in
the building shall not be lower than 26T, and the
heating temperature shall not be higher than 22
While purchasing new equipment, energy saving
equipment shall be considered first

Water consumption management

Avoiding any “dripping and leakage”, and
preventing tap from keeping running and lights
from keeping on as well as “improper utilization of
resources”

Reasonably adjusting the water inlet valve of each
sanitary ware and turning down the water output
to make it just meet the needs of use

The slogan, “Save water by turning off the tap”,
is posted next to taps in all washrooms, which are
supervised and managed by administrative staff.
When using toilets and sinks, employees should
pay attention to saving water and turn off the tap
in time. If any abnormal situation is found, inform
the administrative personnel department or the
maintenance department to deal with it immediately
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Depending on weather condition, we reasonably
arrange watering to prevent wastage

Office supplies management

Adopting non-paper record for patrol inspection
Each department shall apply for paper according to
their actual demand, and the paper applied shall
be controlled and distributed by the administrative
personnel and supervised by the head of each
department

The paper (for non-important documents) shall be
used with both sides as much as possible

Ballpoint pen refill, ribbon, battery, toner cartridge
and ink cartridge shall be returned to administrative
staff for collection and replacement

Vehicle management

52

We implement unified management of the
Company's vehicle,
highly efficient management principle, and increase
utilization rate and serviceability rate of vehicle
Carrying out vehicle maintenance and repair work
in time to reduce the use of vehicle fuel

Turning on the garage fan in time intervals
depending on the actual situation of vehicles
entering/exiting the garage

insist on energy saving and
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The following table shows the Company’s environmental A TRRE/RT AR R R &K &R A BEERE A
performance in respect of resources consumption and K HE B ¥ EY 3R 35 48 & -

emission during the reporting period®:

Resources consumption

EREAE

Direct energy consumption

HERBERBR

Gasoline consumption
AHAE
Gasoline consumption intensity

R M= E

72.31 MWh
72 31K BB
18.08 MWh/vehicle®
18.08JK FL B/ B2 i

Indirect energy consumption

& % BE TR OB &

Electricity consumption
HEE
Electricity consumption intensity

REEE

106.26 MWh
106.26JK FL B
0.05 MWh/m?
0.05Jk I B/ 75 K7

Water consumption

1,292.00 tons

FEXKE 1,292.00M8
Water consumption intensity 0.57 ton/m?
FRKEBE 0.57Mg /77 5K
Paper usage 170.40 kg
E NS 170.40F 5
Paper usage intensity 2.05 kg/person?
MAEE 2.05F 52 /A8
5 During the reporting period, the statistical scope of resource 5 WMEHANEK BE - HLORK BEEEEY

usage and emissions data has been expanded to include the
Company’s Shanghai head office and Hong Xin. The scope of
statistics on gasoline consumption, greenhouse gas emissions
and vehicle air pollutant emissions is the Company’s Shanghai
head office. The Company will continue to strengthen and
improve the data collection system to expand the scope of data
statistics.

There are 4 vehicles in the Company’s Shanghai head office

The Company’s Shanghai head office and Hong Xin have an
office area of 2,262.73m?

The Company’s Shanghai head office and Hong Xin have a total
of 83 employees

BESHBESHAA BEASBERS
DA @B A RAR - TTaAE -
FESL T O EL PSS e e Yo
BEAARAMR L ENBBRAE  ARR
BEBENATEENNERR  NEERER
stam

ARR L BBEBRAELRFIRPRER
AAR EBRIBMAERIMRMPAEIER2,262.73
ARAR EBBRABRAETRIAMEESIRET
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TR

HERERKRE

Emission of greenhouse gas

BEREHEKRE

Emission from vehicle (Scope 1)?

BN E(EED

18.07 tons COZe
18.07ME —ELIRE =

Emission from electricity consumption (Scope 2)°

BEHERRE(FEE2)

24.97 tons CO e
24 9708 —

’%Mtﬁr?‘é

Total greenhouse gas emission

48 3

Nl R

BREEREBHNE

43.04 tons COze
43.04F —HEILIRE E

Total greenhouse gas emission intensity

A 7 £
/ivr‘%"/ﬂ]ld:

BHEMEE

0.90 ton CO,e/person'
0.90Mg =

’%{t kg & A
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The figure of emission of greenhouse gas (Scope 1) is calculated
with reference to the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting
of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Land-based Transportation
Enterprises (Trial) published by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China

The figure of emission of greenhouse gas (Scope 2) is calculated
with reference to the Notice on Development of the 2018 Annual
Carbon Emission Report and Verification and Emission Testing
Plan published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
People’s Republic of China

There are 48 employees at the Company’s Shanghai head office
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Emission of pollutants from vehicle??

RIR - HERERBE

BHRZERSEYHERE?
Carbon Monoxide (CO) emission 55.98 kg
— @ bFR(CO M E 55.98F ¢
Nitrogen Oxide (NO,) emission 2.07 kg
BEANOYHER £ 2.07F %
Sulfur Oxides (SO ) emission 0.12 kg
m%m#@(sox)%m&g 0.12F 5
Particulate matter (PI\/IZ_S) emission 0.37 kg
FERLY) (PM, ) BEFL & 037F %
Particulate matter (PI\/Im) emission 0.37 kg
TR Y (PM, o) BERR £ 0.37F %
Waste Management BEEYER

The “Regulations of Shanghai Municipal Administration
of Domestic Waste” was passed by the 15th Shanghai
municipal people’s congress, which was implemented
on 1 July 2019. It is required to store domestic waste
according to four types: recyclable waste, hazardous
waste, wet waste and dry waste. In order to dispose
office and domestic waste and production waste
generated by the Company, we formulate the Regulations
for Solid Waste Management in accordance with the Law
of the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste of the People’s Republic of China,
National Catalog of Hazardous Waste and Procedures
of Shanghai Municipality on the Prevention and Control
of Pollution by Hazardous Waste. Irregular inspections
on waste classification are conducted through the
Quality Risk Control Department and external third-
party inspection agency, guidance instructions on the
collection, storage and treatment of waste were made,
and the operation process was standardized according to
the degree of harm of waste to the environment, and the
regulatory requirements for waste classification.

12 The figure of emission of air pollutants is calculated with
reference to Technical Guide for Air Pollutant Emission
Inventory for Road Vehicles (Trial) published by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the People’s Republic of China

(EBETEENREBENRETERE L
BHARRKEKKRKGEA - W AMN2019F7H418
HRIREIE M 0 BG4 E R FIRBAIE WY -
EEE - BN EME N ROEERER S BT
e BEBARREENBRAEEN R RE
EaR - RPREBE(PEAR LR HERE

MIRIBE R E) (BREREDRE) (L
MR ISREEWEIGTET(EEYE

BHRE) BREBRZEVEHRENEERE

BRNFEHPENEEER  AATERIEH
RONEE=ZFTRERBESHEENRND
THEETTTHRE  THEEDHKSE -
BEMRERMEIEEEHE  URSEIRER

g o

i RRBAMERERBIENFET R2EE8H
FEARKNMBELERREDEOOCERBH ISR
RSB B R B Bl 4 R (BLAT))
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RIR - HERERHE

Non-hazardous waste generated by the Company'
includes office and domestic waste and production
waste, that is, waste materials, waste equipment
components, and waste construction materials generated
by the Company during the processes of service,
maintenance, construction and storage. Office and
domestic waste shall be collected and stored in the
waste storage site by the Company personnel. Waste
storage containers are set at the storage site. Posters
of classification guidelines are posted in accordance
with the waste classification requirements to facilitate
classified storage and cleaning and recycling by the
cleaning staff. The production waste shall be centralized,
classified, identified and managed by the engineering
personnel, and shall be stacked in the designated waste
recovery area with consideration of the compatibility of
waste placement. Firefighting equipment shall be set
up near the recovery area, and there must be obvious
safety signs. If necessary, measures such as erecting
interior walls can be taken to prevent dispersion and
leakage. Local environmental hygiene management
bureau is entrusted by the Company to carry on a unified
treatment to the harmless waste.

The hazardous wastes currently produced by the
Company include waste toner cartridges and ink
cartridges generated in office activities, waste lamps
and oil-containing fabrics generated in property
service activities, etc., which are all centrally stacked
in temporary storage points with relevant signs, and
when the waste reaches a certain amount, it will be
handed over to a qualified processing unit for centralized
disposal. The hazardous wastes generated in outsourcing
activities shall be brought back by the outsourcing
party and handed over to a qualified unit for disposal.
The management office of the Company has signed
an environmental and occupational health and safety
management commitment letter with the unit, and the
contract sets out terms on disposal of hazardous wastes
and related matters.

L Because our business is property management, the Company did
not use any packaging material during the reporting period
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The property management office also periodically
checks whether each type of waste is storaged subject
to requirements in each month, and requires rectifying
immediately for any breach to reduce the pollution to the
ecological environment.

Tmﬁm
S0 _H B0

- E ; i gl-._'—-:h,

IIHI HIII HEHE"

RIR - HERERBE

NEEERNSATHRESEEEZEYNG
MEEANAER YHERBRIELAYLE

MEEN -
77&0

mBRLEZEYHERIRENS

| euaengs
i 2

Waste Sorting Trash Cans and Identifications

B2 3% o B B AR DA R AR B

The Company has also adopted the following series of
measures to strengthen waste disposal and reduce its
generation:

o Recycling wasted materials from exhibition hall

o Recycling wasted battery and ink cartridge

o Recycling wasted fluorescent tube

o Dredging with bag and completing cleaning process
on the same day

ARABIRRET 5 —Z 5
BBE B A RO D HE A

EHE AR EEEY

. @Wﬂ%%ﬁ@%ﬁﬂ
e OHWEESTH 22
. @%Ft“tﬁ
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RIR - HERERHE

The following table shows the environmental MW TERTARE LBEIDHQEKILRRE
performance index of the Company’s Shanghai head WREHABBEEZEYIERMNRE S R EE
office and Hong Xin regarding waste emissions during

the reporting period:

Solid waste generation
EREERVELE

Non-hazardous Waste

mEREZEY)

Wasted paper 0.03 ton
BEHRREAS 0.03MF
Office waste 136.00 tons
WMAENRELEE 136.001M&
Total non-hazardous waste 136.03 tons
BEEEVELRE 136.03M1

Non-hazardous waste intensity

1.64 tons/person

BEBEWELARE 1.641WF /A
Hazardous Waste

EEEEY

Wasted ink cartridge 41 units
BERSELXS A&

Wasted ink cartridge intensity

0.49 unit/person

BERSELXTE 0.491@ /A
Wasted fluorescent tube 21 units
BEEXRIEEELES 2137

Wasted fluorescent tube intensity

0.25 unit/person

BEANBEELERE 0.25% /A
Wasted battery 52 units
BHNELE 521

Wasted battery intensity
B E LR

0.63 unit/person
0.6318 A
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Green Engineering

In response to the “Notice Concerning the Implementation
Opinions on Accelerating the Promotion of the Upgrade
and Renovation of Small and Medium-sized Boilers in the
Municipality (<850 1R # 3 2N T /N s B IR AR B iE T
EE R E R ABA))” issued by the General Office of the
Shanghai Municipal People’s Government on 27 December
2018, during the reporting period, the Company conducted
investigations on properties involving the use of boilers
under the management of the Company according to
requirements, promoted the implementation of relevant
upgrades and renovations, and conducted environmental
assessment after completion of renovation to ensure the
equipment’s satisfaction of emission requirements and
achieve the purpose of reducing exhaust gas emissions from
such equipment.

REPAY THE SOCIETY, LOVE THE COMMUNITY
In order to continue to give back to the surrounding
communities, the Company is committed to giving full
play to its business advantages and contribute to creating
new value for the community in different fields. It makes
contributions to the local community by promoting joint
construction and cooperation projects with different
industries and enterprises. During the reporting period,
the Jiushi Xijiao Villa Management Office of the
Company organized an elderly respect event with the
theme of “Keep the Childlike Innocence Forever, Real
Happy” at the Double Ninth Festival. More than 60
owners participated in the event. Under the leadership of
the organizer, the participants visited the east extension
section of Nanjing Road Pedestrian Street and had a
night tour of Huangpu River to view the night scene on
both sides of the Huangpu River in Shanghai.

RIR - HERERBE

BmeIiR
HELEEmARBNTHABER2018F12H27
B 2 A 1) 78 70 00 TR HE A R T AR )N 8 B B AR
BETHEERBERHEN) RBEHA - K
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EITE Y ERBETKRETIRA IR
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MERBERANBM -

Bt E KEHE
AEBENEASHR ARARHINEES
GEBERY  ETREESLEE B AIERN
WEE -BEREEFNEITEMEENRLE
AERE REMMRELER - REHRA -
ARAPAZTEBEEEERABT ADKE
B REFZHEIRTENEGHHEED -
ZEBHOZMETRE  2MEBEERT
MEET2BTERBPITEHRBRNRE
BRI MELBHIMENRTERS -
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RIR - HERERHE

Elderly respect event with the theme of “Keep the Childlike Innocence Forever, Real Happy”

at the Double Ninth Festival

[KBED

Moreover, Riverine China always pays attention to
cooperation with the community. We supported each
other with the community during the COVID-19 epidemic
to help people in need improve their lives. During the
reporting period, we held a series of charitable donation
activities, and also organized volunteer service activities,
including self-made publicity, self-made alcohol cotton
balls distributed to customers, donation of masks for use
by duty staff and other epidemic prevention activities to
provide couplet-assistance, which received wide acclaim.
During the reporting period, Party member volunteer
services, building volunteer services, Nanjing Road sentry
box volunteer services, etc. were carried out. A total of
150 people participated in voluntary activities against the
epidemic. The cumulative service time was about 600
hours, and donation was made to the community, people
with disabilities, education and epidemic prevention
assistance in an amount of approximately RMB520,000.
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RIR - HERERBE

Proactive Charitable Donations of the Group

AEBREFRAGESBIEY
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B

Mr. Xiao Xingtao HE B % &£
Chairman E &

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Riverine China
Holdings Limited together with its subsidiaries, | would
like to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

ANNUAL REVIEW

The Group continued to press ahead with the operating
strategies in 2020 under the principle of “enhancing the
foundation of property services, optimizing the layout
of urban services, improving the overall service capacity
and promoting the market of science and technology
products” with expected goals achieved.

For property services, the Company continued to improve
its nationwide geographical layout, enrich the product mix
of property services, improve service quality and customer
experience, as well as expand the size of its core business
and improve its professional service capacity.
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In the field of urban services, the Group entered the
market of urban sanitary services through acquisition of
Hong Xin at the beginning of the year, and completed
the annual development target of sanitary business.
Meanwhile, the Company is proactively promoting the
development of comprehensive urban service business
integrating property, sanitary and intelligent building,
laying a solid foundation for building the Company into a
comprehensive provider of urban sanitary services.

For science and technology services, while enhancing
investments, the Company applied and optimized the
information technology system for building services
based on the Internet of Things and cloud computing
which was profoundly applied in property service projects
with breakthroughs achieved in overseas markets. In the
meantime, we invested resources into the development
and application of information tools for project operation
and maintenance business in property management to
strengthen the building of its core competitiveness.

Meanwhile, the Company continued to carry out
resources preparation and business exploration in asset
management, corporate service and other fields.

The Company had positive performance in the process of
epidemic prevention and control. All the projects under
management have weathered the epidemic steadily
and received praise from the media and owners of
certain projects. The Company has also established an
emergency management mechanism to respond to public
emergencies through the summarization of epidemic
prevention and control.
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Through effective business layout and active cost control,
the Company has maintained stable gross profit margin
while expanding its business scale and maintaining
customer stickiness. With the maturity of information
and technology products, the investment in technological
development will continue to fall; the application
of information and technology products will further
improve corporate efficiency; the sales of information
and technology products will realise contribution of
revenue from information and technology products.
With the growth of sanitary business, the Group is full
of confidence in its future development prospects and
profitability.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's total
revenue was approximately RMB763.8 million, representing
an increase of approximately 58.6% from RMB481.5
million for the previous year. For the year ended 31
December 2020, net profit was approximately RMB37.0
million, representing an increase of approximately 80.5%
from RMB20.5 million for the previous year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.012 per Share for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “2020 Final Dividend”) with
a sum of approximately HK$4.9 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB4.1 million which is subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2020 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
11 June 2021 (the "AGM"). The 2020 Final Divided, if
approved, will be distributed on or about Friday, 16 July
2021 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 23 June 2021.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will continue to provide quality
property management services as well as value-added
services targeting the commercial interests of customers,
and develop and provide quality sanitary services for
urban management. The Group plans to continuously
grow its business efficiently and strategically through
acquisitions and mergers, investments, joint ventures and
business collaboration. The Group will expand its business
vertically along the industry chain and the supply chain
of the property management industry. In addition, the
Group will strengthen the application of its information
technology system as well as enhance its service quality
for the customers and users of the properties under
its management while launching the marketing of its
information technology system to generate more revenues
for the Group. Last but not least, the Group will promote
the mechanism within the Company’s departments and the
mechanism to coordinate subsidiaries in different regions to
improve its operating efficiency. With the in-depth strength
of the Group in capturing market opportunities, its well-
established brand name in the industry and the strong
growth potential in the property management industry and
sanitary industry, the Directors believe that the Group’s
business will continue to grow thereby further driving the
growth of its market share and profits.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude on behalf of the Board to the Shareholders,
business partners, customers and suppliers for their
great support and trust. | would also like to express my
appreciation to the management and all the staff for
their contributions and efforts during the past year.

Xiao Xingtao
Chairman
30 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENmRE DM

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The urbanization development of the PRC has been
gradually accelerating since 1980s with urbanization
rate increasing from only 19.4% in 1980 to over 60%
in 2020. As compared with the average urbanization
rate of approximately 70% in developed countries, there
are further potential for urbanization development in
the PRC. Improved urbanization has led to an increased
demand for residential and other property projects,
resulting in an increased demand for comprehensive
urban public services including property management
services and urban sanitary services.

The fast-growing economy in the PRC has spurred
continuous growth in annual disposable income per
urban capita. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics of China’s preliminary calculation, the annual
disposable income per urban capita increased from
RMB42,359 in 2019 to RMB43,834 in 2020. The
increasing demand for better living conditions is another
reason for the growth of property management industry.

In line with the economic growth and urbanization of
the PRC, there are increasing supply of public facilities
such as museums, arenas and stadiums as well as newly-
constructed urban road areas to cater for the increasing
demand from city dwellers of the PRC. Meanwhile, the
increased urban population is promoting the demand for
refuse treatment both in qualities and quantities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group, through its operating subsidiaries and
investments in associates, provides a wide range of
comprehensive urban public services, including property
management services with valued-added services to
a variety of properties in the PRC and urban sanitary
services to various areas.

The properties managed by the Group are mainly located
in Shanghai and expanded to Tianjin, Anhui, Zhejiang,
Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Fujian, Sichuan, Henan, Hubei and
Hunan provinces. The urban sanitary services are mainly
performed in Fujian and Sichuan provinces.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Period, the Group through its subsidiaries and
investments in associated companies had entered into
499 property management agreements for the provision
of various kinds of property management services for
the properties in the PRC, representing an increase
of approximately 9.7% as compared to 455 property
management agreements in the same period of 2019.

During the Period, approximately 67.3% of total
revenue was generated from the provision of property
management services, of which approximately 90.2%
to non-residential properties whereas the remaining
approximately 9.8% was generated from residential
properties and other services. Also, approximately 32.7%
of the Group’s total revenue was generated from the
provision of urban sanitary services.

The Group’s property management services have been
and will continue to be strategically focused on high-end
non-residential properties in the PRC and the Group's
urban sanitary service is an important part of the
comprehensive urban public services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmRE DM
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The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenues by
type of services provided for the period indicated.

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MHLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
LB hHBE
& B I &5 BAL
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTTT
Property management services & & | %) % & 32 R
on the lump sum basis 7% 509,149 66.7% 476,646 99.0%
Property management services B < il ¥ % & 12 AR
on the fix remuneration %
basis 4,947 0.6% 4,884 1.0%
Urban sanitary service Yk $E IR #T AR 7% 249,712 32.7% N/ATEA N/ATEA
Total HBEt 763,808 100% 481,530 100%

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenues
from providing property management services by type of

managed properties for the period indicated.

TREINZATHEAEENERLSDRE
Ry REE RS R W R AR -

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12R318LLEE
2020 2019
2020F 20194
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
1t 48 & SR
iy %3 Bol W = Btk
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARETF T
Commercial establishments & WX 4GEE &
office buildings /NN 312,223 60.7% 254,257 52.8%
Public properties NRYE 106,335 20.7% 140,916 29.2%
Residential properties FEWE 50,399 9.8% 43,698 9.1%
Others Hh 45,139 8.8% 42,659 8.9%
Total I 514,096 100% 481,530 100%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenues from
providing urban sanitary services by various areas for the
period indicated.

BEENmRE DM

NREY IR AR HIE A F L E kA 1R
WERR A AR A O W s AR A

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31MHLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
1l 48 21 B
W &= Bot W &5 EkNsd
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREBEF T
Fujian mE 165,672 66.3% N/ATEMA N/ATER
Sichuan a1 77,402 31.0% N/ATEA NATHEA
Others H b 6,638 2.7% N/ATEE N/ATEFH
Total @t 249,712 100% N/AT@EA N/ATEA
HUMAN RESOURCES ABDER

The Group employed 4,432 employees and dispatched
staff as of 31 December 2020. The Group also
subcontracted part of the labour intensive work, such
as security, cleaning and gardening services and certain
specialized engineering repairs and maintenance works
to sub-contractors. The employment contracts either
have no fixed terms, or if there are fixed terms, the terms
are generally up to three years, after which the Group
evaluate renewals based on performance appraisals.
All of the full-time employees are paid a fixed salary
and may be granted other allowances, based on their
positions. In addition, discretionary bonuses may also
be awarded to employees based on the employee’s
performance. The Group conduct regular performance
appraisals to ensure that the employees receive feedback
on their performance.

B Z=2020F12A318 * A& B2 FH4,432% &
BREEETI - AEENTSEHLILHEE
BT IR - BEREBERBEUARE
FEMTIREBERRETIRE TS EME - %5
EREOEBETHR - ki EE TR - 8
—BREHTZR=ZF MASEEELSRE
RBEERTHRGEN - BRI E2BES
VREETEH S - WAl ik =B AL &%
HAb 2R o fboh  EENMAEiZEEREE
BRERL - ASEETHETREZRZ  #
REERFEENREESREER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENmRE DM

PROSPECTS

Following the listing on the Stock Exchange on 11
December 2017, the Group, by leveraging on its capital,
has striven to develop as an operator for systematic
urban management engaging in environmental and
property management businesses in core regions around
the country. Currently, the Group has been actively
developing its business in the cities along the eastern
coast, as well as the regions along the Yangtze River by
extending the horizontal development of complementary
products and vertical development along the industrial
chain. The Group has gradually kick-started its acquisition
and investment activities. Against the backdrop of
global economic downturn, the Group will carry out
its acquisition activities in a prudent manner. With the
Group’s acquisition of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei and Hong Xin
and Nanjing Songzhu in August 2019, January 2020 and
March 2020 respectively, the expected profit contribution
from the acquisition and investment activities has
emerged in 2020.

As a leading service provider in the non-residential
property management service industry, the Group
will continue to build up its core competitiveness
in engineering technology. We endeavor to achieve
innovative development in engineering technology
with our ability to operate and maintain the online and
offline integrated engineering equipment and facility for
Shanghai Bund Ke Pu as well as professional resources
synchronization mechanism.

Furthermore, based on various technologies, such as
the Internet of Things, the Internet, 3D technology and
big data, the Group will continue to utilize its property
management business as a pilot business to develop a
self-owned open source smart building system, “Dynamic
Building Matrix" ("DBM"”) to manage the data of basic
status of buildings, which allows the provision of data
and information as well as professional service to relevant
parties, including property owners, property users,
managers and regulators. In 2020, we have achieved
the sales of DBM to customers in China and abroad.
The Group will ensure the stability and reliability of our
advanced technology, prudently expand the market in
China and abroad and gradually realize the output effect
of our technology investment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in China in January
2020, the Group has taken active measures to implement
the regulations and requirements issued by the local
government on the prevention and control of COVID-19,
and carry out all epidemic prevention work, focusing on
the health of the customers, users and employees and the
public security and social responsibilities. Although this
outbreak had a huge impact on the global economy, and
may inevitably continue to spread and affect the upstream
and downstream enterprises of the Group to varying
degrees, however, according to the current guidance of
domestic policies, the important role of sanitation and
property management in urban comprehensive services in
the epidemic will be recognized by the community. The
Group will continue to deepen its strategic positioning,
assess and measure the risks posed by the outbreak, and
identify and seize the opportunities in this crisis.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 58.6%
to approximately RMB763.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 from approximately RMB481.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in
revenue of approximately RMB249.7 million generated
from environmental sanitary services as a result of the
acquisition of Hong Xin, and (ii) the increase in revenue
generated from property management services increased
from approximately RMB481.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB514.1 million
for the Period.

Cost of services provided

The Group’s cost of services provided increased by
approximately 58.7% to approximately RMB646.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB407.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The increase in cost of service
provided was primarily due to (i) the increase in property
management services income which leads to the increase
in staff costs and sub-contracting staff costs; (ii) the
increase in environmental sanitary services income which
leads to the increase in labour costs; and (iii) the Group
continues to recruit more talented staff and provide
training for the existing staff to cope with the expansion
of operations.

BEENmRE DM
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENmRE DM

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately
58.0% to approximately RMB117.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB74.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 due to an
increase in revenue despite being partially offset by the
increase in the cost of services provided. Gross profit
margin was maintained at a stable level of approximately
15.4% for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2019.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and gains increased by
approximately 46.3% to approximately RMB9.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB6.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 due to the increase in government
grants.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately 35.1% to approximately RMB12.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB9.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was primarily due to the Group’s expansion in
business scale and entering into the urban environmental
sanitation market.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately
24.0% to approximately RMB71.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB58.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
increase in the administrative expenses was primarily
attributable to (i) increased staff cost with the Group’s
expansion in business scale and entering into the urban
environmental sanitation market; and (ii) the amortization
of intangible asset arising from the acquisition of Hong
Xin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest expenses

The interest expenses increased to approximately RMB5.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB1.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The increase in the interest expenses
was due to the increase in average bank borrowings for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
Share of profits of joint venture decreased to
approximately RMB1.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 from approximately RMB5.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019, which was primarily
due to the decrease in profits shared from Hefei Zheng
Wen.

Share of profits and losses of associates

Share of profits of associates increased to approximately
RMB11.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 from approximately RMB6.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 which was primarily due to
the increase in profits shared from Shanghai Xin Shi
Bei, Shanghai Xin Di, Ningbo Plaza, Anhui PuBang and
Nanjing Songzhu amounted to approximately RMB1.8
million, RMB1.3million, RMB1.0million, RMBO0.5 million
and RMBO0.4 million respectively.

Income tax expense

The income tax expenses increased to approximately
RMB12.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
from approximately RMB3.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The increase in income tax expense
was mainly due to (i) the increase in profit before tax
for the Period; and (ii) no further release of income tax
provision for the Period as compared with approximately
RMB3.3 million release of income tax provision for the
year ended 31 December 2019. For further details of the
above-mentioned income tax provision release, please
refer to Financial Information section of the Company’s
prospectus dated 28 November 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENmRE DM

Profit for the period and net profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, the net profit increased by
80.5% to approximately RMB37.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB20.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
net profit margin increased to 4.8% for the year ended
31 December 2020 from 4.3% for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Intangible assets and goodwiill

The intangible assets and goodwill primarily included
customer relationship and goodwill obtained from a
business combination. The intangible assets increased to
approximately RMB50.9 million as at 31 December 2020
from approximately RMB3.5 million as at 31 December
2019, which was primarily due to (i) an increase in
customer relationship as the Group acquired 51% equity
interest in Hong Xin in 2020; and (ii) partially offset by
the decrease in intangible assets due to the amortization
of customer relationship.

Trade Receivables

The trade receivables increased by approximately 42.7% to
approximately RMB143.0 million as at 31 December 2020
from approximately RMB100.2 million as at 31 December
2019, which primarily kept in line with the increased
revenue. The trade receivables turnover (average trade
receivables divided by revenue multiplied by 365 days) was
58.1 days (2019: 69.4 days).

Prepayments and other receivables

The prepayments and other receivables increased by
approximately 36.0% to approximately RMB65.8 million
as at 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB48.4
million as at 31
prepayment, deposits and other receivables is primarily
due to the increase in deposits paid for tendering,
prepayment to suppliers.

December 2019. The increase in

Trade payables

The trade payables increased by approximately 43.7% to
approximately RMB107.6 million as at 31 December 2020
from approximately RMB74.9 million as at 31 December
2019. The trade payables turnover (average trade
payables divided by cost of services provided multiplied
by 365 days) was 51.5 days (2019: 57.3 days).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other payables and accruals

The other payables and accruals increased by
approximately 9.5% to approximately RMB82.8 million
as at 31 December 2020 from approximately RMB75.6
million as at 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly
due to (i) the Group’s enlarged business scale with
the acquisition of Hong Xin; and (ii) the approximately
RMB15.9 million profit guarantee retention money
received from Ms. Wang Hui (£ %), one of the existing
shareholders of Hong Xin, who is also an executive
Director. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 9 September 2019 for further details, and (iii)
being partially offset by the decrease in receipts on
behalf of residents with the disposal of Anhui Bund.

Cash Flow

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the net cash from
operating activities was approximately RMB82.7 million.
The net cash used in investing activities for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB97.4
million, which was primarily used for the payment of the
acquisition of Hong Xin, Shanghai Xin Shi Bei, Bengbu
Zhi Xin and Nanjing Songzhu. The net cash used in
financing activities for the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately RMB2.0 million.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Other than certain property, plant and equipment with
carrying amount of approximately RMB6,320,000 as at
31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil) was pledged
to financing institutions. The Group had also pledged
and factored certain of its trade receivables with net
carrying amount of approximately RMB4,098,000 (31
December 2019: Nil) to secure the Group’s borrowings as
at 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENmRE DM

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB126.5 million. The
total interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
increased to approximately RMB100.1 million as at 31
December 2020 from RMB61.5 million as at 31 December
2019. The gearing ratio (total debts divided by total
equity) as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
30.0% (31 December 2019: 25.7%). The current ratio
(total current assets divided by total current liabilities) as
at 31 December 2020 was 1.2 (31 December 2019: 1.4).

Financial management and policy

The management has designed and implemented a risk
management policy to address various potential risks
identified in relation to the operation of the businesses,
including financial, operational and the interest risks
from the property management agreements. The risk
management policy sets forth procedures to identify,
analyse, categorise, mitigate and monitor various risks.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall risk
management system and assessing and updating, if
necessary. The risk management policy is reviewed on
a quarterly basis. The risk management policy also set
forth the reporting hierarchy of risks identified in the
operations.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors was not aware
of any significant events that would have resulted in
material contingent liabilities.

Subsequent Event

The Group does not have any material subsequent event
after 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.012 per Share for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “2020 Final Dividend”) with
a sum of approximately HK$4.9 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB4.1 million which is subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2020 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
11 June 2021 (the "AGM"). The 2020 Final Divided,
if approved, will be distributed on or about Friday, 16
July 2021 to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 23
June 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
8 June 2021 to Friday, 11 June 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 7 June
2021,

Subject to the approval of the proposed 2020 Final
Dividend from the Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 21 June 2021 to Wednesday, 23
June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered for ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed 2020 Final
Dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed 2020
Final Dividend, all transfer of Shares, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 June 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmRE DM

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FFEREBEFEARE

Net proceeds from the Listing (including the exercise of ZAARFIKEMNE X AHAEEMESRBEFE(E
the over-allotment options on 5 January, 2018), after $EF20184F1 A58 17 &9 B %8 At A% # - &30
deducting the underwriting commission and other KEEMAESUKLRE FHABNEMEHXE)
estimated expenses in connection with the Listing which 49 /&125.58 B8 L (I E R A R#104.98
the Company received amounted to approximately &7t) B4R EESAHA LEMEEMB11798
HK$125.5 million (equivalent to approximately RMB104.9 EE T(HEERH A RIS E6H E L) UK
million), comprising HK$117.9 million (equivalent to RETHEBERRKREMBITRHAE7.68
approximately RMB98.6 million) raised from the Listing BETHERHARE6IEET) °

and HK$7.6 million (equivalent to approximately RMB6.3

million) from the issue of shares pursuant to the exercise

of the over-allotment options, respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds from the #2020 12A31H ' FMASRE FELD &

Listing were utilized as follows: ERWMT:
Planned Use Proceeds
of Proceeds Used Balances
Fr 8 RIE 2EH
& AR 8 &IE R
HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
Use of proceeds FEREAR BEAETRT BEATT BEAET
Horizontal expansion by FRWE REKHET
acquisition, investment or BN EEER QT
forming business alliance AP R EITK
with property management  FiE 7
companies in the markets 42.7 42.7 —

Vertical expansion of both RMEEBITENESR
industry chain and supply W RHEEETAR

chain in the property "R

management industry 29.8 29.8 —
The development of f & EMBHE R4

information technology

system 19.8 19.8 —
Recruitment of talent and BEATREBEIN R

implementation of training 2t E|

and recruitment programs 16.3 16.3 =
Repayment of bank EERITEX

borrowings 5.0 5.0 —
General working capital —REEER 11.9 11.9 .

125.5 125.5 —

As of the date of this annual report, the net proceeds RAFREBH - LWABRIEFRHE BEE
from the Listing has been fully utilized and there was no 3 ° & &0 &2 7] B H 220176115288 89
change to the Group’s plan of use of proceeds as stated WRERFTM AR RIS REHERHE KT
in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 November {HIR{T (A& &) -

2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Quality and committed staff are valuable assets to the
Group's success. The primary objective of the Group’s
remuneration policy is to ensure there is an appropriate
level of remuneration to attract and retain experienced
people of high calibre to join the Group. The Group
links the remuneration of its employees to both the
Group's performance and individual performance, so
that the interests of the employees align with those of
the Company’s shareholders. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group employed approximately 4,432 employees.
To enhance the performance of the employees, the
Group provides its employees with adequate and
regular trainings. Employees’ remuneration package
comprises fixed and variable components including
salary, discretionary bonus and share options that may
be granted to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance.

BEENmRE DM

EERFMEE
EBEMMENBEINASERBNEEELE -
AEEFHBERNEERE ABERFT KT
HE EUARSIRBEBSEEELEHRAT N
BAEE - ASERKEEETHEAERE
BREARREN  HMSEERESEARARD
AR R AYRE 2 — B o PA2020F 128318 ¢ K
SEEANILINEREE - BREAEBRR
AEBEAEEERERREREI - EEFH
MEaeEEERkIEds  2EHFS B
BRARKL2EAEERARBARRER
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xiao Xingtao (E ®38), aged 71, a co-founder
of our Group with Mr. Fu. Mr. Xiao was appointed as
our Director on 27 July 2016, as the chairman of our
Board and re-designated as our executive Director on
24 October 2016. Mr. Xiao is responsible for strategy
planning and business development of our Group. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee of our
Group. Mr. Xiao is the father of Mr. Xiao YQ.

Mr. Xiao obtained a diploma degree in Chinese Language
from Shanghai Institute of Education* (/8% & 2F5x)
in the PRC in July 1985. He attended a training course
in economic study organised by the Graduate School of
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences* (/84 & &l 23
fiff 7T & 2B) in the PRC in March 1997. Mr. Xiao obtained
the qualification of senior economist upon completion of
the Integrated Economic Management Programme* (£
4R & B 32) organised by Shanghai Accreditation Board
for Senior Professionals in Economics (Production sector)*
(LBTRBRIN(EEER) SREERMBEERE
BFEZEE)in July 2003.

Prior to the establishment of our Group, Mr. Xiao had
worked in several state-owned enterprises. He joined
Jiangnan Shipyard* (T & & f &) (now known as Jiangnan
Shipyard (Group) Company Limited* GLEEM (@) B
PR & 2 F])) in November 1968 and acted as head of its
publicity department from October 1992 to June 1995. Mr.
Xiao first encountered the property management industry
when he served as an officer director of Shanghai Jiu Shi
Company* (L8 AHERF]), deputy general manager of
Shanghai Jiushi Company Bund Zhihuan Headquarters*
(EBAERR NGB B 4B I0) responsible for overall
operation and general management of Shanghai Bund
Housing Replacement Property Company Limited* (/&
NEEEBEBRYEEFRAR) (now known as Shanghai
Bund) from May 1995 to October 2002.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

With his knowledge and experience gained in property
management industry, Mr. Xiao established Pujiang
Property jointly with Mr. Fu in December 2002 for
carrying out property management business and served
as the chairman of the board and general manager since
its establishment. With the growth and expansion of our
Group, Mr. Xiao and Mr. Fu later established or acquired
other property management companies for carrying out
various property management projects and also set up
Pujiang Holding in June 2007 as their investment holding
vehicle for various property management companies and
other companies carrying out investment management
business and has been acting as its chairman since then.
Mr. Xiao currently holds directorships in Pujiang Property
and Shanghai Bund of our Group.

Mr. Xiao was awarded the independent innovation leading
talent* (B £ &I %8 % A7) by Shanghai Luwan District
Government* (/8 E &[@ A R BUT) in April 2008, the
golden prize of outstanding contribution to Shanghai Property
Management Industry* (E/8 ¥ ¥ EEITHE R EHER 2 12)
in January 2011 and the outstanding individual* (£ H A %) 2%)
by Shanghai Property Management Industry Society* (/&%)
EEBITEHE) in January 2015.

Mr. Fu Qichang (X &), aged 63, a co-founder of
our Group with Mr. Xiao and was appointed as our
executive Director and vice chairman of our Board on 24
October 2016. He is responsible for strategic planning
and business development of our Group. Mr. Fu is also a
member of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of our Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

Mr. Fu obtained a diploma degree in Accountancy from
Lixin Accountancy College of Professional Studies* (37
=& E R E) in the PRC in July 1983 and a Master
degree in Business Administration from Macau University
of Science and Technology (by distance learning) in
Macau, in February 2004. He obtained an executive
Master of Business Administration (Service Management)
(by distance learning) in Shanghai, the PRC offered by W.
P. Carey school of Business of Arizona State University in
May 2013.

Mr. Fu obtained the accountant qualification awarded by
Shanghai Accreditation Board for Middle Level Professionals
(Accountants) of the Shanghai Moto Industry Holding
Company* (EBMAETEBL ARG RIFREER
MBS ERTEELZED) in June 1992 and attended a
corporate finance course organised by Sino-Euro International
Business school* (FPEXEBR T &%) in August 1999. He
obtained the qualifications of senior business manager* (/= 4%
% E R AL A EE) awarded by Shanghai Business Talents
Training Center* (L8 M 2 A #F3I#H ) and Shanghai
Desirable Talent Training Projects Joint Conference Office* (=
BERATEINIEBEEZI L E) in February 2004
and corporate manager of national property management
upon completion of the National Property Management for
Corporate Manager Programme* (% B4 3 & 12 1 £ 48 12)
organised by Shanghai Property Industrial Education Centre* (=
BTEMEITEZHEFR L) in December 2001. Mr. Fu was
awarded the chief financial officer qualifying training certificate
by Shanghai National Accountants Institute in July 2013.

Prior to the establishment of our Group, Mr. Fu acted
as the deputy general manager and chief accountant in
Pudong Company of Shanghai Jiu Shi Company* (£ &
AZEAEAHEAA) and the deputy general manager of
Property Company of Shanghai Jiu Shi Company* (&
AE QT E QA from July 1997 to March 2003.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Fu currently holds directorships in several subsidiaries
of our Group, including Pujiang Property, Shanghai Bund,
Shanghai Bund Green, Shanghai Rui Zheng and Hong
Xin.

Mr. Fu was awarded the role model of the Shanghai
Labour Force* (LB M4 E)1E %) by Shanghai People’s
Government in April 2010, national role model of
the industry* (% Bl 17 2 & 2 ) by National Property
Management Society* (2B ¥ % B2 %) in September
2011, veteran professional manager of the Shanghai
property service industry* (/8T ¥ ¥ R ¥ & R B
#4318 A) by Shanghai Property Management Industry
Society in January 2012, Shanghai Huangpu district
professional and technical talents* (Z % & fiT L A )
by Shanghai Huangpu District Government* (/&M=
e ARBAT) in September 2012 and the outstanding
individual by Shanghai Property Management Industry
Society in January 2015.

Mr. Xiao Yuqiao (B F &), aged 38, was appointed as
our executive Director and chief executive officer on 24
October 2016. He is responsible for the overall operation
and management and execution of the policies of our
Group. Mr. Xiao YQ is also member of the remuneration
committee of our Group. Mr. Xiao YQ is the son of Mr.
Xiao.

Mr. Xiao YQ obtained a double degree in Philosophy and
Business Management from the State University of New
York at Stony Brook in the United States in May 2005.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

Mr. Xiao YQ has over ten years of experience in the
property management industry. He joined our Group in
February 2006 and had served as the general manager
of Shanghai Pujiang Sanging Property Co. Ltd* (L&
L= BYWHEABMRAF) (now known as Shanghai Rui
Zheng) until May 2012. He was the general manager of
Ningbo Plaza from May 2012 to December 2013. Mr.
Xiao YQ had served as the deputy general manager in
Pujiang Property since May 2012 and was subsequently
appointed as its director on 11 March 2016. He has been
the deputy general manager of Shanghai Bund since May
2012 and a director of Shanghai Jie Gu since May 2016.
Mr. Xiao YQ has also served as an executive director of
Pujiang Holding since January 2014. He is also a director
of Shanghai Bund Ke Pu, Shanghai Jiu Yi, Anhui Pu
Jing, Nantong Pu Sheng, Bengbu Zhi Xin, Shanghai Rui
Zheng, Hong Xin and Qidong Xingiao Property Company
Limited*(BUR 1 & W E B R 2 7).

Mr. Xiao YQ was awarded the outstanding individual
(15th anniversary) by China Property Management
Magazine* (R Bl % & B ) 35 4L) in July 2016.

Mr. Jia Shaojun (B2 E), aged 51, joined our Group
in December 2014 and has served as a deputy general
manager and chief officer of department of operation
and administration in Pujiang Property and Shanghai Bund
since then. He was appointed as our vice president on 24
October 2016, as our executive Director with effect from
7 May 2018, and as our joint company secretary of the
Company with effect from 20 May 2019. Mr. Jia is also
the director of Nantong Pu Sheng, Shanghai Bund Ke Pu,
Shanghai Jiu Yi, Anhui Pu lJing, Hong Xin and Qidong
Xingiao Property Company Limited* (AR #FT S W EER
~al).

Mr. Jia graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in ship
engineering from Dalian University of Technology* (X
EIE T KEZ) in July 1992 and a master’s degree in
professional accountancy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong (by distance learning) in December 2011. He
obtained the chief financial officer qualifying certificate
from the Shanghai National Accounting Institute in
August 2010.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jia has over 20 years of experience in strategy
planning and corporate management before joining our
Group in December 2014. He was a deputy head of the
department of operation and management of Shanghai
Waigaogiao Shipbuilding Company Limited* ( £ /& 4p
=EEMARADF) from June 1996 to October 2005.
He served as an assistant to the president and head
of planning and management department of Jiangsu
Rongsheng Heavy Industry Company Limited* (JT &k /& 8%
BT AR AT from November 2005 to March 2008 and
was its deputy president from April 2008 to March 2010.
Mr. Jia was the president and head of economics and
operation department of Rongsheng Machinery Company
Limited* (/& BX # # & R 2 A1) from March 2010 to
March 2011 and its president from May 2013 to June
2014. Mr. Jia was a deputy general manager of Zhonglian
Heavy Machinery Company Limited* (B 2 # % 15 A IR
2~ \]) from July 2014 to November 2014.

Ms. Wang Hui (£ %), aged 47, was appointed as our
executive Director on 20 November 2020.

Ms. Wang has obtained a degree in Economics
Management from the University of Science and
Technology Beijing* (dt R E £ K 2) in 1997. She is
currently part of the Executive Committee of Fuzhou
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the Executive
Vice President of Dazhou General Chamber of
Commerce and a member of the Eighth Committee of
Taijiang District, Fuzhou City, Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. On 5 July 2000, Ms. Wang
founded Hong Xin (formerly known as Fuzhou Hongxin
Cleaning Company Limited* (&8 MJBLRRRBR A A,
Fuzhou Hongxin Pest Control Company Limited*
(FBMELIRB E £ 88 R A F]) and Fuzhou Hongxin
Environmental Cleaning Service Company Limited* (4&
ML FRIR R E R IR B BR 2 F])) and she has been
acting as the director and the legal person since its
incorporation. On 3 January 2020, the Group acquired
51% equity interest in Hong Xin. Since then, Hong Xin
has become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and Ms. Wang has also been acting as the
chairperson of Hong Xin.
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EENGHREEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yongjun (5& # &), aged 45, has been
appointed as our non-executive Director with effect from
7 May 2018.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University* (_E/8 X # X&) with a bachelor’'s degree
in cranes, transportation machinery and mechanical
engineering in July 1996 and a master’'s degree in
business administration in July 2003.

Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in investment and
corporate management. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked as the senior investment manager in Shanghai
Galaxy Digital Investment Co., Ltd.* (£ /8 E A &B L E
B R A R]) from January 2003 to March 2006. He served
as the assistant director of the investment department
at Shanghai Industrial Investment (Shanghai) Company
Limited* (FEEIE(L)8)BR2AA) from April 2006
to April 2008. He was the deputy general manager of
Runfeng Investment Group Shanghai Investment Co.,
ltd* ((HLREEB LEBREBRAT) from April
2008 to May 2009. Since June 2009, he has served as
the director and head of the investment department
of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Shanghai) Company
Limited* (FE& 3 (E/E)BRAF]). He has served as
the assistant president of Shanghai Overseas International
Trading Company Limited* (/&8 SN2 &) since January
2019.

Currently, Mr. Zhang serves as a director of Weifang City
Water Supply Company Limited* (#37 T B K KBER A
Al), Shanghai Qingpu Second Sewage Treatment Plant
Company Limited* (EB 5 RFE 5 KEERERA
7l), SIIC Properties Group (Shanghai) Limited* (EE &
¥ £E(LF)BBR2AA) and Shanghai SIC Investment
Development Company Limited* (/8 FE &R & % R
B BR/A7]). He also serves as the vice board chairman
of Qihua Company Limited* (B{ZE B R A Al), the board
chairman of Shanghai Nanyang Plywood Company
Limited* (E/8MFBARAER 2 F) and Lu An Xinshi
Asset Management Company Limited* (N &ZZEEEE
B AR AF]). He is also on the board of supervisors of
SIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Company Limited.*
(FERBER(RZE)EBR AR, a subsidiary of SIIC
Environment Holdings Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 807) and the Singapore Exchange
Limited (stock code: BHK)).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheng Dong (# %), aged 58, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 15 November
2017. He is responsible for overseeing the management
of our Group independently. He is also the chairman of
the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of our Group.

Mr. Cheng graduated with a Bachelor degree in
management engineering from Tongji University
(FE X&) in the PRC in July 1984 and Master degree
in economic informatics from Academy for Computer
Science and Computer executives* (Akademie fur Fach-
und Fihrungskrafte der Informatik) in Germany in May
1995.

Mr. Cheng was accredited as an organisational
programmer and economic informatics scientist by the
Chambers of Industry and Commerce Region Stuttgart*
(Industrie-und Handelskammer Region Stuttgart) in
Germany in November 1992 and December 1992
respectively.

Mr. Cheng was a teacher at the school of economics and
Management at the Tongji University (&% XZ) from
July 1984 to January 1990. From March 1992 to June
1995, he served as an software engineer and project
manager at Yingta Information technology Company
Limited, Germany* ({2 B & % #& 1 #2 % {» 2 7)) and was
the company’s chief representative at its representative
office in PRC between June 1995 and May 1998. He
had served as the general manager of Shanghai Yingta
Information Technology Company Limited* (& /&&=
BT ABR Q7). Mr. Cheng is currently holding senior
positions in several companies in the PRC including legal
representative (J& AfX ) of Shanghai Entai Business
and Trading Company Limited* (F 5B ZHEBRA
A]) since May 1996, chairman of Shanghai Yingta Health
Management Company Limited* (/8RB FEEIREE
R 2 |]) since November 2008, and general manager of
Anpac Bio-Medical Science Company Limited (% J& &t 4
2R (L8)BRAR) since April 2014.

EENEAREEE

BIYkHITES

BERLEE 585 R2017F11AHEZ T
ARMOBIIENTES HEEBLEE
AEEEEREE BROAALAEETWNEES X
ELAREZZEGRIEREZEENE -

BRELEMIBIFTAEXRNTREANRBAE
WESEEIRZ2 T2 WHI1995%5H
EEEAERMEBEAERSRABER
(Akademie fur Fach-und Fuhrungskrafte der
Informatik) L BEEEBE LB o

BAEEDRIMNI1992F 113 &1992F12 7 &
ERHE M E T A2 (Industrie-und
Handelskammer Region Stuttgart) 3 7] A& #H
BEFTRIAMREEEEREZER o

29 A B1984F 78 E1990F 1A R A B K 2
KEEEESRMABHBA - B1992F3A &
199568 + R BB AFENERMDQF
EASMGTEARIBELRE - W M1995F6H
Z1998FSAHEETZ AN TERREDN
BEAREX HERLEESREEFERMAERA
AIEEREE - BAEEBENNFREZERA
FTREIE BEB1996FSARETLER
ZHEBRAFMEANREK - B2008F11A8
BETLERERREEEAERAFINESR
RBE2014F4AREARKREIAEMEER K (£
H)BR NGB o

SEITHREERARAR F82020 87



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

Mr. Weng Guogqiang ($ B &), aged 60, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 15
November 2017. He is responsible for overseeing the
management of our Group independently. He is also
member of the audit committee, nomination committee
and remuneration committee of our Group.

Mr. Weng graduated with a Bachelor degree in Applied
Mathematics from the Tongji University in the PRC in July
1982 and a Master degree in Public Administration from
the University of Macau in Macau in September 2003.

Mr. Weng was accredited as a National Vocational
Qualification Level 2 Vocational Management
Professional* (BIXB X ER —HABE L A) in May
2003 and a Level 1 Senior Vocational Management
Professional* (— # = A B 2 «£ 32 A) in September 2004
by the Shanghai Vocational Skill Testing Authority* (I
T B 2 R REZE F H ). Mr. Weng was also accredited
as a Certified Property Manager by the Personnel
Department of Shanghai* (LMW AE/®E) in October
2006 and an Advanced Economist* (75 & £ & Bl) by the
Personnel Department of Jiangsu Province* (T & & AS
EE) in September 2009.

Mr. Weng has extensive experience in the property
management industry in Shanghai for over 18 years.
He had served as a general manager of Shanghai
Lujiazui Property Management Co., Ltd. (/& FE R
MEEEABRAF) from October 1999 to May 2008
and as a general manager of Wuxi Dongzhou Property
Management Company Limited* (£ 5 &R M ¥ % & 2
BB AR from May 2008 to December 2009. Since
January 2010, Mr. Weng has taken up the positions of
general manager and subsequently executive director at
the Shanghai Tonglai Property Management Company
Limited* (L /B RAMEEIEBR A A).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence (& # ¥ ), aged 48, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director
on 15 November 2017. He is responsible for overseeing
the management of our Group independently. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of
our Group.

Mr. Shu graduated with a Bachelor degree in Business
(Accounting) from Deakin University in Australia in
September 1994. He qualified as a certified practising
accountant in Australia in May 1997 and became an
associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants in
September 1997. Mr. Shu attended the chief financial
officer programme offered by China Europe International
Business School from July to November 2009.

Mr. Shu has over 20 years of experience in audit,
corporate finance and financial management. He joined
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as an accountant
in March 1994 and later became a manager of Deloitte’s
reorganisation service group in April 2000. Mr. Shu
joined Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Limited
and served as its manager from July 2001 to November
2002. Mr. Shu worked as an associate director in
Goldbond Capital (Asia) Limited from November 2002 to
April 2005. He served as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Texhong Textile Group Limited (X
W4 EB AR AA) (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 02678) from May 2005 to
July 2008. Mr. Shu was employed as the chief financial
officer of Jiangsu Rongsheng Heavy Industries Company
Limited* (/L & /& 8% & T A R 2 Al ) overseeing its
financial management functions and corporate finance
activities as well as the daily management of its finance
department from July 2008 to June 2010. Mr. Shu served
as the chief financial officer of Petro-king Oilfield Services
Limited (B M AERBBER A F) (@ company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code 02178) since
July 2010 to July 2018. Mr. Shu has served as the chief
financial officer of Brainhole Technology Limited (formerly
known as Top Dynamic International Holdings Limited)
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code: 02203) since August 2018 to November 2019. Mr.
Shu is currently the chief financial officer of Contiocean
Environment Tech Company Limited* ( I /& [& 1 & 1R
®l £ B BR A Al), primarily responsible for its financial
and investment division. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Chengdu Expressway Co., Ltd. (A &P
BIRANEM DB R RA]) (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 01785), Twintek Investment
Holdings Limited (Z B & EE R ER A7) (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 06182)
and Goldstream Investment Limited (£/8 &% EB R A
A]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code 01328) since November 2016, December 2017 and
December 2019 respectively. He has been served as a
member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association since May 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Cheung Kam Mei, Helen (3R £ ), aged 59, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on
1 May 2019.

Ms. Cheung obtained a Bachelor of Laws from University
of London in 1999 and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from University of Hong Kong in 2000. She is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong, a member of the Law Society of
Hong Kong since 2002, a member of the Law Society
of England and Wales since 2003 and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since 2005.
Ms. Cheung has 3 years of experience in the corporate
governance and company secretarial field.

Mr. Jia Shaojun (E 4 &), aged 51, was appointed
as the joint company secretary of the Company on 20
May 2019. The biographical details of Mr. Jia are set out
under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” of the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Cai Yufei (&), aged 36, joined our Group
in August 2017 as assistant to chief financial officer
and was appointed as our chief financial officer on 1
May 2019. He is responsible for overseeing accounting
activities.

Mr. Cai obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics with a
major in Finance from Tongji University ([F] & X £28) in 2007.

Mr. Cai has over ten years of experience in auditing,
financial management and corporate financing. Prior in
joining our Group, he worked as a senior associate at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhongtian LLP from August 2007
to January 2010. He served as deputy director of finance
department in Tat Hong Zhaomao Investment Holding Co.,
Ltd.* (ZFE LI EEEARAQAF) from January 2010 to
November 2016 and was its head of corporate financing
department from December 2016 to August 2017.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Vice President
Ms. Zhu Hong (% 4L), aged 56, is responsible for
managing the operations of Shanghai Xin Di.

Ms. Zhu graduated with a diploma degree in Basic
organic synthesis from Shanghai Chemical Industry
College* (E/B{EETEERERK) in the PRC in July
1984 and a Master degree in Business Administration (by
distance learning) from Macau University of Science and
Technology in June 2004.

Ms. Zhu qualified as a corporate manager of the national
property management upon completion of the National
Property Management for Corporate Manager Programme
organised by Shanghai Property Industrial Education Centre
in May 2003, a national property manager by the Shanghai
Human Resources and Social Security Bureau* (/& A 7
BRMEZRER) in September 2011 and an engineer
by Shanghai Engineering Technology Management Middle
Level Professional and Professional and Technical Title
Qualification Evaluation Committee* (_F /& L2 R 5l
BEREETREXRMBEEBRERITETEES) in
November 2014.

Ms. Zhu had been engaged in the property management
business for nearly 20 years. Ms. Zhu served as an
assistant to the general manager in Shangshi Property
Management Company Limited* (/8 FEW¥ERE
fR 22 ®]) from July 1996 to January 2001.

Ms. Zhu joined our Group and was appointed as the
office director of Pujiang Property in August 2003,
deputy general manager of Pujiang Property and
Shanghai Bund since April 2006. Ms. Zhu was appointed
as a deputy general manager of Anhui Bund on 1 January
2013 and became its director on 15 February 2016. She
has served as an assistant to the director of Pujiang
Holding since January 2009. Ms. Zhu was appointed as
our vice president on 24 October 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

Ms. Zhu was recognised as an expert for the Shanghai
Property Management Bidding and Tendering*
(EBETYREERBKREFEFZEEZER) by the Shanghai
Housing and Land Resources Management Bureau*
(EFBmMERLHEREIEB) from September 2006 to
September 2008 and a procurement evaluation expert
of Shanghai People’s Government* (/& ™ B fF £% B8
% B X) by Shanghai Finance Bureau* (L& B
/&). She was awarded the veteran professional manager
of Shanghai Property Service Industry by Shanghai
Property Management Industry Society in January 2012
and the outstanding individual by Shanghai Property
Management Industry Society in January 2015.

Mr. Bai Min (B ), aged 49, is responsible for managing
business development and day-to-day business of our Group.

Mr. Bai graduated with a Bachelor degree in Business and
Corporate Management from Hubei Province economic
Management Cadre Institute* (J# 4t & & 7% & 12 % 30
E2[%) in the PRC in January 2009, a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Marketing) from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University in the PRC in January 2012 and a Master
degree* (F/B% B KE) in Business Administration (by
distance learning) from City University of Macau in July
2015.

Mr. Bai obtained the qualification of national property
manager by Shanghai Human Resources and social
security Bureau in October 2010.

Mr. Bai had worked in various property management
companies in Shanghai for over 10 years before joining
our Group in April 2009. Mr. Bai was a property manager
of Shanghai Yuntai Property Management Company
Limited* (E /B ERMEETIEBRAA]) from April 1997
to August 2000. He was a senior director in Shanghai Kai
Shing Property Management Service Company Limited*
(EBRBYWEETERBERAF) from August 2000
to December 2000. He was employed as an assistant to
general manager of the integrated centre and deputy
general manager of the property department of Shanghai
Minghua Property Company* (/8B ZE Y % QA &]) from
February 2001 to July 2005. He was the general manager
of Yangshan district and deputy general manager of the
quality control department of Shanghai New Century
Property Service Company Limited* (/& 1t 42 &5 & IR
% A BR A A]) from August 2005 to March 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Bai joined our Group as the general manager of our
estates management office of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China in April 2009 which was managed by
Pujiang Property. He was then seconded to serve as the
general manager of the Shanghai World Expo in January
2010. Since January 2011, he has served as an assistant
to the general manager and chief property officer in
Pujiang Property. Mr. Bai has been serving as a deputy
general manager of Anhui Bund since 1 January 2013,
and director and deputy general manager in Shanghai
Xin Di since June 2015. Mr. Bai was appointed as our vice
president on 24 October 2016.

Mr. Bai was awarded the outstanding individual by
Shanghai Property Management Industry Society* (/&
YIHEERITEWE) in January 2015 and is an expert of
5th Council of Shanghai Property Management Industry
Society* (LB X ERBTEMEELEESS)
since December 2015.

Mr. Xu Wenzhang (# X &), aged 51, is responsible
for managing development and day-to-day business of
our Group.

Mr. Xu graduated with a Bachelor degree in Power
Mechanical Engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in the PRC in July 1983 and a Master degree in
Management from Norwegian School of Management B
in Norway (by distance learning) in January 2000.

Prior to joining our Group in November 2015, Mr. Xu
had worked at a number of international corporations
in property management sector for over 25 years. Mr.
Xu was the property engineering senior manager in
American International Group (AIG) from March 1990
to February 2005. He was the chief property officer in
Shanghai Alison Group Company Limited and general
manager in Shanghai Alison Property Management
Service Company Limited from February 2005 to January
2007. Mr. Xu held the position of national facilities
manager (associate director) in Jones Lang LaSalle
Surveyors (Shanghai) Company Limited from February
2007 to September 2008. He served as a director of
facilities management of Accor Greater China in Accor
Hotels Group from September 2008 to December 2015.
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EENGHREEE

Mr. Xu joined our Group in November 2015 and has
served as the chief technical officer in Pujiang Holding
since then and deputy general manager of Pujiang
Property since January 2016. He was appointed as our
vice president on 24 October 2016.

Mr. Chen Jie (BRiZ), aged 51, is responsible for the
operation of engineering facilities’ management services
of our Group.

Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor degree in industrial
and civil engineering from Tongji University ([ & A &)
in 1992. He is currently a member of Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) . During the period from
2016 to 2018, he acted as the vice minister of facility
experts’ committee of Shanghai Property Management
Industry Society* (L BMEEERHEXRBERMEER
Z E=). From 2010 to 2011, he was engaged in the
compilation of Shanghai local standards of Property
service specification of hospital DB31/T502-2010 (& Pt
) % R 7% #8 81DB31/T502-2010)) and Property service
specification of industrial zone DB31/T562-2011 ({ T %
B & ) 3 IR 7% & ¥ AR $8DB31/7562-2011)).

Mr. Chen joined our Group in July 2018 and was
appointed as our vice president in January 2020. Mr.
Chen has worked in the property management industry
for over 20 years. From 1998 to 2003, he served as a
regional manager of Guanghua Service Industry (China)
Company Limited* (X ZERBE X (FE) BRAF) and
thereafter, he served as the general manager of Shanghai
SF Service Industries Company Limited* (/8 FE¥ %
AR 75 A% 15 B BR 2 A1) from 2003 to 2018 until he joined
our Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to establishing good corporate
governance practices and ensuring integrity, transparency
and comprehensive disclosure. The Board believes that
such commitment is beneficial to safeguard the interests
of the Company and its shareholders.

The Board has adopted the CG Code as set out in of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange since 11 December 2017 (the “Listing
Date”). The Board is pleased to report compliance with
the code provisions of the CG Code from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. In response to specific enquiry made by the
Company, each of the Directors confirmed that he had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises:
Executive Directors Mr. Xiao Xingtao
(Chairman)
Mr. Fu Qichang
Mr. Xiao Yugiao
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jia Shaojun

Ms. Wang Hui
Non-Executive Director : Mr. Zhang Yongjun
Independent : Mr. Cheng Dong

Non-Executive Directors ~ Mr. Weng Guogiang
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence

Mr. Xiao is the father of Mr. Xiao YQ. Save for the family
relationship between Mr. Xiao and Mr. Xiao YQ, there
was no financial,
relationship among the Directors.

business, family or other material
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AREARE

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his independence of the Company and
the Company considers each of them to be independent
in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS

According to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation
of the majority of the Directors, either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

The Company generally convenes at least four regular
Board meetings a year. During the Period, four Board
meetings were convened for the following purposes:—

1. reviewed and approved the 2019 annual report of
the Company and its related results announcement
and documents;

2. reviewed and approved the 2020 interim report of
the Company and its related results announcement
and documents;

3. having considered the recommendations from the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and the experience, qualifications
and background of Ms. Wang Hui, approved the
appointment of Ms. Wang Hui as executive Director
effective from 20 November 2020, her remuneration
package and the terms of her service contract with
the Company;

4. decided to dispose of all of the Company’s 51%
indirect interests in Anhui Bund to Anhui Wan Tou
Property Company Limited* (Z BB EXER
HE R 7A]). For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 22 December
2020;

5. reviewed and considered various projects and
investment opportunities that have arisen and/or
undertaken by the Company during the Period; and

6. reviewed, discussed and considered the Group’s

affairs, including strategic plans, financial affairs,
progress and updates of business performance.
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Attendance at Meetings of the Board and EEERESZESCERLERE
Board Committees

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend for the year ended 31

December 2020
B Z2020F12831BLEE
HE/AEREEEERE
Annual

Audit Remuneration = Nomination General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEgF Exg EREEE FMEEE RE2ZEE REBEKE
Executive Directors
HITEE
Xiao Xingtao 4/4 N/A N/A il 17
B s TER i
Fu Qichang 4/4 N/A 2/2 il il
BHE A
Xiao Yugiao 4/4 N/A 2/2 N/A il
ER TER NiE A
Jia Shaojun 4/4 N/A N/A N/A il
EJE TER TE A @A
Wang Hui (Note) 2/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A
TEH7) NE A NE R TEA THEHA
Non-executive Director
FHTEE
Zhang Yongjun 4/4 N/A N/A N/A ”n
REELE TER NiE R i A
Independent Non-executive Director
BUHHTEE
Cheng Dong 4/4 2/2 2/2 il il
BE
Weng Guogiang 3/4 1/2 2/2 il il
S
Shu Wa Tung Laurence 3/4 2/2 1/2 0/1 11
ER
Note: Kt -

Ms. Wang Hui was appointed as an executive Director on 20 November T EZ £ /H2020F 11200 EZ T A —ZHITEE -
2020.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the management of the
Company, which includes formulating business strategies,
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The
Board reserves power for decisions concerning all
major matters which include, inter alia, the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or
substantial shareholder(s)), appointment of Directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

The Board is also entrusted with the overall responsibility
of developing, maintaining and reviewing sound and
effective corporate governance policies within the Group
and is committed to ensuring that corporate governance
functions are carried out in accordance with the CG
Code, including continuously reviewing and improving
the corporate governance practices within the Group.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services
and advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been
established and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.

Every Board member has full access to the advice
and services of the company secretary with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
As at the date of the report, Mr. Xiao Xingtao is the
Chairman while Mr. Xiao Yugiao is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Xiao Xingtao is the father of
Mr. Xiao Yugiao.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board. The chief executive officer focuses on the overall
operation and management and execution of the policies
of our Group. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All executive Directors and non-executive Director
have entered into a service contract with our Company
for an initial fixed term of three years and renewable
automatically until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other expiring at the end of the initial term or any time
thereafter. All independent non-executive Directors are
appointed from the date of the Listing until terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the Company or the respective Director.

The current articles of association of the Company
provide that subject to the manner of retirement by
rotation of directors as from time to time prescribed by
the Listing Rules, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation and that every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development,
the Company recommends Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. All Directors also participate in continuous
professional development programmes to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their
contribution to the Board.

All the Directors have confirmed in writing they had
participated in continuous professional developments
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as
directors during the Period.
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The below table summarises the participation of Directors TXBMIEZ AL BEHB A2 ME I L E
in training and continuous professional development ZEHEZEREHBMN o
during the Period under review.

Types of Continuous Professional Development
FESXBERR
Received an
introduction
regarding the

Reading responsibilities
Material regarding and obligations
regulatory update under the Listing Attending
and corporate Rules and seminars/
governance relevant statutory conferences/
Name of Directors matters requirements forums
EERE
EHRAK
HMEEEEE MEZEEER
BEFREEER EEAENBER HESNwE
EspE EHHMH BEESH =V k-
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Xiao Xingtao v v
HES L L
Mr. Fu Qichang v v
BHEXRAE
Mr. Xiao Yugiao v v
HT&EE
Mr. Jia Shaojun v v
Ms. Wang Hui v v
FTExL
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. Zhang Yongjun v v
REE LA
Independent non-executive
Directors
BIYFHITES
Mr. Cheng Dong v v
BREE
Mr. Weng Guogiang 4 v
HEREE
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence v v v
HERLE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) was established on 15 November 2017
comprising 3 independent non-executive Directors, who
have reviewed the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020. All of them have
appropriate professional qualifications and one of them
has accounting expertise. Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. No member of the
Audit Committee is a member of the former or existing
auditor of the Company. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available at the Company’s website
and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for, inter alia,
the following matters:

(@) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
system, internal control procedures and risk
management;

(b) reviewing the terms of engagement and making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor
of the Company;

(¢) reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard; and

(d) monitoring the integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing any
significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them.

NRIERWE

EREEY
RATR2017ENAERIEREZES (B
REE®]) BERZESHIBRBUFENITE
EHEK HEEEREE2020F12A318 1
FEZRAVBRE 2BXNEVHEBELEE
BEERREF—EZHECHER - GFER
EERBRBREESITE WMEBEZRZETK
BAAXARAENKIBEZEAMAOKE - Fix
ZEEMBESE ARG AU KR
HWukER] -

ENZER@IRAR(AFEBE)ATES:

@@ EBEBARAMNMBEHBHE NIFEE
RN R R E R

(b) BRI 5 K Kb AN R A) SN EE A 2R A &Y
ZE -EFZEREBREAESTSREMRZ

2% .
[EE2

o

]

(0 RITEEMER 2 & ERINE & BE

ERBUREREZBRERTAM R

5

d ERXRIANVBRERARAFRR
fRE - RHBRER(NE R E AT )
FERENDEN  TEHNEPAEAN
1] & KB 5 & H -

SETHREERARAR €252020 101



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AREARE

During the Period, the Audit Committee convened two
meetings and performed the following work:

1. reviewed the 2020 annual report and the 2020
interim report of the Company and their related
preliminary results announcements;

2. reviewed and discussed the auditor’s report to the
Audit Committee in respect of 2020 annual audit;

3. reviewed and recommended the re-appointment
of the external auditors, taking into account its
independence;

4. reviewed and discussed the internal control reports;

5. reviewed and discussed the 2020 annual audit plan
of the Group.

The Audit Committee has met with the external auditors
twice during the Period without the presence of the
executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) was established on
15 November 2017 comprising five members, namely
2 executive Directors, Mr. Fu Qichang and Mr. Xiao
Yugiao and 3 independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Cheng Dong, Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence and Mr.
Weng Guogiang. Mr. Cheng Dong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for,
inter alia, the following matters:

(@) establishing and reviewing the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;
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determining the specific remuneration packages
of all executive directors of the Group and senior
management;

reviewing and approving compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that such
arrangements are determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

advising shareholders of the Company with respect
to any service contracts of directors that require
shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules.

During the Period, the Remuneration Committee
convened two meetings and performed the following

work:

(a)

to review the remuneration package of the newly
appointed executive Director, namely Ms. Wang
Hui, having regard to the remuneration policy of the
Company and made recommendations to the Board,;
and

to review the draft plan of grant of Shares to
selected employees of the Group under the Share
Award Scheme adopted by the Company on 30
August 2018 and made recommendations to the
Board.

Details of the fees and other emoluments paid or payable
to the Directors and the details of the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (excluding
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in details in Notes 8 to the audited consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

NRIERWE

EAREEERBRTEZTLSREERE

(b) EXE
ZEBFMEFE:

© BRRBAEREETHAXEMFELR
SEMEEMSROEERHE - KRR
RERHEAMANGERET - B REY
REMANKRET BREENAS
BEE R

d BETHRMBETEARERRMLENE
MEERBELOAARARREHREZE -

HERN FTHWEZESBAMALH LRTT
AT

(a) #&EREAR ) H B IR 2 B ¥ (Ean 1T
EFEIEZNI2HMEE YRNEFE
EITEZ R

(b) TR E AR DQAFI2018FE8A30F FH M 2
KHrEBAERMETEERTRONE
RO VREEFSHETES -

RE Z2020F12A31MBIEFE > EN K EHN
B HMME 2 HF B REEE
KEMTBERER) ZCHFMFBEFHIRNEE
MM EEZGLE M B HREM ES -

SETHREERARAR €2020 103



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AREARE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company
(the "Nomination Committee”) was established on
15 November 2017 comprising five members, namely
2 executive Directors, Mr. Xiao Xingtao and Mr. Fu
Qichang and 3 independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Cheng Dong, Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence and Mr. Weng
Guogiang. Mr. Xiao Xingtao is currently the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for,
inter alia, the following matters:

(@) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

(b) developing and formulating relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors;

() making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors;
and

(d) assessment of the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of
selecting and recommending candidates for directorships
by making reference to the balance of expertise, skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of such individuals, business
requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

During the Period, the Nomination Committee convened
one meeting.

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee
considered the qualifications, experience and background
of Ms. Wang Hui having regard to the business strategy
of the Group and recommended the appointment of
Ms. Wang Hui as an executive Director to the Board for
consideration.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
(“Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board. The Company embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. Pursuant to the board diversity
policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of aspects,
including, but not limited to, gender, regional and
industry experience, skills, knowledge and educational
background. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 9
directors. Three of them are independent non-executive
directors, thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
age, industry experience, professional background and
skills. The following tables further illustrate the diversity
of the Board members as of the date of this annual
report:
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A E-= AN
NAEIERRE
Age Group Ethnicity
FirR A =3

Other,
Name of Director 30 to 39 40 to 49 50 to 59 Above 60 Chinese if applicable
BExps 302395 40F49m 50E59m  60m U E 25 Ha(wER)
Xiao Xingtao 4 v
HER
Fu Qichang v v
BHE
Xiao Yugiao v v
BET®
Jia Shaojun 4 v
Wang Hui v v
Zhang Yongjun v v
REE
Cheng Dong v v
Y
Weng Guogiang 4 v
HEE
Shu Wa Tung Laurence v v
HER

The nomination committee will review the Diversity EZZE @B RNEEREHNZTILHE - N
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. MREBRML -
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report) for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and the Board has prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. The responsibility of the external auditor is to
form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on
those consolidated financial statements prepared by the
Board and to report their opinion to the Shareholders. A
statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has developed the Group's internal control,
risk assessment and management systems and has
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an
adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Group. It evaluates
the effectiveness of the systems at least annually to
ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring
and management of risks associated with its business
activities. The Group’s internal control system is designed
to provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment
of business objective. The system includes a defined
management structure with segregation of duties and a
cash management system such as monthly reconciliation
of bank accounts.
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The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls and is of the opinion that the
resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate
and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it
and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with
present internal controls of the Group.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) was entered into by Partner Summit, Vital
Kingdom, Mr. Xiao, Source Forth, Mr. Fu, Pine Fortune
and Mr. Chen, the Controlling Shareholders in favour
of the Company on 28 November 2017, pursuant to
which each of the Controlling Shareholders will not, and
will procure any of its/his associates and any company
directly or indirectly controlled by him/it (not include
any member of the Group) not to either on his/its own
or in conjunction with any body corporate, partnership,
joint venture or other contractual agreement, whether
directly or indirectly, whether for profit or not, carry
on, participate in, hold, engage in, acquire or operate,
or provide any form of assistance to any person, firm
or company (except members of the Group) to conduct
any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
may compete with the business presently carried on
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other
business that may be carried on by any of them from
time to time during the term of the Deed of Non-
Competition, in Hong Kong or the PRC and such other
places as the Company or any of its subsidiaries may
conduct or carry on business from time to time, including
but not limited to provision of property management
services and other related services. Details of the Deed
of Non-Competition are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 28 November 2017.
In order to ensure that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with the Deed of Non-Competition, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed
the status of compliance by way of confirmation by
individual Controlling Shareholder and confirmed that
the Controlling Shareholders have complied with all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of
the Company in respect of audit for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB1,600,000.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Kam Mei (“Ms. Cheung”) was appointed as
the company secretary of the Company on 1 May 2019.
Mr. Jia Shaojun (“Mr. Jia") was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 20 May 2019.
The biographical details of Ms. Cheung and Mr. Jia are
set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020,
Ms. Cheung and Mr. Jia have complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for communication between the
Shareholders and the Board. An annual general meeting
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM").

— Right to convene extraordinary general

meeting

Any one or more members holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition sent to the Company’s principal
office as set out in the manner below, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition.
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The written requisition must state the purposes
of the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposit it to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company at the Company’s principal place
of business at 4/F, Cheung Hing Industrial Building,
12P Smithfield, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong and
such may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s
branch share registrars in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company
will ask the Board to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered members. On
the contrary, if the request has been verified is
not in order, the Shareholders will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed by the Company to the
requisitionist(s).

The notice period to be given to all the registered
members for consideration of the proposal raised
by the requisitionist(s) concerned at the EGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

— At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and
not less than 10 business days) if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the
Company;

Right to put enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent
by post to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its Shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders. The Company endeavors to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At annual general meetings,
Directors are available to meet Shareholders and answer
their enquiries. The Company discloses information and
publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the Listing Rules, the relevant
laws and regulations.

There has been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents since the Listing Date.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Except for the adoption of new memorandum and
articles of association by the Company to comply
with the applicable legal and regulatory requirements
(including the Listing Rules) on 15 November 2017 and
with effect from the date of the Listing, there were no
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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The Directors of the Company have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is property
management. Details of the principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organized into
business units based on their services and the Group has
two reportable operating segments which is engaged in
(a) property management services and (b) urban sanitary
services. Management monitors the results of the
Group's operating segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Details of the operating segment information of the
Company during the year are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Since all of the Group’s revenue were generated from
providing property management services and urban
sanitary services in China and all of the Group’s non-
current assets were located in Mainland China, no
geographical information in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments is presented.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Net proceeds from the Listing (including the exercise of
the over-allotment options on 5 January, 2018), after
deducting the underwriting commission and other
estimated expenses in connection with the Listing which
the Company received amounted to approximately
HK$125.5 million (equivalent to approximately RMB104.9
million), comprising HK$117.9 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB98.6 million) raised from the Listing
and HK$7.6 million (equivalent to approximately RMB6.3
million) from the issue of shares pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment options, respectively.
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As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds from the
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EEHREE

R2020F12A31H WA RIEFREDE

Listing were utilized as follows: ERWAT:
Planned use Proceeds
Use of proceeds FEeREAR of proceeds Used Balances
B RE 2ER
T8 AR 8 RIE i
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEET BEETT
Horizontal expansion by FRWE  REKHET
acquisition, investment or 5 AR Y EEIRRA]
forming business alliance AR SR R ETTOK
with property management &7
companies in the markets 42.7 427 —
Vertical expansion of both RMEEBITENESE
industry chain and supply Rt EITA A
chain in the property ERE
management industry 29.8 29.8 —
The development of 8 B R4
information technology
system 19.8 19.8 —
Recruitment of talent and BEATREBEEI R
implementation of training R T &
and recruitment programs 16.3 16.3 —
Repayment of bank borrowings 1&i& R 17 & & 5.0 5.0 .
General working capital —REEE® 11.9 11.9 .
125.5 125.5 —

As of the date of this annual report, the net proceeds
from the Listing has been fully utilized and there was no
change to the Group’s plan of use of proceeds as stated
in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 November
2017.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 146 to 149 respectively.

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.012 per Share for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “2020 Final Dividend”) with
a sum of approximately HK$4.9 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB4.1 million which is subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2020 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
11 June 2021 (the "AGM"). The 2020 Final Dividend,
if approved, will be distributed on or about Friday, 16
July 2021 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 23 June 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 62 to 65 and 66 to 79
respectively of this Annual Report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group
fully understands this principle and thus maintains close
relationship with the customers to fulfil their immediate
and long-term need.

All of our full-time employees are paid a fixed salary
and may be granted other allowances, based on their
positions. In addition, discretionary bonuses may also
be awarded to our employees based on the employee’s
performance. We conduct regular performance appraisals
to ensure that our employees receive feedback on their
performances.

Our major suppliers are primarily sub-contractors for
our property and management services. The Group is
dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
and sub-contractors as long-term business partners to
ensure stability of the Group’s business.
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POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The following are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be
other risks and uncertainties which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn
out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of responding
promptly to market changes within the industry
sectors it operates in. Any failure to interpret market
trends properly and adapt its strategy to such changes
accordingly, as well as termination or non-renewal of
our services contracts of property management and
urban sanitary could have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s business, financial position and results of
operations.

Financial Risk
The financial risk management of the Group are set out
in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the financial position of
the Group as at that date are set out on pages 146 to
149.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
8 June 2021 to Friday, 11 June 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 7 June
2021.
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Subject to the approval of the proposed 2020 Final
Dividend from the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 21 June 2021 to
Wednesday, 23 June 2021, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered
for ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed 2020 Final Dividend. In order to qualify for
the proposed 2020 Final Dividend, all transfer of Shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 June
2021.

SUMMARY OF 5 YEARS' FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

A summary of the published consolidated results and of
the assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the 5
years ended 31 December 2020 is set out on page 280.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the outstanding bank loans and other
borrowings of the Company during the year are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding
of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and of the Group during the year are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders.
As a general policy, given the current growth of the
Company, it is the intention of the Company to declare
no more than 30% of the net profit as dividend each
year. However, the actual amount of dividends declared
and paid (if any) will depend on the results of our
operation, cash flows, financial position, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends,
future prospects, and other factors that we may consider
relevant.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend
is subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and
any declaration of final dividend will be subject to the
approval of the shareholders.

Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also
subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the constitutional documents, which indicate that
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserves set aside
form profits which the Directors determine is no longer
needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of the share
premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with
the relevant law.

There can be no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed in any years.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately RMB245.1 million (2019:
RMB224.8 million) calculated in accordance with
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. This
includes the Company’s share premium account of
approximately RMB163.7 million (2019: RMB167.3
million) which is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium account may also be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Period, sales to the Group’s 5 largest customers
accounted for approximately 17.4% of the total sales for
the year and the sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 4.5%.

Purchases from the Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 18.7% of the total purchases for the
year and the purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 6.1%.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associate(s)
or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s 5 largest customers or 5 largest
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xiao Xingtao (Chairman)

Mr. Fu Qichang

Mr. Xiao Yugiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jia Shaojun

Ms. Wang Hui

Non-executive Director
Mr. Zhang Yongjun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Dong

Mr. Weng Guogiang

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
Mr, Jia Shaojun, Mr. Zhang Yongjun, Mr. Shu Wa
Tung Laurence and Ms. Wang Hui will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his independence of the Company and
the Company considers each of them to be independent
in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 80 to 94
of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Details of service contracts of the executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive Directors are
set out under the section headed “Appointment and
Re-election of Directors” of the Corporate Governance
Report.

No Director proposed to have a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company
within 1 year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
transactions” and in the related party transactions as set
out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance, to
which the Company, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year. There are
no transactions, arrangements and contract of significance
to the business of the Group between the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries and a Controlling Shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year. During the year, no
transactions, arrangements and contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Group by a Controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were made.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in
existence during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
the Directors, the secretary and other officers of the
Company are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, to the extent as permitted by
laws. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company during the Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for securities
transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) were as follows:

EERNEAQFAREMEABEE KRG
HERORERERBE2EERAXR

M2020F12 H31H - & H AR A) 3k E 48 B
ZE(EEBHFRBERAEXVE) 2RO K
HEROFHEEQARBESRBAEBRMNE
XVEBZETR87D B A AR A R R T2 =
(BEERBEESFLRBERICZERES
WEEIBERIEZAEZERZ R AR)  3(b)
AR ARBES R BEKROE32E8EEF
EzExwMzER HQOEBERE ETEITA
%%Lﬁ*’*%x%Eﬁff@/‘iﬁﬁwﬁé—rﬁu)
BAARNFIRBI 2 ERZAT

Number of issued

ordinary/underlying Percentage
Director Nature of interests Shares held of interest
TSR/
5= EaMtE HEROHE FriEEEBE DL
Mr. Xiao Xingtao Interest held jointly with another 295,322,000 72.92%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®
B R LA HE-ATHARENEZ:
ZEGEEEED
Mr. Fu Qichang Interest held jointly with another 295,322,000 72.92%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®
BEHEXAE Eﬁi%—}\i SEESFEN-Ok: o
EHEEEEO
Notes: {hg=3
(1) As at 31 December 2020, 295,322,000 shares were held by (1) R2020512A318 Am(—HREBE LEET

Partner Summit, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands which is owned as to 87% by Vital Kingdom, 10% by
Source Forth and 3% by Pine Fortune. Each of Mr. Xiao and Mr.
Fu owns the entire issued share capital of Vital Kingdom and
Source Forth respectively. Thus, both Mr. Xiao and Mr. Fu were
deemed to be interested in 295,322,000 Shares.

(2)  All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the
Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors, or their associate(s) had any interests
or short positions in the shares or debt securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which
the Directors are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were the rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to date of this
report, no Director of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries is considered to have an interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, pursuant to
the Listing Rules, other than those business of which the
Directors of the Company were appointed as Directors to
represent the interest of the Company and/or the Group.

EEHREE

Br bSPTIR R & SN 0 720209128318 ¢
BEEYARECHEARRIAG K EFMAE
BEB(TERESHRBEKRAIEXVE) 2K
NABEBEFTEBQEREESRPER
PIEXVBEIRSD HBBRANARR R FTZ
FRAERIAR(BEREZS R BE KO
CHREBRXEERE I EEIEZTE 2R
KKA) ()AL AMBIEEH KB EEH
FEIEMEFEZERMZEMERIAR
H(OBRBREETUBANARBIRBZAZ
ERERK AR -

EEREROIEEIT ZEFN

RRB)RAF A B R B IR ARDQFME
MEBEBFHREZHZEBAARMISHE TR EB
BEARRBRMHKEEEMER - @ L2t A
THETEEEREN AARAHEZEER
e 2010 FNCIEAR ES G- PNCIDIE:]
VEMZH  BEEFABEARF M
HitZABEZZFER -

EERNBRFXRBzES

REBEFEMEEAREAH L AQAH
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EHRBIFrfEERAE B AEBERKER
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15
November 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing
Date. No share option under the Share Option Scheme
(the "Option”) has been granted since the adoption
of the Share Option Scheme and therefore, there was
no outstanding Option as at 31 December 2020 and no
Option was exercised or cancelled or lapsed during the
Period.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set
out as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme enables the Company to
grant Options to the Eligible Persons (as defined in
paragraph (b) below) as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to our Group.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme
An Eligible Person is any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive
director, adviser and consultant of the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, invite
any Eligible Persons to take up Options at a price
calculated in accordance with paragraph (d) below.

(c) Acceptance of an offer of Option

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted
and accepted by each Eligible Person who accepts
or is deemed to have accepted the offer of any
Option in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Participant”) when the
duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the Option
duly signed by the Participant with the number of
Shares in respect of which an offer of an Option
is accepted clearly stated therein, together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company within 28 days from the
date on which an Option is offered to an Eligible
Person.

1 24 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

AR AESTE

AR A B R2017F11A158 K 4 88 I8 & 51 &
(IERETE]D BEREFENLETEHA
Mo BERMBRETSAR  BEELE
PERETESIETHOERE(ERED  »©
2020F 12 A B E M RITERNERE - B
HAR BB AR 1T - SRS Rk -

BRES N EZERNT

(a) BRESENEN
ARAREBEREFEIRTAERAL
(FE&E R T X(b)BR) B R # - LA BB X 8%
BREHAKEMREER -

(b) BREFENSHEE
BERALBARAHAEEBEMAKE
RAMERAFBEES  BEAKED
HITEF FRTESERBIFRTE
= BRKEEHE -

EX0d e BRARAERALR
TXBRFAFESHNERIGBERE -

() EXBREEN
WRAEBATESEREZONAN
HE28EAAN ARAFEEL2EEZSER
EEMBEXBREN KT EAXCE R
PARXBEREZOMS R 2BRNDBE)
BRESXANTFARTZBFK1.00/E T (ER
ERBREZAE) ABREAERD
WIR L ERRIEBRES S 2GR ER
IREREEITABRERNZEA
ERAT(BREDE®R -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(d) Maximum number of Shares available for

subscription

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all Options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes (“Other Schemes”) adopted by
the Group from time to time pursuant to which
options to subscribe for Shares may be granted
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as of the date of listing (i.e. 11 December
2017, the “Listing Date”) of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"),
being 400,000,000 Shares. Options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Other Schemes will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders in
general meeting, the Company may do one or more
of the following:-

(i) refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit to the
extent that the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all Options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and Other Schemes under the refreshed
Scheme Mandate Limit must not exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of such
Shareholders’ approval, provided that Options
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and Other Schemes (including those
outstanding, cancelled, exercised or lapsed in
accordance with the terms thereof) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit; and

(i) grant Options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to the
Eligible Persons specifically identified by the
Company before such Shareholders’ approval
is sought.

EEREE
(d) THEBRHBE LR
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(e)

(f)

The total number of Shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares,
representing 10% of the issued Shares as at the
Listing Date.

Basis for determining the exercise price
The subscription price for the Shares subject to the
Options will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to each Participant and shall be the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the Options, which must be a day
on which trading of Shares take place on the Stock
Exchange (“Trading Day"”); (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
Options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Maximum number of underlying Shares
comprised in Options to any one Eligible
Person

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the Options granted to a
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and
Other Schemes (including both exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to
time.

If a grant of Options to a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or an independent
non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) will result
in the total number of the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the Options already granted
and to be granted (including Options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person under
the Share Option Scheme or Other Schemes in any
12-month period up to and including the date of
the grant:-
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(i) representing in aggregate 0.1% (or such other
percentage as may from time to time specified
by the Stock Exchange) of the Shares in issue
from time to time, and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of the
grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

then the proposed grant of Options must be
approved by the Shareholders.

Time of exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by
the Board to each Participant, provided that the
period within which the Option must be exercised
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant of Option.

Minimum period for which an Option
must be held before it can be exercised
There is no minimum period for which an Option
granted must be held before it can be exercised
except otherwise imposed by the Board.

Remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the Listing
Date, after which period no further Options may
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects and Options granted during the life
of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

Movements of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme
(the “Scheme”) on 30 August 2018 (the “Adoption
Date”). The purpose of the Scheme is to recognize the
contribution by certain employees and give incentives
thereto in order to motivate them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract
suitable personal for further development of the Group.
Unless terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme, the Scheme shall be effective for a period
of four (4) years commencing on the Adoption Date
provided that no contribution to the trust fund will be
made by the Company on or after 31 May 2020. Please
refer to the Company announcement dated 30 August
2018 for further details of the Scheme.

During the year 2019, the trustee of the Scheme,
pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed
of the Scheme, purchased on the Stock Exchange a
total of 8,218,000 Shares at a total consideration of
approximately HK$20.0 million. As at 31 December 2020,
no Shares were awarded to any Director or employee of
the Company under the Scheme.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other
than the Directors) had interest in the Shares and the
underlying shares of the Company which (a) would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
(b) were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein:

% 4 82 B 5+ &l

ARAT D R2018F8A30B ([ 4 B HI ) £ 4%
B8l ([Zat8l)) - ZA8lz2EMNA
BRETEEMENERMILS TEE - UH
BEBABEBEATNSELERERRS -
UEABREEE—TSERERSIAGEAL - B
IERMBZTEGETIRERILE  ZAEBRE
AEHEEANAFERNER  fTIRALAR AR
2020F5A3Ag c T ERMERESEL
TR EMZTECEMFRE  F2HEAQ
AIEE A20185FE8A30H Z A E

20194 » Zar 8l 5 AR % 5T 81 48 Bl 1§
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Number of
issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
e
BB/ HER5 Frih &
BREB & EEMEE | BOH
Partner Summit Beneficial owner 295,322,000 72.92%
B ExBEEBA
Vital Kingdom Interest held jointly with another 295,322,000 72.92%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
=1 HEE-ATHRFERESZ:

REGEEER
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Number of
issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
Fiise &7
58/ HER G Pt 4 %€ %5
RRERB & Batng A BOk
Source Forth Interest held jointly with another 295,322,000 72.92%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
R BE—ATtHRAFANOER
REGZEZERER
Pine Fortune Interest held jointly with another 295,322,000 72.92%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
= A BE-—ATHRABENER
REGZEZERER
Mr. Chen Interest held jointly with another 295,322,000 72.92%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
PR % & BE-ATHRFAEREZ
REGZEZERER
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%
("S.L.")
S.1. Infrastructure Holdings Limited XEHEEERC
(7s.1.1)
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited  Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%
(“Shanghai Industrial”)
FBEEERERAT Rt EE RS
((tEZKR])
Shanghai Industrial Investment Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%
(Holdings) Company Limited
(“Shanghai Industrial
Investment”)
FEBEXR(EER)BRAR Xt EE R
(F=S:3 ¢ 3
Shanghai Industrial Investment Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%

Treasury Company Limited
(“Shanghai Treasury")
Shanghai Industrial Investment
Treasury Company Limited
(f[shanghai Treasury])

REHEEEES
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Number of
issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
Fiise &7
58/ HER G Pt 4 %€ 25
RREB & Batng A BOk
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%
(“Shanghai Investment”)
FEREZERER DA REHEE#ERC
([EBRE]
Sure Advance Holdings Limited Beneficial owners® 30,000,000 7.4%

("Sure Advance”)
BIEZERERAR(ERD ExnEAAG

Notes:

m

(2)

(3

Save

4

All the interests stated below represent long positions in the
shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, 295,322,000 shares were held by
Partner Summit, which is owned as to 87% by Vital Kingdom,
10% by Source Forth and 3% by Pine Fortune. Mr. Chen owns
the entire issued share capital of Pine Fortune. Therefore, Mr.
Chen, Pine Fortune, Vital Kingdom and Source Forth were
deemed to be interested in 295,322,000 shares.

Information is extracted from the corporate substantial
shareholder notices filed by S.I., Shanghai Industrial, Shanghai
Industrial Investment, Shanghai Treasury, Shanghai Investment
and Sure Advance on 11 December 2017. Shanghai Industrial
Investment directly holds 100% of the issued share capital of
Shanghai Treasury, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Shanghai Investment, which in turn holds
47.77% of the issued share capital of Shanghai Industrial,
which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of S.I.,
which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of Sure
Advance. Therefore, S.I., Shanghai Industrial, Shanghai Industrial
Investment, Shanghai Treasury and Shanghai Investment are
taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by Sure
Advance pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there

was no person who (i) had an interest or short position

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which (a) would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO; or (b) were required, pursuant to section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (ii) were, directly or indirectly, interested in

5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying the right to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company or any options in
respect of such capital.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group
are set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements under “Employee benefits” on page 201.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
percentage of the ordinary shares in public hands exceed
25% as at the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the details of the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company as required to be reported under the
Listing Rules.
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Non-exempt continuing connected TERENBFERERS
transactions
(1) Property Management Framework

(1) MEEEERGSR

Agreement

Date of agreement

IZEASE

Parties

HEP]

Term

F 5

Scope of Services

AR5 & E

Pricing and payment

7 June 2018

20186 H7H

(i) Anhui Bund, an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group; and

(i) Anhui Wan Tou Property Company Limited* (Z & it 1% & ¥
AR &I A7) (“Anhui Wan Tou”), a connected person of
the Group at the subsidiary level

() ZEINE ARFEEFEZ2EMBRF &

(il ZHHEREXZERETRATZHER]  ~XEERWE
AREIEENAEAL

From 7 June 2018 to 31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive),

during which period the parties may from time to time enter

into specific agreements in relation to the provision of property

management services by Anhui Bund to Anhui Wan Tou or its

associates, which shall be subject to the terms stipulated in the

Property Management Framework Agreement

20186 A7H R £2020F 12 A31B L (BIEEEMA) - RZE

HERNFTOA A TRR LRI ERN T B R RERYEETE RS

RIVARGRE MAXDEERERBZMAEKAR

Anhui Bund shall provide property management services to Anhui

Wan Tou or its associates

TENEEMTRGERIAEBEAREDEEERE

Pursuant to the Property Management Framework Agreement,

the property management fees chargeable for the property
management services shall be determined by the parties through
arm'’s length negotiations with reference to the comparable
fees charged by the Group for services to independent property
owners of other similar projects and on normal commercial terms
or better
E B R AR . REBEDEERERGZ MW EEERBEAKRDMOMEERE
KERAOT2RAEERMEMBUREBNE X T RHER
BRERNAELRERR  BEATERLRREETBEMKRK
HEERKETE
Annual cap for the year RMB30,000,000
ended 31 December 2020
Bl E£2020F12A31H
IFFENFE LR
Actual consideration for the
year ended 31 December
2020
Bl E 202012 A31H
FFENERRE

A K #30,000,0007T

RMB26,995,018

A K %26,995,0187C

132 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the transactions contemplated under Property
Management Framework Agreement were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 7 June 2018.

As confirmed by our Directors, the principal business
of Anhui Wan Tou and its associates is property
development only, they do not provide any property
management service.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the connected transactions and the continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions have
been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms;
and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and are in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company were engaged to report
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected transaction under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Ernst & Young, the auditors of the Company, have
issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusion in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the Period disclosed above in accordance
with the Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmed
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the continuing connected transactions:

(i)  have not been approved by the Board;

(i)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involving the provisions of goods or
services by the Group;
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(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
these continuing connected transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the relevant annual caps.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements. Apart from the
connected transactions disclosed above, the other related
party transactions as disclosed in note 40 fall under
the scope of connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules but are fully exempted from
reporting, annual review, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as stated
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Further information on the Company's corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report contained in this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
COMPANIES

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. In response to specific enquiry made by the
Company, each of the Directors confirmed that he had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to maintaining
sustainable working practices and pays close attention to
ensure all resources are efficiently utilized.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Period, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by our Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of our
Group.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION
During the Period, the Group did not have any material
litigation or arbitration.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
DURING THE PERIOD

On 31 January 2020, the Group completed the
acquisition of 51% interest in Hong Xin from Shanghai
Honghui Enterprise Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership)* (E/BGLENCEEEZAAE L
X (BERAR) at a consideration of RMB91,800,000.
Save as disclosed, the Group had no other material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during
the Period.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT TO THE PERIOD

The Group does not have any material subsequent event
after 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report.

The Group will continue to pay attention to the
development of the coronavirus situation and evaluate
the impact on the financial position and operation of
the Group. As of the issue date of this annual report, no
significant adverse impact has been identified.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was
established in accordance with the requirements of the
CG Code, for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls. Currently the audit committee
comprises the 3 independent non-executive Directors,
who have reviewed the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Ernst & Young who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at a fee to be agreed by
the Board.

On behalf of the Board

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
Xiao Xingtao

Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2021
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Ernst & Young LK G E AT Tel E5h: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BRPERRNTE 157 Fax{5H: +852 2868 4432
§ﬂ( 1 Tim Mei Avenue R{EAE 2218 ey.com
Central, Hong Kong
Independent auditor’s report BYUREEMEE

To the shareholders of Riverine China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Riverine China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 146 to 154,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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How our audit
addressed the key

38 M B B R

HEARELSEENER
7%

Key audit matter HAREXER audit matter

Recoverability of trade & 5 & i 3 18 &9 A] 4

receivables B 1%

As at 31 December #2020412H31H Our procedures in BS5FHESERKE
2020, the carrying K A #) relation to assessing the FIWEIMEHIEFEIE

amount of trade
receivables was
RMB143,031,000,
which accounted for
approximately 37.80%
of the current assets of
the Group.

We identified the
recoverability of trade
receivables as a key
audit matter due
to the significance
of the balance to
the consolidated
financial statements
and the significant
judgement exercised
by management in
estimating the expected
credit losses ("ECLs")
for trade receivables,
including the existence
of disputes, historical
payment records,
forward-looking factors
and any other available
information that may
impact the estimated
expected credit losses.

Please refer to notes
3 and 22 to the
consolidated financial
statement for related
disclosures.
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recoverability of trade
receivables included:

Obtaining an
understanding of
how management
assessed the expected
credit losses for trade
receivables, and
evaluating the key
control relating to
the monitoring of the
recoverability of trade
receivables;

Evaluating and testing
the methodologies and
data or parameters
used by management,
including historical loss
information, forward-
looking factors,
probability of default
and expected loss;

Inquiring of
management for the
status of each of
the material trade
receivables past due
as at the year end and
evaluating explanations
from management
with supporting
evidence;

Executing analytical
review procedures
by analysing the
fluctuations of
significant outstanding
balances and trade
receivable turnover
days; and

Testing, on a sample
basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade
receivables to cash
receipts and the
related supporting
documentation.
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How our audit

addressed the key HEAREXSENERE
Key audit matter BREXEE audit matter 7k
Business Combination XHEEH
As at 31 January 2020, #2020%1A31H * 7 Our audit procedures to ZEFFHWEFEZE
the Group acquired S B GARIRIESE assess the accounting of WEZREFBE
51% equity interests of [E & R A A ([5A R]) the Acquisition included:
Hong Xin Environmental 51% ##@ @ 8K E A
Group Co., Ltd. ("Hong A R ®¥091,800,0000t — Obtaining and — BEU§ X 48 Y
Xin") for an aggregate WEES-DE reviewing related BB e J%Tﬁ@ A
consideration of acquisition agreements sShHMBBASE
RMB91,800,000 (“the to understand the R X
Acquisition”). background and other
related important
The Group engaged an 7K & B B2 {40 30 98 L information;
external independent fH{EANFH AW EB
appraiser to assess HIEAEMA#HZFEE — Obtaining the — S SN EB 98 B
the fair values of the REBEMNAFE- valuation reports Eﬁﬁfiﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁ
identifiable assets and prepared by the w7l B R E R
liabilities assumed at the external independent HREZ2AEH - 8
acquisition date. appraiser for the WREE
assets acquired
We identified the HRZESKHRT=E and evaluating
Acquisition of Hong HE XK A& HHIEH their competence,
Xin as a key audit BEWWERLEE) capabilities and
matter because its WAFEFTEEHE objectivity;
accounting involved X ¥ - & itk - F 1
significant judgement HUEEGLIRZ R A — Involving our internal — ZRI MY A H
of management for the #EE+EHE - valuation specialists to BHHEXEN G EAD
measuring the fair value review the valuation FRAMNEBEIER
of assets acquired in the methodologies ARETWER S
business combination adopted by the FrAEr & nl & &
(e.g. intangible assets). appraiser, and the FEENATED
assumptions used R
Please refer to BHE#H & %2 HK to determine the
note 34(b) to the 4 & B ik & M &+ fair value of the
consolidated financial 34(b) ° identifiable assets and
statement for related liabilities assumed at
disclosures. the acquisition date;

— Checking the — BEFRKEBEEER
mathematical accuracy Bt E R EFM
of the valuation AAEE#ENHE
calculation for assets EREMN R
acquired and the
underlying data used
in the calculation; and

— Reviewing the — BFEHNHAMKEBEEE
identification of the kBEHZE -
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

38 M B B R

RBEMRERGES
%&

EFNERERAEREREMSLERAM
%ﬁ%% A EFEBRRRFFRERMERD
BERERRL YHELEEEXRERNRE
%ﬁ¢° FEABEBREAERS H%M%'

mﬁiTT%WE@%L FHAH
Kﬁ%%ﬁ%*ﬁ@ﬂﬁmkiﬁéj%%
EREE -

MBBRRAERED

EEBETBERERNZE BTREERRE
(BERBERDETNEZ TR
BREAEMEXEERRM - 5858 Bt Al R 7R &

AESRERRR AR K ERBESERABRT
AR EERERBEGAVBRRIFLNLE
RER - R BERERRA -

EERB(EEZBEIETELZNITIE
B —#n TERIEXAE cEEZF%AE
BARFBEREREE - BF

o BAKFEGEHBHRRANKIFX
HARMEBMNEAERER - BZFE
RRAMATEZERF  BERSRTRENE
ENEZEERESTNERIRHEAR
HREAFLRARERE RE HEE
" RGNS RBABES - Bk
AEEBERBUEKRMNEREREA R
AREZRANERMERWE KR
@&Eﬁ°

THREEZABOANMES - AREE
ENEZIEF O BYFEAEY BE&EHE
MABEGHNERERERER -

SETHREERARAR F4§2020 143



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

38 M B B ]

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yin Guo Wei.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31B It EE

2020 2019
—E-EE —ZE—NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NG B
REVENUE Wz 5 763,808 481,530
Cost of services provided 12 R 75 Ak AR 6 (646,561) (407,359)
Gross profit el 117,247 74,171
Other income and gains HAth g A R 2= 5 9,751 6,742
Selling and distribution expenses HER&HEAX (12,661) (9,395)
Administrative expenses THFAX (71,900) (58,002)
Interest expenses FERX 7 (5,889) (1,676)
Share of profits and losses of: ERATRARIER
Joint ventures EENLE 1,033 5,082
Associates R 11,769 6,882
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Fr Bt B & A 6 49,350 23,804
Income tax expense FIEBiR% 10 (12,382) (3,323)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F A F 36,968 20,481
Attributable to: ATALEAL:
Owners of the parent SRABIEEA 26,209 17,802
Non-controlling interests FEIZ A% BE o= 10,759 2,679
36,968 20,481
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B AR E@REZRIFAE A
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS &5 & ik & A
OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (RMB) AEARAN#EEARK) 12 0.07 0.04
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fv? = ,\f&éﬁu&ﬁﬁ%‘%

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

2020 2019
ZE-Z 5 s
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Tt N

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F N 4 A 36,968 20,481

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) EH 2w zs ~(E#E)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that ~ FEE HIE S~ EH H 18
will not be reclassified to profit or loss ZFEREEMEMEERE
in subsequent periods: (E18) :
Equity investments designated at fair BEEREAFEFAHEMS
value through other comprehensive HmERARE :
income: (2,107) S
Exchange differences: MEH ZHE
Exchange differences on translation of M E B K MEKELENE L
financial statements =5 (283) 161
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) BERIARRIEER»HBZE
that will not be reclassified to profit or BERHEM2EkE
loss in subsequent periods (E518) F 58 (2,390) 161
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FRHM2mE Kz (E18)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (FOBR B 18) (2,390) 161
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FRZE W B
THE YEAR 34,578 20,642
Attributable to: IATA T AL :
Owners of the parent [SNCIEZF=WN 23,819 17,963
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR = 10,759 2,679

34,578 20,642
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PEIR LR

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2020 2019
-y XN —T—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
H iF AR% Tt NS R
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y 13 35,022 4,367
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 7,246 =
Goodwill 2 15 25,901 —
Intangible assets EILE E 16 50,857 3,490
Investments in joint ventures REZELERE 17 14,879 19,858
Investments in associates REEEPERE 18 90,621 83,015
Equity investments designated at fair #§E & A FEFTA EAth 19
value through other comprehensive % [ W 25 &) & AN % &
income 8,796 6,290
Other non-current assets EmIERESEE 20 43,683 30,000
Deferred tax assets BEEIBEE 31 839 212
Total non-current assets ERBEELRE 277,844 147,232
CURRENT ASSETS mBEE
Inventories FE 21 223 168
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 22 143,031 100,183
Prepayments and other receivables 84 3 18 & H 23
& U5 k1R 65,788 48,354
Restricted bank balances X PR R 1T 45 BR 24 12,525 14,113
Wealth management products MEBEREEM 25 — 5,000
Financial assets at fair value through & QA FEFAEBZR 26
profit or loss WEREE 30,312 .
Cash and cash equivalents BHEMReZEEY 27 126,506 143,557
Total current assets mMEEERE 378,385 311,375
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables 2 5 ENNRIA 28 107,632 74,923
Other payables and accruals H fth J& 5 IH 29
K E R 82,785 75,563
Interest-bearing bank loans and other &t 8 38 17 & H b & & 30
borrowings 97,011 61,515
Lease liabilities ME&RE 14 3,390 —
Tax payable JE < B 18 12,374 7,040
Total current liabilities mEAaERE 303,192 219,041
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
RERBMRRR (B

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
=3 AR® Tt AREF T
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFAE 75,193 92,334
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERKBAEEG
LIABILITIES 353,037 239,566
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EMBAEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and FTEHRITR EMERK
other borrowings 30 3,059 —
Lease liabilities HE&E 14 4,172 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE 31 12,125 —
Total non-current liabilities ERBEAGERE 19,356 S
Net assets BEEFE 333,681 239,566
EQUITY e E
Equity attributable to owners of & QT A A EGE =
the parent
Share capital A% 32 3,391 3,391
Reserves (B 33 245,061 224,842
248,452 228,233
Non-controlling interests JEIE MR 85,229 11,333
Total equity M 333,681 239,566
Xiao Xing Tao Fu Qi Chang
HEE BHE
Director Director
EE g
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERERBER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A318 ILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

LPEFEIN
Shares
held for
Exchange ~ the share Non-
Share  Share  Capital  Merger Statutory fluctuation  award  Retained controlling
Gapital - premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reservet  reserve*  scheme*  profits* Total  interests
AR
B2} 2Ritd 2R

B BfRE REER oRER RRAR  OF GAREM RERR* & @
RWBODD  RMBOOD  RMBODD  RMBOOD  RWBODD  RVBODD  RMBODD  RMBOOD  RWBOND  RUBCID

Total
equity

L
RAB000

ARRTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARRTZ

Note32  Note33i)  Note33(i) Note33(ii) Note33)  Note33\)  Note 33
Bam W0 MENG) O WENE) BEke) WERN FENN

At January 2019 H09E 1318 3391100207 0466 (034 T 650 - 0% By 8654 239743
Proit for the year Epgd - - - - - = — g ;s 2619 048t
Other comprefiensive ncome for the year: ~ ERER2EAE:
Bichange iffeence on ranslaion of foregn £E B ERHES 28
operations - - - - - 161 - - 161 - 161
Total comprehensiie income for theyear M2 ANELE - = = = = 161 - Tam M9 261 2064
Purchase ofshares under the e award. RER B 2B HEERR
stheme - - - - - - (17918 - (17918) - (17918)
Interim 2019 dividend declred BER0NENERS - W - - - - = - - W
Transfr from retaned prois ERRRERN 5 5 5 -6 > - bW = = -
A31 Decenter 201 HIOERENA SECTITE AN Y SC 9 S [/ N VO R F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
meRERgER (B

Year ended 31 December 2020 2202012 318 L FE

Attributable to owners of the parent

LRI
Farvalue
tesene of
financil asets
atfarvalue  Shares held
Buchange throughoter ~~ for the Non-
Shae  Shae  Gapitd Merger  Statutory fluctuation comprehensive share award  Retained controlling
aptal  premiumt  reservet reservet reserve® reseve®  icomet  schemet  profitst Total  interests Total equity
FATEE
BERBIT
SN REfER
EXRE hemERy HAREN #ER

b5 BEEE  EARE cRRE MEREr R ATERE BB REEW £ fi g2

RUBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0 AWMU RMBOD  RMBOO  RMBOOD  RMBOD  RMBOO

ARETT AREFT ARBTTL ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR AREFR ARETR
Note32  Notedd)  Note33(il  Note33fi)  Note33n)  Note33) Mote 330
MR BEB0) O Wm0 RWEBG) KEsW o MEW e

At January 2020 RNEIAI 33 16730 466 (034) 2076 §11
Proftforthe yar R - - - - - - -
Other compreensive ncome for the year, EREE2ENE:
Changeinfir valeof ey RATETAER2ENE
mestmentsat i vl through HREREZATHE
orer omprelensieincome, retol - E(ARRE)

(my6) 3 2 MIB 39S
009 6209 1079 3698

far - - - - - - {100 - - {2100) - (2100
B dfeence on rndeionof -~ EEBAEEHES 28
forign operfions - - - - - (283) - - - (83) - (18)
Totd comprehensive ncome for he yer - EREENBEE - - - - - ) ) I : N 1 T 11/
Acqistion of subsidres ote 34~ B LA (K34 - - - - - - - - - S 1 I 1
Diidendspid o noncontoling - %P5 ERERARS
sharefolders - - - - - - - - - - R )
Disosdl ofeqiyinerestsof a subsdary £ E-BHEAARE - - - - - - - - - O 1/ I 1]
Coptel mecton fomnon-contollng~—~ ~EMBLTHERRR
shareholdrs of a subsidary fiig - - - - - - - - - - 30 0
Novcontoling ntestsrng fom -~ BT FHEAR ZEMEER
estblising e subsidaes iz - - - - - - - - - - 1410 1410
Inerim 2020 dvidend declred R = (3,600) - - - - - - - 360 - (3,400
Trasfrfom retained prft EREEY - - - - 5T - - - ) = = =
At 31 December 2020 HI0EnA3IA 3 1630 366 (03) 65 58 Qton (o) 6 Mg 8B9 3E

e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * 2020612 A318 - 2S5 RERE LG MBI

RMB245,061,000 in the consolidated statement of financial KRN ER A AR ¥245,061,0007T (20194 -
position as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB224,842,000). AR #224,842,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31B It EE

2020 2019
-y XN —T—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
H iF AR% Tt NS R
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KEKLZEHNRTR
ACTIVITIES =1
Profit before tax B AT v K 49,350 23,804
Adjustments for: AT ZIBRAIEFE -
Interest expenses N3 7 5,889 1,676
Share of profits and losses of: AT RAIEE
Joint ventures B (1,033) (5,082)
Associates B 8 > 2 (11,769) (6,882)
Interest income R 2 U A 5 (1,478) (1,316)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHKBAREE 35 46 .
Covid-19-related rent concessions HHEAGTHHERES
from lessors EEMHEBESRE 14 (385) —
Depreciation of items of property, M- BWERZREER
plant and equipment e 13 10,313 1,655
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREERE 14 4,115 .
Amortization of intangible assets I8 B B 16 6,798 750
Fair value gain on re-measurement of LRIIFEHE —ME&E ¥
previously held equity interest AN EHEHTG
in a joint venture W == 5 (359) =
Fair value gain on financial assets at &R FEFABZERD
fair value through profit or loss eMEEATFEKE (312) —
Gain on disposal of associates MERE S Ra (200) —
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 W IR R E R E
receivables 6 5,541 707
Net loss on disposal of items of HEWHE  BERZE
property, plant and equipment, net BB &8 55 6 566 80
Net gain on revision of a lease term 7~ &] # $4 T2 & Hi 5 & &)
arising from a change in the non- BRETHERK
cancellable period of lease wmF (100) —
66,982 15,392
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank 52 BR %l R 17 & 82k 7
balances (3% ) 1,588 (3,006)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEOEM,/Rmb (3) 116
Decrease/(increase) in trade B EWZERL,
receivables (#Z ) 4,040 (17,947)
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments, FEfTFIE ~ & N HAtb
deposits and other receivables FE W R IE R L
(3 hn) 26,918 (13,372)
Increase in trade payables 2 5 & FRIBE BN 34,738 21,880
Increase in other payables and Hibh B RIE R ERE
accruals FA 18 hn 1,408 3,580
Increase in other long-term assets Hih & B & E B (40,854) —
continued/... Bl
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FERERER (B)

Year ended 31 December 2020 #2020 12 8318 It EE

2020 2019
-y XN —T—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hi &t ARE Tt N iR
Cash flows generated from KEEFEFTEER
operations EhE 94,817 6,643
Mainland China corporate income tax B #17 B A (> %
paid P15t (12,164) (5,930)
Net cash flows from operating KEEZHFAEHRERE
activities pEig] 82,653 713
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RELDEHRENE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEEW X  BENRKRHE
and equipment JERS (13,429) (2,352)
Purchases of intangible assets BABFEEE (165) (3,345)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWHE  BERKE
property, plant and equipment HAB A RIAE 241 —
Dividends received from joint ventures WWER KB & & P ¥ &
and associates B b E AR B 3,530 3,940
Investments in joint ventures and REERERBEDE
associates K& & (13,958) (28,465)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g4\ hy= N (45,903) .
Disposal of an associate HE — A D 7,840 —
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— W ER A (23,116) =
Advances to a related party Ml — % BB 7 B3k — (765)
Purchase of equity investments at fair BB A QA FEA H A
value through other comprehensive & U zE K R AE R &
income (4,613) (5,590)
Prepayment to a potential acquisition FRIRE#E 1T EIEM A
(NE/ S — (20,000)
Deposits from the non-controlling BL B A0 R & WCER IE 4% AR
shareholder for the performance REBIZ®
guarantee 31,800 —
Repayment of deposits ERE® (15,900) —
Purchase of financial assets at fair KB ATEFARR
value through profit or loss M &R & E (30,000) =
Redemption of wealth management &[0 81 & & 3% & &
products 5,000 1,000
Interest received 2 U F B 1,264 1,316
Net cash flows used in investing KERBMARSRE
activities F R (97,409) (54,261)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

mERERER (B

Year ended 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31B It EE

2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
M it AR%E Tt NG B
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MELTHMEHERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans IEITER 93,459 61,515
Repayment of bank loans BERITEX (81,775) (20,000)
Non-controlling interests arising from F84MNE & E £
additional capital injection Y 3F 12 IR 1,770 —
Principal protion of lease payment HMENKOAREED (4,055) —
Dividends paid to non-controlling I FIHEERBRRED
shareholders Rz B (2,355) =
Dividends paid EERR s (3,600) (2,903)
Interest paid B F B (5,456) (1,676)
Net cash flows (used in)/from MEES (TR, &
financing activities BeneFHE (2,012) 36,936
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH R&RBEESFEY
EQUIVALENTS VRN & (16,768) (16,612)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRE KBS E
beginning of year ) 143,557 165,008
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EXEHHTE
change (283) 161
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRHR S RIS 5 (8
END OF YEAR i) 126,506 148,557
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH  HR& K\ S EWLE &#
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2T
Cash and bank balances Be MIFTHER 27 126,506 143,557
Wealth management products with ~ WHERRI BRI K=
original maturity of less than three B AR & & E E W
months when acquired — 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BRE&REXRA B SR
in the statement of cash flows BeEEY 126,506 148,557
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Riverine China Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business is located at 14th Floor, Jiushi
Tower, 28 South Zhongshan Road, Shanghai, PRC.
The Company was listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 December 2017.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the business of property management services in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the
“directors”), the holding company of the Company
is Partner Summit Holdings Limited (the “Parent”),
a company established in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"). The ultimate controlling shareholders of
the Company are Mr. Xiao Xing Tao, Mr. Fu Qi
Chang and Mr. Chen Yao (together the “Controlling
Shareholders”).

BA TR IR AR B =E

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
AAREBEH

HIFEZERBRAR(ARRR]DIRE
FERSAREZERERSTMMA L
RERRBRAF - AAFRHEMME
B& #b 3 A& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands - = 2 & it B R
Bl E8H LM EK28RAETREILE - K
RNAIR01I7TFNRANBER BB AR S
FRBEMR AR ([BEAZPT]) ER LT -

ARFREMBAR(SEIAER] X
BHETPEARANB(TR)MREYE
EERBEER -

ARRER(EFDR R ARAINE
BRARARERERAERAA(HQA]) -
—RERBRERXES((RBREXES])
BRI AT e RRARH&REERRKRR S
HEZEL BESEERRELLE(S
MIERRR] -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

1.

are as follows:

Place and date
of incorporation/

1.

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/

RAREEER (B

Percentage of
equity attributable

ERNRBEAANER
ARAEEMBRABNFBOAT :

registration and registered  to the Company
Name place of operation share capital AAFEEEZE A Principal activities
EMAL/ BEf
Bt ERAE LER CEM  Direct Indirect
R REXHE RAafEE EE B TEEK
Sino Ease Global Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100% — Investment holding
16 June 2016
PRRRERDA RERAES 100% T 100% — RE#ER
2016F6A16H
Leading Way Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$68,431,000 — 100%  Investment holding
20 May 2016
UREEARRAA BB 68,431,000/ T - 100% ®EER
2016%5H20F
Shanghai Pujiang Property Co.,  Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Property management
Ltd. Mainland China services
2 December 2002
LERINEERAT PR,/ PELE AR% —  100% YEEBRHB
2002512 A28 50,000,0007C
Shanghai Bund Property Co., Ltd. Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB7,700,000 = 100%  Property management
Mainland China services
8 April 1996
LENEMERR DA REAN,/HE g AR® — 100% MEERRH
1996F4A8H 7,700,0007T
Shanghai Jiu Yi Property Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Management Co. Ltd. Mainland China services
8 April 1996
TBARNEERERAR > HEANM/FELE AR® — 51% NEERRE
1996F4A8H 10,000,0007T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. RAREEEHRE)

INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

FHEMEBARNER (&)

Nominal value

Place and date of issued Percentage of
of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity attributable
registration and registered  to the Company
Name place of operation share capital RAFEEEZE AL Principal activities
AmAT [5%:$h
BEBERAS LEKR /&M Direct Indirect
&8 RExHH REfEE EE B TEXR
Shanghai Bund Green Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB500,000 = 100%  Property management
Construction Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
10 August 2004
EENERCBRBERAA > RERG/PELE ARE — 100% MEERERH
2004F8AH10H 500,0007T
Shanghai Hongji Property Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB3,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
18 March 2016
PEUENEERERARA > RENN/PEEE ARE — 100% WEEERH
2016F3H18H 3,000,0007C
Shanghai Jiegu Technology Co.,  Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100%  Technology research services
Ltd. Mainland China
3 May 2016
FENAMBRBERRR mERPE LS ARE — 100% RIH LRSS
2016F5H3H 5,000,0007T
Shanghai Pujiang Ruizheng Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
8 January 2004
PEBIREVERRAR  HENG/HE LS ARE —  100% WEEERH
2004%1H8H 5,000,0007T
Anhui Pujing Property Hefei, the PRC/ RMB6,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
10 May 2017
ZEBRNERRDF hER, P E A E AR — 51% MEEBRRS
2017F5R108 6,000,0007C
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1.

Nominal value

RAREEER (B

FEMBARNER (&)

Place and date of issued Percentage of
of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity attributable
registration and registered  to the Company
Name place of operation share capital RAFEEEZF AL Principal activities
EMAL/ [B%:$h
BEBERAH LER /CHM  Direct Indirect
28 RExHH RANEE EE B TEXR
Shanghai Aidepu Trading Co., Ltd  Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB200,000 = 100%  Hardware wholesale
Mainland China
23 November 2006
TENREBHEERAR mERM,/HE LS AR® — 100% A%
20064 11A238 200,0007T
Shanghai Bund Ke Pu Engineering Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB10,000,000 = 97%  Engineering management
Management Company Ltd. Mainland China services
30 November 2004
FENMERBIRER mEIR, L AR® — 97% IREERK
BRAG* 2004114308 10,000,0007C
Qidong Xingiao Property Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, the PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Mainland China services
15 July 2020
BRMBMERRRAF Bl R,/ BT & AR® — 51% MEERRS
20205 7A15H 10,000,0007T
Nantong Pu Sheng Intelligent Jiangsu, the PRC/ RMB6,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
18 October 2017
HRRREENEERAR  HEAM/PEIH AR® — 51% MEERRY
2017104188 6,000,0007T
Hong Xin Environmental Group  Fujian, the PRC/ RMB57,240,245 — 51%  Environmental sanitary
Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
05 July 2000
AMRREEBR AR REAN, HEERE AR® = 51% REGERS
2000F7A5H 57,240,2457t
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Nominal value
Place and date of issued
of incorporation/ ordinary/
registered

registration and

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
APEIREBER (&)

FHEMEBARNER (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Name place of operation share capital RAFEEEZE AL Principal activities
Em&L/
BB RAY LEKR /&M Direct Indirect

£8 REEE RAWEE E# B TEEK

Bengbu zhi Xin Property Anhui, the PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 58%  Property management

Mainland China

13 September 2004
hER, PR

200494 13H

Company Limited

HEEMEENZFARAA

* Shanghai Pujiang Property Co., Ltd. is registered as a
wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

**  These subsidiaries are registered as a limited liability
companies under PRC law.

During the year, the Group acquired Bengbu Zhi
Xin property Company Limited and Hong Xin
Environmental Group Co., Ltd. from the third
parties. Further details of these acquisitions are
included in note 34 to the financial statements.

Qidong Xingiao Property Co., Ltd was a new
established non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Shanghai Pujiang Property Co., Ltd.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

5,000,0007T

services

= 58% WIEEBRE

* LEBEIVMEARLADRERBEAER
MK INEBERE

> ZEWBRARNRESBEDEEIMAA A
EREMERA -

FR - AEEAEF=-JTHEBESETERE
MEERRABLATIRREBBR AR °
ERZEUBNE—FFE F2HY
B mA M L34 -

RRFABVEERAARLEHIME
ERARINRILIFZEMB AR °

EERR LRI ARENE LG
TEFEAFEXEABKRAEEE
EFEZIEND EFRRIEEM
MBARZEBERSREARITER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 REEXE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
certain equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(¢) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss is attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded
in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the following
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (early
adopted)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Matenal

and HKAS 8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
The nature and the impact of the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the
revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the "Conceptual Framework”) sets
out a comprehensive set of concepts for
financial reporting and standard setting,
and provides guidance for preparers of
financial statements in developing consistent
accounting policies and assistance to all parties
to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new
chapters on measurement and reporting
financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for
assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles
of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard,
and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any
standard. The Conceptual Framework did not
have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a
business. The amendments clarify that for
an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include,
at @ minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs
and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions
or other events that occurred on or after 1
January 2020. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(©

(d)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 address issues affecting financial
reporting in the period before the replacement
of an existing interest rate benchmark with
an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"”). The
amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before
the introduction of the alternative RFR. In
addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the
Group as the Group does not have any interest
rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply
lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence
of the covid-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for
the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (ii) any
reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change
to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier
application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

(e)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
certain monthly lease payments for the leases
of the Group’s plant and machinery have
been reduced or waived by the lessors upon
reducing the scale of service as a result of the
pandemic and there are no other changes to
the terms of the leases. The Group has early
adopted the amendment on 1 January 2020
and elected not to apply lease modification
accounting for all rent concessions granted
by the lessors as a result of the pandemic
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, a reduction in the lease
payments arising from the rent concessions
of RMB385,000 has been accounted for as a
variable lease payment by derecognising part
of the lease liabilities and crediting to profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide
a new definition of material. The new
definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information, or
both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not

yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2022

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023

g No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts® ¢

lassification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current *

Property, Plant and Fquipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfillng a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative

Examples accompanying HKFRS 16 and HKAS 412

2 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEERERNE B UK R

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace
a reference to the previous Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its recognition principle for an entity to refer
to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK
(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK
(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt
with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The
Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient
to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of
the interest rate benchmark reform and the new
basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise
on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the
hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable
requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably
expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users
of financial statements to understand the effect
of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be
applied retrospectively, but entities are not required
to restate the comparative information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEERERNE B UK R

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group had no interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and foreign currencies based on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate and the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR") as at 31 December 2020. If
the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced
by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this
practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings when the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met and expects that no significant
modification gain or loss will arise as a result of
applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in
January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments specify that if an entity’'s right
to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability
at the end of the reporting period if it complies
with those conditions at that date. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a
liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost
of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in
the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEERERNE B UK R

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the
purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous
under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which
it first applies the amendments. Earlier application
is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the
fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An
entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration
of payments from the lessor relating to
leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes
potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statements
of financial position at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures are included in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and comprehensive
income. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or
joint ventures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is classified as held for sale, it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities and
assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair
value and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and non-current assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortization) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

10%-33.33%
10%-33.33%
10%-33.33%
10%-33.33%

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and amortised on the straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life of 3 to 5
years.

Customer relationship

Client relationship has an amortization period of
nine years based on estimated beneficial period
considering industry experience, customer retention
rate and others.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project
and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office premises
Equipment

2 to 5 years
2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the
present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a

made.

modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(¢) Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets
The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of
low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (equity investments)
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e  the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred assets is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables
and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage T —  Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowing, or
payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowing and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, Lease liabilities, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of loans and
borrowings is as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortization
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization
is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and
held by the Company or the Group (treasury shares)
are recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group's own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions
will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between
the payment by the customer and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Provision of property management services
Revenue from the provision of management
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives the benefits provided by
the Group. Like the previous year, revenue from the
lump sum basis are recognised on a gross basis,
and revenue from fixed remuneration contracts are
recognised on a net basis.

Provision of urban sanitary services

Revenue from the provision of urban sanitary
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives the benefits provided by the
Group.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

200 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

= R (E)

RHMEEERS
REEERBOURBEDREZERE
EHETAER  RESEPRE KR
MAEBERENNS - WRAEF 28
e s TR ABEEERER  BE
et DI FREERR -

e (o 3R IR BT IR 7%

B 7 % P [R] IR W ER R &% [ AT 4R AR A &
AR R BRIR B IR A% 2 Wz R AT 8
BAZEGREETAER -

H b Yg A
MEBAREFEEREAERR BOX
RAgKeR T AR EAFHARE
RHE(E R RFTEE NG RERE
WAEEMREZSREERT FE
H TR RFER -

P B U A T i SZ Ak BROMCER R IE B 4 A
5 B 57 - B IS AE R A A O R 2 A R S
mAASEBARE CHEERSENE -

BHREE
MEFPRAKERAEERRHEE MmIR

TS A SRR - AN R R IR B H B (A
REERB)EBEMNAGE - AWERE

N
T

[}

RAEBREBEANENR(AIEBES
KRB EFEERETELPR)ERR
W as o

\r

nk
|

-
>



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share award scheme

The Company operates a share award scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
cause to be paid to the trustee sums of money from
the Company’s resources for the purchase of shares
to be held on trust in accordance with the Scheme
and the trust deed. Such sums of money shall be
applied toward the purchase of the specific number
of shares from the open market according to the
written instructions of the Board of Directors.

The consideration paid by the trustee for purchasing
the Company’s shares from the market is presented
as “shares held for the share award scheme” and
the amount is deducted from total equity.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in central pension schemes operated by
the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension schemes.
The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension schemes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the note 11 to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China use Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") as their functional currencies, respectively.
The functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries
is Renminbi. As the Group mainly operates
in Mainland China, Renminbi is used as the
presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

BA TR IR AR B =E

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

24 EXETEEBEE)

5
ARRRETRF B A IA SN EM K
MBARDRERET(ETDIER
HIt 8% - nEIMBARININEEES
BARE ARASETERHEAM
re WMARBRIEARENZSEE -
AREZEBNYBHRERMINAR LR
ZERBBTRENNEERTE - A&
EERAESNINERIZIRNBRRS
ERAMEXBESNELER - INEGHE
MEBEEMBEAREHRMERXK
ERDEE!R REEAMEGKIAR
EENZENBERPER -

BIINEESLKAGFENIFEREERE - U
MIERZHEERBRE - W RAFEFED
SNEFEBIBRENAERATFERHER
MEXKE BMELRANFEFTENIE
KHRBMELEM K S REIRRERZA
BRFEESEENREIE A (A
REfpE2ERAXBETEIALTFER
ERNHEEELEZ®SR  TosREdEm
WK BRPER) -

SETHREERARAR £2020203



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is
the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than Renminbi.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Renminbi at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating units and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2020 was
RMB25,901,000 (2019: Nil). Further details are given
in note 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilized. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2020
was RMB839,000 (2019: RMB212,000). The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised
tax losses at 31 December 2020 was nil (2019:
Nil). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at
31 December 2020 was RMB48,644,000 (2019:
RMB45,673,000). Further details are contained in
note 31 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative
of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 22 to the financial
statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest
rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets including
the right-of-use assets at the end of each reporting
period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued
based on a market-based valuation technique as
detailed in note 41 to the financial statements.
The valuation requires the Group to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select
the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair value of
these investments as Level 3. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2020
was RMB6,552,000 (2019: RMB6,290,000). Further
details are included in note 19 to the financial
statements.

2 (08 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

E R 5 M8 R A8

HEFNAEEM (&)
FeRMEEREEERIN

REBREHRER  AEBEFEREHR
MEEBECAREE)RSEEMAHR
BERR - BERABEEESFETR
BRI - I8 077 12 48 B BF &R A9 H A B
ETRENR EMIFeMEENLR
AJ BE T BE U [0 B T 2 2R A R R B A 1T R
BEAR EEEXBREELEMMNER
B8 E A E & 5 (B E A FE R
EXRANEEREEMETRARE) R
AFERE R FERBDSEXATSIRE
BAFHEARIETERHORDNEL
EELERSMSNARBEATBE
MGERBELEEEMNEENANE -
EECREER  ERELAME
EFRcELBEUNBRRRRSRE -
WEZAERBRE  UFEZFRER
EMRE-

FLETRAKENAFE
FLTRAREDRBEERT S HE
BT E FHEHRMBEREM T4 -
ZEEERFAEBRATTELRARAD
A(RIER T EEZEREE - L K
SEBFERBUEAEZENTN -
AEBBZERENATEIEARAE=
& o M2020512A318 > FE LT RAKR
ErAFEABARMG,552,0005L (2019
F: AR ¥6,290,0007T) ° #E— S EFIB
BRI wERMTE9 -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their services and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Property management services; and
(b)  Urban sanitary services

In previous years, the Board of Directors considered
that there were no reportable operating segments
other than the property management service
segment. In 2020, the Group acquired a 51%
equity interest in Hong Xin Environmental Group
Co., Ltd.. Hong Xin Environmental Group Co., Ltd.
is involved in operation of urban sanitary services.
Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Due to the changes in
the composition of segment this year, no operating
segment information in 2019. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit before
tax except that interest income, share of profits and
loss of joint ventures and associates, non-lease-
related finance costs, other unallocated income and
gains as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

4,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4.

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

BZ2020512R318LEE

Segment revenue (note 5)

7 3 U 38 (P 52 5)

REsHER (@)

Urban
sanitary
services

BERERSE
RMB’000
AR®ETR

Property
management
services

NEEERK
RMB’000
ARBTR

Total
18 5t

RMB’000
AR®TR

Service provided to external customers  [ENER PR KRB 514,096 249,712 763,808
Segment results PWEE 58,111 46,042 104,153
Reconciliation: B
Interest income FEWA 1,264
Share of profits and losses of: EHEATARESE:

Joint ventures BELE 1,033

Associates BehE 11,769
Other unallocated income and gains Hi kDB A Rz 8,487
Corporate and other unallocated PERHEMRDERX

expenses (71,900)
Finance costs (other than interest on BERA(HERERNE

lease liabilities) BR M) (5,456)
Profit before tax BR AT 49,350
Geographical information ih & & ¥

HRAEEMBEREHELEENFTER
Mo B (W) 5 B 3 RS MO S IR BT AR A
BAREEMABFABEEANRFTENA
o A EREBEEFBMBERESERNES
WAL D2 EER -

Since all of the Group’s revenue was generated
from providing property management services and
urban sanitary services in Mainland China and all
of the Group’s non-current assets were located in
Mainland China, no geographical information in
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is
presented.

ERITEEFNER
HERAKRERE-FTFELRNHEEDR
ZAAEEBWEMI0%EIA £ BIA
BEREBEEBMBEREEINFESRLZ S
H2INEBEFER °

Information about major customers

Since none of the Group's sales to a single customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue, no information about major customers in
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is
presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& Httr A RW =

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

W iran T

2020 2019
-y XN —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T N R
Revenue from contracts with KEEFEH W 2
customers
Property management service BRHMEERRBKA
income on the lump sum basis 509,149 476,646
Property management B & 5 ¥ EEERBE KA
service income on the fixed
remuneration basis 4,947 4,884
Urban sanitary service income YK #E IR 187 AR 765 A 249,712 —
763,808 481,530
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEAN KA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information @ HEKR=ZEH
2020 2019
-y XN —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE T N R
Timing of revenue recognition U 25 # 5% i &
Services transferred over time & BF 5] 22 3% 1 AR 7%
Property management services VEERRY 514,096 481,530
Urban sanitary services IR FARTE 249,712 —
763,808 481,530
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& Httlg ARWK = (%)
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEANWE (8)
(continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) @@ HBER=ZERE)
The following table shows the amount of TR R AR B E R R
revenue recognised in the current reporting R ZERZARIIERSEH
period that was included in the contract T H & 4 8 E A 5t AT HA 52 K
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting WBEABEEESR TA®R:
period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2020 2019
—EZEF —hE
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARB Tt NG R
Revenue recognised that was ERRARBmEHIET)
included in contract liabilities at AERHBENRE:
the beginning of the reporting
period:
Provision of property management 2t ¥ % & 12 R 7%
services 6,264 5,425

(b) Performance obligation
Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Property management services and urban
sanitary services

The performance obligation is satisfied over
time as services are rendered. Management
service contracts are for periods of one to
five years, and are billed based on the time
incurred.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December are as follows:

(b)

BHAEE
BRASENEHNETERB AL
mr

MEEERBEBEBRERS
BAOBEBRERBOEETX -

EERBAENNIE-—ERFNFH
RN WIRELNKMBR -

RMB 000
AR®T

Amounts expected to be recognised

T‘Eﬁﬂﬁéﬁ A W 2

as revenue: ki
Within one year —F R 596,881 353,158
After one year B iE —F 397,884 242,135
994,765 595,293
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& HttWr ARWK = (%)
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEAN KR (8)
(continued)
(b)  Performance obligation (continued) (b)y BHEEE)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to FEEHBEBR —FEBEERAREZND
the remaining performance obligations which RERTEHNEETNXRZERLSE
are expected to be recognised as revenue SRR AERNERN Y EEER
after one year relate to property management e N ER TRAOSENFREHR
services, of which the performance obligations BT EEBEROEEHER —E R
are to be satisfied within five years. All the BRAWS FYRBENSEY
other amounts of transaction prices allocated T FE PR B B E o
to the remaining performance obligations are
expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year. The amounts disclosed above do
not include variable consideration which is
constrained.
2020 2019
ZE-TF s
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARB T T
Other income H fih It A
Interest income R 2 A 1,478 1,316
Government grants* HFHREE 6,627 2,633
Others Hfth 775 2,793
8,880 6,742
Gains W&
Gain on disposal of associates HEMEPERR 200 —
Fair value gain on re-measurement of %A AE —HA L D ¥
a previously held equity interest N ERE TG
in a joint venture # 359 —
Fair value gains net: N EWR=EFRE:
Financial assets at fair value through Z A FEHFAEBZHN S
profit or loss Bh& E 312 .
871 —
9,751 6,742
G Government grants include various subsidies * BNEHEORBEAEEREEBRNEE

received by the Group from the relevant government
bodies. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants.

ESmzRmEe  MEREXSHB R
ERGHXIAESEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBA0E R
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after AEBEBRBARMNIDINRTISEERS
charging: el
2020 2019
-y XN — T F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000

g3 AR% T N R

Cost of services provided 12 AR 75 Ak A< 646,561 407,359
Depreciation of property, plant ME - - BERZHE
and equipment e 13 10,313 1,655
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1 Fl # & E i & 14 4,115 .
Amortization of intangible assets & £ & & # $4 16 6,798 750
Research and development costs & 2 X A< 4,842 8,041
Employee benefit expenses EERNMAX
(including directors’ and chief (PREERTE
executive’s remuneration THAEME
(note 8)): (Mf5E8)) =
Wages and salaries IEKFH® 234,281 101,984
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIH R (R
(defined contribution EH AT ED)
scheme) 18,713 34,561
Lease payments not included R AHEAETE
in the measurement of lease FopiER-R NN
liabilities 965 2,458
Auditor’s remuneration % EURT BN & 1,600 1,400
Bank charges |ITWE 236 307
Office expenses PRAEMXK 4,387 2,641
Impairment of trade receivables, & 5 /& U 3% H & &
net R 22 5,541 707
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & — R 8
NAEE 35 46 —
Net loss on disposal of items of HEWE - MEKLR
property, plant and equipment HIEBEBFE 566 80
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

INTEREST EXPENSES 7. MEMEX
An analysis of interest expenses is as follows: MERAIZDHWT:
2020 2019
TECZF s
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T N R
Interest expenses on bank loans and R 1T 18 5 K B A fE KA B
other borrowings X 5,456 1,676
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGEHNER 433 —
5,889 1,676
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFETHAEMS

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time, section 383(1)(a), (b), (¢) and (f)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

BIBEBRAES EMRA(ETREET
HRIUNEM AT ENR) - BEERAK
B 85383(1)(@) * (b) * (K (f)1E A KA 7
(BBEESMNZER RO FE28 BT
BENFRESERTETHRAENMS M
T

2020 2019

—E-EEF —E-NEF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®E T INGL R

Fees | 315 315

Other emoluments: B2 -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in He FRHMAEYWEF

kind 2,836 2,753

Pension scheme contributions BIKEETEI X 77 162

2,913 2,915

3,228 3,230
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFEMTHAEME(H)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors () BUKHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FAENBIFERITESTNHRES N
directors during the year were as follows: i

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®E T INGL R

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence AERLAE 105 105
Mr. Cheng Dong BREE 105 105
Mr. Weng Guogiang SR %k AE 105 105

315 315
There were no other emoluments payable FA - BEENTEIENTES
to the independent non-executive directors B E At Bl € (20194F : £8)

during the year (2019: Nil).

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) BITEE - —BHFHTEER
director and the chief executive FETHRAE

Year ended 31 December 2020
B 220205128310 LFE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total

Fees in kind contributions remuneration

¢ 24
re RENEA Bik&stal "3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR® TR ARETR

Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Xiao Xing Tao HEBRLAE — 929 — 929
Mr. Fu Qi Chang BHEEXE — 654 — 654
Mr. Xiao Yu Qiao™ HPELED — 590 34 624
Mr. Jia Shao Jun EVERAE — 580 34 614
Ms. Wang Hui® FEx+o — 83 9 92

Non-executive director; JEH{TESE:
Mr. Zhang Yong Jun RESLEE = = — —

- 2,836 77 2,913
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFEMTHAEME(H)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) HI1TESE - —BIFHATEER
director and the chief executive FETHAER (8)
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F12831BLFE
Salaries,
allowances and Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions  remuneration
e 2 RN
e REMEF BE R % %
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREBTT ARBTRT ARET:

Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Xiao Xing Tao HEBLAE — 929 — 929
Mr. Fu Qi Chang BEEXE — 654 — 654
Mr. Xiao Yu Qiao™ HYELED = 590 81 671
Mr. Jia Shao Jun ELBEEE — 580 81 661

Non-executive director: JEHITES -
Mr. Zhang Yong Jun RESELE = — — _

— 2,753 162 2,915
(1) Mr. Xiao Yu Qiao is also the chief executive of the () HBTBLENARNRGBITHEAH -
Company.
(2)  Ms. Wang hui was appointed as an executive (2) ITELLMN2020F11A20HEZT A
director of the Company on 20 November 2020. RRFHITES -
There was no arrangement under which a FA BEEMNESFSHEEZTHR
director or the chief executive waived or AEREZEXFAERETEMAM 2
agreed to waive any remuneration during the ZHE o
year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HEBRBHES

The five highest paid employees during the year FRN hEEaFEERRNEESTR
included four directors including the chief executive FETHRABQIIF:UEZEE 881
(2019: four directors including the chief executive), THEAR) BENNEFBI R EX
details of whose remuneration are set out in note BzE8 « 2 T~ — R (2019%F : — &)W IR
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year RAEEXFTETBRAENERTESE
of the remaining one (2019: one) highest paid WERNB ST :

employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EE —E—NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARE Tt INGE R
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind # & - 285 & E W& F 580 580
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE TSR 34 81
614 661
The number of non-director and non-chief executive MENFUTHENIEEETRIEETENT
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell BRAENESHFEEAHNT:
within the following band is as follows:
2019
—E-NF

Nil to RMB1,000,000 =z AR %1,000,0007T 1
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. The Group and the Company
are not liable for income tax in Hong Kong as they
did not have assessable income sourced from Hong
Kong during the year.

The Company is a tax-exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Provision for the PRC income tax has been made at
the applicable income tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%)
on the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries.

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

10. FIEHEAX
AEBEANERELERAEBEKER
J‘E"Eafﬂﬁ&i«‘%Fﬁ&?éi%liﬁﬁ?i&

SEENXMABER - AEBRAR
Tﬂ/,\f”%ﬂl MBEBAEHR BRERFA
WEIREEBOERBTIA

ARARRASESEMKRINEHA
IS
B BB A

i E25% (20194 : 25%) #E
TR o

A E R B s M IR @B E
EITHRE RS

2020 2019
TECTF s
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE T N R

Current Mainland China corporate BN ER A B A 1 3 AT AR
income tax charge for the year M A % H 14,171 3,500
Deferred tax (note 31) PR R T (M FE31) (1,789) (177)
Total tax charge for the year FAMIE L ERE 12,382 3,323
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H
10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FIEHBEX(E)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable BEARARARERHESMB AR GFMAE
to profit before tax at the statutory rate for the ADERE R A TE TR 5T H B R B AT &R A P
jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority HANBERYBEZERBEEAENT
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense HRTHE  AREARE(BEERER)
at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the HERBENEHENT
applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the
effective tax rates are as follows:
2020 2019
g g 2N T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NS R
Profit before tax B B4 A & A 49,350 23,804
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% IR EHE25%
FTEHHRIA 12,338 5,951
Lower tax rates enacted by local 1 75 1% A AR e
authority B B (R B K (518) (234)
Tax losses utilized from previous periods FT &) F i@ 7 Hi i
i 18 &5 18 (282) —
Profits attributable to joint ventures and A& ¥ ME & D ¥ E
associates (note (a)) 16 % M (M 3 @) (3,200) (2,991)
Adjustment in respect of current tax of FLBEHIM Z BVHEFI 1B
previous period YEH A& 221 —
Expenses not deductible for tax TR ) R 2 2,958 696
Release of tax provision upon the expiry B &% J& i 18 % b B 18
of statute of limitation (note (b)) B s (Pff 5% (b)) — (3,285)
Tax losses not recognised ANERMIBEE 865 3,186
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate A KB BRI K E
B 750 T8 B S2 12,382 3,323
Notes: ML
(@  The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and (a) @12020@12H31E¢$V DIEE X
associates amounting to RMB4,365,000 for the year B %A A R #4,365,0007T (2019
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB3,670,000) is £: AR %3,670,0007T) NitAGZEER
included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures X[PIEAL P ERBL DR

(b)

and associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The release of a tax provision of RMB3,285,000
represented differences between tax provided under the
Deemed Profit Basis and Accounting Book Basis for certain
entities of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015. Such provision is only released upon the latter of i)
the receipt of confirmation from the competent tax bureau
about the adoption of the deemed profit tax assessment
basis and the tax rate following the provisions of relevant
PRC tax laws, which was received in April 2017; and ii) the
expiration of the statute of limitation of the tax provision
for the year ended 31 December 2015, which was on 31
May 2019.
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(b)

iR B T TE B B A R #3,285,000T 5 & =
2005 RAMBLFEAEEE TERRER
EmfEEEBRYRELETIRFEEE
MEZFE EHEBEERNIKIEERBREE
B8RP EAR MR ENRERBRE &
AMEERMENBERE - B N20175F48
Bz ERE Ri)E E2015F12A8318 1
FER B IE B SR BOE B R(R201945A8
31EER) % (UERBEEERB®E) FUARR -



11.

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS

1.

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
=

2020 2019
8 -~
RMB’000 RMB’000
INLEFH =T

Interim — HKO0.8 cents (2019: HKO0.8 RE — FREEAR0.8E

cents) per ordinary share il (20194 : 0.8711l) 3,600 2,903

Proposed final — HK1.2 cents BEAH —SREBER
(2019: Nil) per ordinary share 1.278400 (20194 : &) 4,104 —
7,704 2,903

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the ordinary shares of 396,782,000 (2019:
397,479,967) in issue during the year, as adjusted
to reflect the weighted average number of shares
repurchased under the share award scheme during
the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

12.

AFEEZERBBRBALEARARRR
B AR ERBERE LK -

BAREBESERBEARAER
27

BREAABANCE NIRRT QR L BEER
BEAEBRAFEEZAEAFECET
396,782,000 /% (20194 : 397,479,967f% )
EBERE TOETABRURBRASF
B 1R 1% A% 17 4% B 51 &1 & = AR 1D &9 o0 &
T8 o

HZE2020F12A3IBIEEE  AEFE W
BB ECRITERMK (2019F 1 ) -

SETHREERARAR F4§2020221



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. BRAREBAESBEEAELAEBR
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BF (&)
THE PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per BREAREERN DIRATEEE -
share are based on:
2020 2019
iy g 28 T F
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR% Tt NS R
Earnings 2F
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BRRIERAERAMAA
holders of the parent J& {5 & F 26,209 17,802
Number of shares
iz 4 8 B
Shares [gvi)
Weighted average number of ordinary AFEE#{TEL BN
shares in issue during the year I ¥E F 15 & 396,782,000 397,479,967
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted (RMB) ERXR#E(ARE) 0.07 0.04
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERRX®E
Plant and
machinery
BERKE
RMB000
ARETR

Leasehold
improvements

BENXRE

Furniture and Motor
fixtures vehicles Total
BRR%E RE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
N S ARETT AEET TR

RMB'000
ARB TR

31 December 2020 2020512318
At 1 January 2020: R2020F1718:

Cost A& 1,941 3,765 1,564 4,049 11,319

Accurnulated depreciation ZithE (922) (2,463) (959) (2,608) (6,952)

Net carrying amount REFE 1,019 1,302 605 1,441 4,367
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated  2020F1A18 - 1k 2

depreciation HhE 1,019 1,302 605 1,401 4,367
Additions NE 1,455 1,456 212 10,276 13,429
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) WM BN E (W3t34) 216 3,072 479 25,865 29,632
Disposals & - (285) 7 (515) (807)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) HE-FNBAA

(K 3£35) (258) (301) (170) (557) (1,286)

Depreciation provided during the year £ 17 & B f& (Hf £6)

(note 6) (454) (1,453) (292) (8,114) (10,313)
At 31 December 2020, net of R20206128318

accumulated depreciation NhZitne 1,978 3,791 857 28,396 35,022
At 31 December 2020: R2020F12 8318

Cost kA& 3,302 10,549 2,547 60,196 76,594

Accumulated depreciation 2 g (1,324) (6,758) (1,690) (31,800) (#1,572)

Net carrying amount BHTE 1,978 3,791 857 28,396 35,022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

(continued)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% - BMERRE(E)

Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Motor
improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total
RENERE  HREREE  HURRE AE i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETX
31 December 2019 2019128318
At 1 January 2019: R019E1A1R
Cost A 1,856 3,153 1,055 4,253 10,317
Accumulated depreciation Zith & (946) (2,170) (881) (2,570) (6,567)
Net carrying amount EmFE 910 983 174 1,683 3,750
At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated ~ F2019F1818 - H1B 2
depreciation AHE 910 983 174 1,683 3,750
Additions AE 640 894 534 284 2,352
Disposals iHE - (49) () (28) (80)
Depreciation provided during the year /R 17 & & & (I 6)
(note 6) (531) (526) (100) (498) (1,655)
At 31 December 2019, net of R019512A318 - Il
accumulated depreciation ZithE 1,019 1,302 605 1,441 4,367
At 31 December 2019; 20195128318 :
Cost A 1,94 3,765 1,564 4,049 11,319
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (922) (2.463) (959) (2,608) (6,952)
Net carrying amount REYE 1,019 1,302 605 1,441 4367

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’'s
motor vehicles with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB6,320,000 (2019: Nil) were
pledged to secure certain of the other borrowings

(note 30).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

14. HE&
AEBEREEA
AEBERSERRGH - BEMRKREBET
YHERY MASHEENENAR
225 MMERKRENES A3
F-HpHEERZNHERBE R12@EA

14. LEASES
The Group as a lessee
The Group has lease contracts for various items of
office premises, and plant and equipment. Leases of
office premises generally have lease terms between

2 and 5 years, while plant and equipment have
lease terms of 3 years. Other rental agreements
generally have lease terms of 12 months or less and
are individually of low value.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-
use assets and the movements during the year
are as follows:

As at 1 January 2020 7202051418

S EREAERNAEBEEE-

(@ EREEE
FR-AKENERREEREE
NEBHWT :

Office
premises

D5

RMB’000
ARBTR

Plant and
equipment
RMB’000
AR®BT R

Total

Mt
RMB’000
AR¥ TR

Additions NE 7,529 — 7,529
Additions as a result of Bl U B — ] B BB

acquisition of a subsidiary RAANE

(note 34) (Bt 5£34) 2,811 1,414 4,225
Depreciation charge (note 6)  #7 & 7 X (Ffi 5¥6) (3,241) (874) (4,115)
Revision of a lease term arising “~ 7] 1 5 72 & 81 8

from a change in the non- SHBEHREITH

cancellable period of a &1

lease — (393) (393)
As at 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H 7,099 147 7,246
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

14. HE (&)
FEBEEREEAN (8)

Lease liabilities by HEAE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FA - -HEAENREELEHN
movements during the year are as follows: ™
2020
—E-EF
RMB’000
AR T
Carrying amount at 1 January MTATEMEREE —
New leases Mg 7,529
Additions as a result of acquisition of a WE—FNEBRARIRE
subsidiary (note 34) (B 7%34) 4,533
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 4 X B2 # 2 | 8 1 10 433
Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors HBE AL FTHHTHES KIS
HEEE SRR (385)
Payments E:N (4,055)
Revision of a lease term arising from a change A #$47H & HAR & 8 E
in the non-cancellable period of a lease & 5] 7 & 5 (493)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31HMEREE 7,562
Analysed into: DR
Current & E o 3,390
Non-current SER B EB 9 4,172

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities
is disclosed in note 43 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

15.

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

14. HE (&)
AEBEEREEAN (B)

() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in 0 REZHREHEEEMNEEN
relation to leases are as follows: K
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®E Tt NG B
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 433 -
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FAEEEMITERAX
assets 4,115 —
Expense relating to short-term leases EEHIAE R KEBEEE
and leases of low-value assets HMEMEBERX 965 2,458
Covid-19-related rent concessions HEAGLTHFERE
from lessors ZIEHEBEHES R R (385) —
Total amount recognised in profit or KRB ERN B S5
loss 5,128 2,458
(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future d HEMBesTHABEREERRA
cash outflows relating to leases that have not BEEHBENRKRERERE
yet commenced are disclosed in notes 36(c) to PR B 75 3 2% B FE36(0) ©
the financial statements.
GOODWILL 15. B &

RMB’000
ARBTR

31 December 2020
Cost at 1 January 2020

2020412 831A
2020451 A18 8 5L A —

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) W g — R M8 & &) (B 5E34) 25,901
Cost and net carrying amount at 7202012 A31H M A A K BR

31 December 2020 O FE 25,901
At 31 December 2020: 7202012 A318 :

Cost and net carrying amount B AN I BR EDF B 25,901
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

15. GOODWILL (continued) 15. B8 (|

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the Hong Xin Environmental Group Co.,
Ltd.

The recoverable amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 18.4%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the
cash flows beyond the five-year period is 3%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the relevant cash-generating units for
31 December 2020. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based
its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market
development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on
market development of urban sanitary service
income and the discount rates are consistent with
external information sources.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. BL&EE

Customer
relationship Software Total
EEHE Qs st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR®TR ARE T
31 December 2020 202012 H31H
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of 20201 B1BHI X
accumulated amortization AN B BETEE G — 3,490 3,490
Additions NE — 165 165
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y b — KT B 2 &)
(note 34) (FF 5£34) 54,000 = 54,000
Amortization provided during the 4 /9 4 8 % 1%
year (note 6) (M 7¥6) (5,500) (1,298) (6,798)
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H 48,500 2,357 50,857
At 31 December 2020: 72020912 A318 ¢
Cost BN 54,000 4,493 58,493
Accumulated amortization B (5,500) (2,136) (7,636)
Net carrying amount AREFE 48,500 2,357 50,857
Software
7 gEs
RMB'000
AR F T
31 December 2019 201912 H31H
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated MR2019F 1 A1H AR A - 31
amortization B i 895
Additions NE 3,345
Amortization provided during the year (note 6) 8 5H B (M 5e) (750)
At 31 December 2019 MR2019412 A31H 3,490
At 31 December 2019: M2019F12A318
Cost DN 4,629
Accumulated amortization REr# (1,139)
Net carrying amount R FE 3,490

SEITHREERARAR F4£2020229



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17.
2019

Ll -~

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T T N

Share of net assets DIEEEFE 14,879 19,858
BT CINE Y ¥ E B R A A (Hefei Zheng ERETBXNEMEERERAB(E
Wen Bund Property Management Co., Ltd.) (“Hefei EBRXDEEHEETEENEERAAR
Zheng Wen") and M E B IMEEEER QA AEBEEPERERAAEEN B
(Hunan Pujiang Property Management Co., Ltd.) e

("Hunan Pu Jiang) are joint ventures of the Group
and are considered to be related parties of the

Group.
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as BECENFBEOT:
follows:
Percentage of
111
Place and date of Ownership Voting Profit
Name registration Issued capital interest power sharing  Principal activities
1 BRMERAH BERATRE fERER REE JWEN IEXE
Hefei Zheng Wen Hefei, the PRC RMB30,000,000 50% 50% 50%  Property management
14 April 2004 services
FEHX rEAE AK#30,000,0007 NEERRH
200447148
Hunan Pujiang Property Hunan, the PRC RMB6,500,000 66.5% 50% 66.5%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd* 15 May 2019 services
BERINEER hEHE AR 6,500,000 NEERRB
ERAH 201954198
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17.

18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REELERE(H)

(continued)

The following table illustrates the financial TRIINTAEERBAEERGERLEN
information of the Group's joint ventures that are BB EHR:

not individually material:

2020 2019
—z-zs EEEEPES
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T 7 [N

Share of the joint ventures’ profit for the F R D 1E4A & ¥ 8%
year and total comprehensive income A R 2E = B 1,033 5,082

Carrying amount of the Group's

ARERGELERE

investment in the joint ventures #) BR H & 14,879 19,858
The Group considers that it doesn’t control Hunan AEBRAHEIY REHAEBIMESE
Property Management Co. Ltd as it owns 50% of BERAR  AREFASONKRERE -
the voting rights.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. RBE L XRE

2020 2019
—z-zs EEEEPES
RMB’000 RMB'000
IGLEFAN =T r

Share of net assets DIHBEEFE 73,261 67,700
Goodwill on acquisition W B B i B 17,360 15,315
90,621 83,015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H
18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REEZE XK E (5H)

EBREFMEE B RSB R A A (Shanghai EFBRFMEBEEREARAT(L
Dong Fang Xin Di Commercial Services Co., BRE)) - LB REMEBERAA(L
Ltd.) (“Shanghai Xin Di"), F B W% B R BRE]D) BEEMHMTMESMEERS
A 7] (Shanghai Qiang Sheng Property Co., Ltd.) RAR(ERBTES] TR EAD
(“Shanghai Qiang Sheng”), 2% 3 T &35 ¥ % XEBARARTZBAHRD LB
&3 H R QA (Ningbo Plaza Property Management MG EERBREERAR(LEFRT
Co., Ltd.) (“Ningbo Plaza”), ZH B H W £ & & D) - EmRRMYWEEEQR(ERA
B AR (Anhui Pu Bang Property Management MDRLZREBMEERERARR/A
Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Pu Bang”), /@ #mit ¥ & SEBMECERERARNEBN@ART

B R ABR AT (Shanghai Xin Shi Bei Enterprise
Management Services Co., Ltd.) (“Shanghai Xin Shi
Bei”), FA AT ¥ % B B 2 Al (Nanjing Songzhu
Property Management Company Limited.) (“Nanjing
Songzhu") Z B E B EE BB R 2 F (Anhui
Xingpu Property Management Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui
Xing pu”) are associates of the Group and are
considered to be related parties of the Group.

The following table illustrates the aggregate TE25AEFFERIEE AL
financial information of the Group’s associates that EMERTBER
are not individually material:

2020 2019
Sl -~
RMB’000 RMB'000
INLEFH =57

Share of the associates’ profit for the FADIEBELEN R

year and total comprehensive income FEE2EY R ETE 11,769 6,882
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBRBERERE
Group's investments in the associates K ER MR E 90,621 83,015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

19. EEELQAFEHFAHMBZE K S

HRARE

2020 2019
8l - -
RMB’000 RMB’000
INLEFH =57

Equity investments designated EERAFETAHM
at fair value through other ZEHRENREERE
comprehensive income
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3E ETRAIKE - R F
E&r
URF Holding Group Limited URF Holding Group
Limited 5,852 5,590
Jiangcheng Hujiang Lianfeng IR TR B R
Agriculture Technology Co., Ltd. EBRAF 700 700
Shanghai Guotao Real Estate EEEEEHERR
Co., Ltd.* NI 1,500 1,500
Impairment BE (1,500) (1,500)
6,552 6,290
Listed equity investments, at fair value EWHRAKE L QF
E&t
Singapore Food Holdings Limited N ERER
BRAA 2,244 —
8,796 6,290

The above equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

* Shanghai Guotao Real Estate Co., Ltd. did not generate
any revenue and it had ceased to operate any business
including property management services since 2010. As
such, full impairment had been made.

P BRARECS T A RE I ERAF
Bt AREE KR RARASER
REZEREBREIEE -

* LEEEEERRARN EEEFE M
EE200FRILREEMER (BRYESE
BRT) - Bt EfEH 2 EURE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

20. HithFRBEE

2020 2019
XY ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt NG R
Prepayment related to an acquisition B — T U 5 4B B B TR A
(note (a)) KA (M 5E (@) — 30,000
Due from non-controlling shareholder & U 3 4% f% % 3R 3 1A
(note (b)) (Hft &£ (b)) 17,286 —
Deposits ey 19,184 —
Long term prepayments R HEITE N KIA 7,213 —
43,683 30,000
Note: M 5
(@)  The balance represents a non-refundable prepayment () #BEEZWBEILMERESESRAAMN
for the proposed acquisition of Hong Xin Environmental AR EEATHIE -
Group Co., Ltd..
(b)  The balance represents the advance to non-controlling by #HBABEMILMREREEEEGRARIFEER
shareholders of Hong Xin Environmental Group Co., Ltd. fRRKIE -
P i
21. INVENTORIES 21. # &

Consumables

H R

2020
—E-%F

RMB’'000
AR TR

223

2019
ZE-NF
RMB’000
AR T T

168
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

22. EF5RWRE

2020 2019

—EEF —E-NF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARE Tt NG R

Trade receivables 25 E W IE 149,966 101,030
Impairment T E (6,935) (847)
143,031 100,183

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally
10 to 30 days, extending up to three months for
major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are
amounts due from the Group’s joint ventures
and associates of RMB63,000 (2019: Nil) and
RMB86,000 (2019: Nil), respectively, which are
repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to
the major customers of the Group.

At 31 December 2020, a subsidiary has pledged
trade receivables of approximately RMB4,098,000
(2019: Nil) to secure certain of the other borrowings
(note 30).

AEEREFNESHGRATEREE -
EEH-—MA/IOEIOR  TEXFRZ
EERE=AA  BXEFPAERAEERH -
R 5= B B B BE 4 E R W 3 A FE UK
B RARKREEEEHMAAZERE
EERR SHREEEETHNENB RS
e ZERNUNLAMARBERAEENES
BB SERAXETRERS - Ft It~
FHEEERRRESETHNER AEH
I 4 5L & 5 FE WA 45 £ 45 A (E A 5
mak HAE EIRAR - B 5 EWKIETE
B -

ZK%%%EEH&?XIEEPMEEMWK%I
BEPENREE D ERIEARKE3,000
7L (20194 : &) &k A K #86,0007T (2019
ir%)-*ﬁ%%,i{lﬁxﬁéﬁirﬂztx%?a
ERFARHEERS

MR2020F12A31H » —H KB 27 B IR
4 A R #4,098,0007T (20194 : T) Y
Bo R EIE  UEREETHEAE R
£¥30) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EZEWNIEE)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the REWERR BESRKRFEREZAH
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice WHREEREBORE T T

date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2020 2019
b5l T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T IUNE R

Within 1 year 1R 136,725 97,831
Over 1 year BiE1F 6,306 2,352

143,031 100,183
The movements in the loss allowance for ESREWKRREREEEREEEDH N T

impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2020 2019
—EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR®EF T

At beginning of year i) 847 140
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —FHE AT 547 —
Impairment losses (note 6) BB B 18 (M 52e6) 5,541 707
At end of year RE R 6,935 847
An impairment analysis is performed at each RERSHHRABEEREETRESD
reporting date using a provision matrix to measure *ﬁ NstEBHEEEE -BEXDE
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based REERUEBERAXN(AIREFPER K
on days past due for groupings of various customer ARE )N ZER P o E AR e E
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by E%ﬁ(ﬁm et B R SA KN LE
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects ﬁgﬁﬁfﬁ&ﬁ/‘#ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ—f WEBBAT
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of FIE B AIR R R R R AR B {5 1 TR ORI B9
money and reasonable and supportable information A &ﬂ%;ﬁﬂ o —RE BHEW
that is available at the reporting date about past BB AR —FR TAME BB
events, current conditions and forecasts of future BAXRR AT NITIES o

economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables
are written off if past due for more than one year
and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

22. EZRWREGE)
TXHINIZZEZEHARANEEE R
BEENEZERRAREBEMAZINEE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit
risk exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using
a provision matrix based on invoice date:

As at 31 December 2020

[ B & #Y

R2020512H31H

2020
—E-E2HF
Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected
rate amount credit losses
BHEE FHEE
BEXE IR A E BB
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR
Within 1 year 16 1A 0.24% 137,048 323
Over 1 year 8 B1F 51.18% 12,918 6,612
149,966 6,935
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%F12A31H
2019
—E-NF
Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected
rate amount credit losses
BHES EHEE
BREE FRE (8 B8
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR®T
Within 1 year 1A 0.07% 97,831 77
Over 1 year B iE1E 24.07% 3,199 770
101,030 847
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

23. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

23. ANREREMERRE

RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR% Tt N R
Prepayments to suppliers TN TR SIE 8,377 9,774
Payments on behalf of residents REBERXNRIEA
(note (a)) (M 5 (@) 21,388 23,250
Cash in advance EXRE 2,425 974
Deposits g 20,638 8,927
Prepaid expenses SRR 1,719 1,309
Due from non-controlling shareholders /& U 3 4% f% % 38 318
(note (b)) (Bff 5% (b)) 5,000 .
Amount due from a related party JfE Uk B8 Bt 5 5RIE 2,679 2,465
Others H 1 3,562 1,655
65,788 48,354
Notes: B 5 -
(@ The balance represents payments for property () HHRERXERADEEERBEIMNAR

management services on behalf of residents.

(b)  The balance represents the advance to non-controlling
shareholders of Hong Xin Environmental Group Co., Ltd.

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

24. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

1 o

(b)y HHREBENMNFEEEBRRIMRREEEER
NRIFA -

FFALMEHRN SR EE S R BAT &
# /R I 18 B A0 8% 89 FE WK IE o 7A20204F
K&2019F12A318 » BIEBE T AT G
Y% TR

24. ZRH BT EER

2020 2019

- b5l T OLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T N R

Restricted bank balances received from WHEERMEEERY
residents for property management ) PR &l 4R 17 45 £

services

12,525 14,113
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24.

25.

26.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES (continued)
Restricted bank balances earn interest at interest
rates stipulated by the respective financial
institutions. The restricted bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

24. ZRFBIR T4 8 (8

EREBITHERBSSBEBITEON
KEREBAME - RHRITEBRTDFRE
EER i N BT A R R SRR IR 1T ©

WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRODUCTS 25.
2019
- Il = L F
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE Tt NS R
Wealth management products MEEREEM — 5,000
The wealth management products have a term MEEREmNERBIRN—F BEH
of less than one year and an expected annual FRBREEZT(Q019F :3.7%) ° 1R &
rate of return of nil (2019: 3.7%). Pursuant to e By MEEREmNIHA
the underlying contracts or notices, the wealth BERA ©
management products are principal protected upon
the maturity date.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. B AFEMTABRZNESRHEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%E T NG R

Other unlisted investments, at fair value

B )

Hip3F EMIRE (R LAF

30,312

The above unlisted investments at 31 December
2020 were wealth management products issued in
Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
their contractual cash flows are not solely payments
of principal and interest.

£t R2020F 12 A31MEME LTI E A
EHREAMBEITHOMEEEEM - AR
HeNBeneULFEERAS KA EN
MR EFEMCRIIMESERRA
FEHAAEBEZENSRHEE -

SEITHREERARAR 42020239



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. RERBEEEY

Cash and bank balances

Be RRITE

2020 2019
sl T \F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T N
126,506 143,557

At the end of the reporting period, the cash
and bank balances of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to RMB125,534,000 (2019:
RMB124,804,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is

fﬁAiﬁiB}ﬁﬁE REBUARBENS
e RIBITHEGB R A K125, 53400075
(20194 : A R #124,804,0007T) °

BT ERILB R HEY iéﬁ%o%fﬁi'm
BRREAMOINEET RGO RERE &
ERNEEERTE ~A5EAERER
BEEINEEBHRITBEARBEL RS
HiE® -

permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based EHRRBTHRSREARTHERME
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are BOFEN R RBEAIE - RITERTITFN
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent EEERMFEEIRBERCHEARIT -
history of default.
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28. TRADE PAYABLES

29.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the
end of the reporting periods, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

28. EZEFFRE
RFERAR EHRNREBEZEZHR
Mo

B Bk B 0

2020 2019

—EEF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR Tt INEE S

Within 3 months 3E AN 104,324 71,905
3 to 12 months 321218 A 1,151 2,865
Over 1 year Bid1F 2,157 153
107,632 74,923

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and are normally settled on terms of 5 to

E 5N RIE A E KA
S5EQ0OKRRHILH -

C R B — AR

90 days.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HWERREREFHEA
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE—NF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
k=3 ARE Tt N B
Contract liabilities EHBEE (a) 5,848 6,640
Staff payroll and welfare payables B T T & K 1& Fl| &
IE 23,857 9,968
Deposits received B W Z & (b) 27,121 10,610
Receipts on behalf of residents REEBERKK (© 14,224 29,378
Other tax payable H fth A 15 18 9,648 12,092
Other payables H 4o e FRIE (d) 2,087 =
Payable for acquisition of an Weig — bR
associate NE (e) — 6,875
82,785 75,563
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0

(e)

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

29.

Hit BN RBERETER (B
B
(@ AWBEREMT:

31 December 31 December 1 January
pLp1i] 2019 2019

20205 20194 20194
12A31H 12A31H 1HA1H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBT T ARBT T

Short-term advances received from B EF R 5%
customers
Property management services MEEERYE

5,848 6,640 5,750

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to
deliver property management services.

Among the deposits received, RMB15,900,000 represents
the deposit from the non-controlling shareholder (Ms.
Wang Hui) of Hongixn Environment Group Co., Ltd. for its
financial performance guarantee for 2020.

The balance represents receipts from building residents to
settle utilities, bills, and maintenance and repair fees on
behalf of them.

The balance represents the amounts advanced from a staff
which bear no interest.

The balance represents the outstanding payments related
to the acquisition of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei. The acquisition
was completed in August 2019 and the balance was
settled in 2020.

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

242 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

AHNEEERCHRERMEETERBEIMNEH
B

(b) BdIE£ %+ ARHKI5900000T 55 H
20F M B EERBFUMAMBESEE
ERAFRFERBRETIELLTNES -

() éﬁﬁ%iﬁl‘ﬂ FERBBMBREUARKRKRSE
- BRE - REREEER -

(d) #HHEA - BETHRINTHSRN-

() #WHEMRWEEEFTMIHEBHRERER
I8 o 3% 1B W BB MN2019688 R K & & R
2020F 45 & o

HitENHRELEFERASEER %
,m\&ZEEéxEJZHﬂéJE°



30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

H h

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND 30. GFERITR HEMAERK
OTHER BORROWINGS
2020 2019
20205 2019F
Effective Effective
interest interest rate
rate (%)  Maturity  RMB'000 (%) Maturity ~ RMB'000
ERA% ERA %
(%) I%A AR¥Tn (%) JHMA ARETRn
Current OB
Bank loans — unsecured and  $B1TER — EEEL
unguaranteed BER 3.80-4.35 2021 78,000  400-6.00 200 61515
Bank loans — quaranteed ~ HITEH — BER
(note a) (Ffsta) 6.40 2021 3500 NATEA — -
Other borrowings — EfER—BERR
guaranteed and secured FER (WD)
(note b) 3.95 2021 979 NATER — -
Current portion of long Bt Bt A e BN A
term other borrowings — 5 — BEAERE
secured and quaranteed B (o)
(note ¢) 6.36-11.44 2021 14,532 NATEE — —
97,011 61,515
Non-current N
Other borrowings — secured  EftfE R — EHEMR
and guaranteed (note ) BERMH 6.68-11.44 2022-2023 3,059 NATER — —
3,09 -
100,070 61,515
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND 30. st E R Hh & K (&
OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
2020 2019
—z-zr R
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®E Tt N R
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: EEERITER:
Within one year or on demand JER —FARKE
KB &R 81,500 61,515
81,500 61,515
Other borrowings repayable: EEEZBHEMMER:
Within one year or on demand JER —FARKEX
{8 & 15,511 —
In the second year B _F 2,601 —
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-E2RHF(BEERE
M F) 458 _
18,570 —
100,070 61,515

Notes: M 5

Except for unsecured and unguaranteed bank loans, all BrARER AR Z SRITIER AN - FHRITE

bank loans and other borrowings are granted to Hong Xin %ﬂ&ﬁfﬁ%?ﬂi@%&%%ﬁzﬁiﬁZ?F%ﬁw%@

Environmental Co., Ltd., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the ARAMRIRREEBR AR - WHNLTHERKER

Group, and guranteed or secured by:

(@)  Certain of these bank loans amounting to RMB3,500,000 (@ S£EAARM3500000THETZERT
are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui, Mr. Kou Liang and his Bk TR IE S B A R D E R 3E R
spouse (the non-controlling shareholders of Hong Xin RIELxt BRAERERBRMEER
Environmental Group Co., Ltd.) (2019: Nil). (20194 : &) »

(b)  Certain of these other borrowings amounting to (b) SEAARKEI000THE FRZEHME
RMB979,000 are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui and Mr. FHEBXLITRBRAERBER  mMA
Kou Liang, while the pledges of certain of the Group's SEaEAARK2089,000HETES
trade receivables amounting to RMB2,089,000 are used to FEWRERARE TEMERZIER -
secure certain other borrowings.

© (@) Certain of these other borrowings amounting to © () & mA ANR1425000T M)A T %

RMB1,425,000 are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui. EHMWERETELTIRERER

(i) Certain of these other borrowings amounting to (i) 2HEAARBE7511,0000E TZE
RMB7,511,000 are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui EmERBEELTREEER  mMA
while RMB2,009,000 of trade receivables are used R 2,009,000t W & 5 FfE W 3% 1B A
to secure certain of these other borrowings. RETZEEMERZER -

(i) Certain of these other borrowings amounting to (i) S ERAR4106,0007T 8 & T %
RMB4,106,000 are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui ZHMERABTELXTIERRRELR
and Mr. Kou Liang. HER -

(iv)  Certain of these other borrowings amounting to (iv) 2B ARHKA4549,0007T 1) & T &
RMB4,549,000 are secured by the pledge of certain SHMERBASERERFEAAR
of the Group’s motor vehicles with a net carrying %6,320,0007T B9 & T )9 B K R {E &
amount of RMB6,320,000. R o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

31. DEFERRED TAX 31. IEEFIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BRERBEBEREERFANESHOT

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEBBAME
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
Uy &% B B A B B
2 AFERAE
RMB’000
AR® TR
At 1 January 2020 120201 A1H —
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) W B — R BT 8 & &) (B 5E34) 13,500
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during 7 & A & A 18 # B9 3R & # 18
the year (note 10) (BT zE10) (1,375)
At 31 December 2020 20206124311 12,125
Deferred tax assets EEHRIBEEE
Lease
liabilities Impairment Total
HEAE A et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB"000

ARBETT ARBTT AR®TRT

At 1 January 2019 720191 A1H — 35 35
Deferred tax credited to
profit or loss during the RFERNFTABZEMNIE
year (note 10) FE 7% 18 (Kt 7510) — 177 177

£a)

At 31 December 2019 and 72019412 A31H &
at 1 January 2020 202051 H1H — 212 212

Acquisition of a subsidiary Y B — B KB 2 A
(note 34) (Bt 3E34) 76 137 213
Deferred tax credited to

profit or loss during the RFERFAEBFZRIE
year (note 10) A 778 (B 5£10) 2 624 626
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 78 761 839

SETHREERARAR £ 2020 245



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

31. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31. IELEHIE(E)

Deferred tax assets (continued)
The Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB19,948,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB17,745,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

The Group also had tax losses arising in Mainland
China of RMB28,696,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB27,928,000), that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilized.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10% (2019: 10%). The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.
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EEHEEE (8)

R2020F12A3IH A BEEEBEAL
i I8 518 A R #519,948,0007T (20194 -
A R #17,745,0007T) © AJ BB B3 A3 A0
HELEBEMNQARBNRRERBEF -

72020128318 AEB R AEFRHER
HE A4 B IR B 1B A R 28,696,000
(20194 : A R#27,928,0007T) * # 7 —
ZERFAEE  TAREHERRERSE

it A e

HRZEEEDRAEEE —REHAN
MELRR - BRR AT KA R ERM
it AR DA K 85 A5 TR B 1R 0 [ Ut 3 4 L X
FERMREEHEEE -

BEPEDERERE - R E A MK
VRN EREEERMINEREES IR
B AR B IR BE10%TEH M - 3% B K H2008
F1RATE & % - I @ A 1K2007512 A
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31.

32.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31. EZEBIE (%)
Deferred tax assets (continued) EEBEEE (&)
At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been 202012 A831H T EFRLE RN EEHR
recognised for withholding taxes that would be REAMKZENE QR B KRE LR
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject M (ABMTENTE) M E R A T80 5
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries RELEMIBBQOIFE B/ -EER A
established in Mainland China (2019: Nil). In the ZEMBAR T KA NA]ERK R
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that SIkBBEEF - R2020612A318  #
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in AERELEHRIBE RN N B R HH
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of BRAAIKENHBHHEERZESHAOR
temporary differences associated with investments A K #115,124,0007C (20195 : A R ¥
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred 92,488,0007T) ©
tax liabilities have not been recognised was
approximately RMB115,124,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: RMB92,488,000).
SHARE CAPITAL 32. |RA&
2020 2019
TECZF ey is
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE Tt NS R
Authorised: ERE
8,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each  8,000,000,000 i% & IX I (&
(2019: 8,000,000,000 shares of 0.0178 T iy Az £ (2019
HK$0.01 each) £ : 8,000,000,0000%
SR EE0.0178 T AR
1% 70,096 70,096
Issued and fully paid: BEETRHR:
405,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each  405,000,0000% & i H &
(2019: 405,000,000 shares of 0.018 T #y Az £ (2019
HK$0.01 each) 4 : 405,000,000/ &
N T {E0.0178 7T B9 iR
1% 3,391 3,391
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(i) Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents
the difference between capital injection and
the share capital paid by the Controlling

Shareholders.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents (1)
the difference between the consideration and
net assets acquired paid by the Controlling
Shareholders for the further acquisition of
non-controlling interests in subsidiaries; (2)
the difference between the consideration
received by the Controlling Shareholders and
the net assets disposed of for the partial
disposal of certain subsidiaries; and (3) the
difference between the consideration received
by the Controlling Shareholders and net
assets acquired under common control for the
acquisition of equity interests in subsidiaries.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RESERVES (continued)
(iii) Merger reserve

(iv)

The merger reserve of the Group represents
the capital contributions from the equity
holders of the subsidiaries. The addition
during the year represents (1) the injections
of additional paid-in capital by the equity
holders of the subsidiaries to the respective
companies; (2) the consideration paid by
the Controlling Shareholders for the further
acquisition of non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries; and (3) the consideration paid by
the Controlling Shareholders for repayment of
the consideration received in the progress of
Reorganisation. The deduction during the year
represents the consideration received by the
Controlling Shareholders for disposal of the
subsidiaries in the progress of the corporate
reorganisation of the Group in preparation for
the Listing (“Reorganisation”).

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and
the articles of association of the companies of
the Group, before distributing the net profit of
each year, companies of the Group registered
in the PRC are required to set aside 10% of
their statutory reserve net for the year after
offsetting any prior year's losses as determined
under relevant PRC accounting standards
to the statutory surplus reserve fund. When
the balance of this reserve reaches 50% of
each company’s share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve fund is non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation.

Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase
share capital, provided that the remaining
balance after the capitalisation is not less than
25% of the registered capital.

BA TR IR AR B =E

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

33. f# (&)
(iii) & Ot & 18

(iv)

AEENAHHEEERENBAR
REFAANLE - FREMEQ)
fHBARMBEERBEARABAR
BINEAE B A (2 AR
RE-—TRBHBARNERZR
AR E: R ERBEERS
EESABEPRIHNKENS
MHORE FAMNKBEERER
RAEESERLTETHNLE
EHTEADBRETHEKNE QA
i Y B B9 AL AE -

EE B

RBFBASR RANEEE TREH
HABERAR - BF2IRFENER
AREBETBEIMORFRIEIER
FEEFEAMREREBEEFNE
BR AEBRHESFEZIEFHGE
MI0%ZEZXEBBAES  BEEX
fEEEESERBIRANS0%DLLE
AEBESXEELIZFEMSG -
EERBRABETIADIK - FRIFE
EBR o

EMRBEPBUARNE TRABRT
RBERMEBENER T POREME
RH25% @ BB 0OE TE B ER W R )
AR DO R A -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

33. RESERVES (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to
record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the
subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than the RMB.

Shares held for share award scheme
On 30 August 2018, the Company announced
to adopt the share award scheme (the
“Scheme”) with objectives to recognise the
contribution by certain employees and give
incentives thereto in order to motivate them
for the continual operation and development
of the Group and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
8,218,000 shares were purchased by the
trustee from the market at an average price
of approximately HK$2.43 (equivalent to
RMB2.18) per share, with an aggregate
amount of HK$20,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB17,917,000). No shares were granted to
eligible employees pursuant to the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2020. At
the end of the reporting period, there were
8,218,000 shares held by the trustee.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors
may, from time to time, at its absolute
discretion, cause to be paid to the trustee
sums of money from the Company’s resources
for the purchase of shares to be held on trust
in accordance with the Scheme and the trust
deed. Such sums of money shall be applied
towards the purchase of the specific number
of shares from the open market according
to the written instructions of the Board of
Directors.
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33. f# (&)

(v)

(vi)

B RK B A
EREBHEEANTEREZEED
ERBARBUIINEENHEB QA
M BRRMEENELZRE -

RO RBTEFENRG

72018 8A30H © AR Al E M K
M—IERMDEBEE(TFED - %
EIMmEBEm A EE TEEMED
WERBREGETESEE LB
BRERBLERERAEH: RK
SIEEABARE—TERAEH o

H E209FNA3MH IEFE ¥
AAREHEREBRN243E T
(g RN ARB218T) R T 5 B
A8,218,000/% % 17 - 42 & % A
20,000,000 T(H 8 N A R &
17,917,0007T) ° 7 & £20205F12H
BNHIEFEERN - EROBERZE
EIRTEERER - RBEK -
8,218,000k Rt B X FEARFB

REZE EFg0MAERA
BEMBEAARRERASZTEA
SNRBEABRBARD - BAH
B o # RAR 3% 5T 8 RE /B A
EREAFE ZFREBE/RIE
EXeEEETEARKAATS
BERETHEMNRD -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION 34. K50t
(a) The step acquisition of Bengbu Zhi (@) "HRBUBEHETEGYESR

Xin Property Co., Ltd. R 2 =]
On 30 June 2020, the Group acquired 720206 6A30H ° A& B B4t R
a further 8% interest in Bengbu Zhi Xin RAEmRABHARAERAGE—F
Property Co., Ltd. (Bengbu Zhi Xin) from WHESETEFWEBR QG (H
Beijing Aozhong Kunlun Business Consulting BEFEIS%HER HEERFERSE
Co., Ltd. Bengbu Zhi Xin is engaged in REMEEERSE - WENEER
property management services. The purchase REUREEAXZNN  HPARK
consideration for the acquisition was in the 741,0007T 7A2020F 4 A29H X fF »

form of cash with RMB741,000 paid on 29

April 2020.

RWERARNFREEAI#REE
MEBEBEAFEWT:

The fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Bengbu Zhi Xin as at the date of

acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
U EEE
BRHOATE
Note RMB’000
o &F AR T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREZE 13 673
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEY 9,104
Inventories BE 52
Trade receivables B 5 WA 8,661
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT R IE R B Ath fE U
FRIB 2,429
Trade payables 2 5N RIA (1,851)
Other payables and accruals H b &~ 3R R AT
& A (6,487)
Tax payable JE < B 18 (414)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value &2 FEFE T #
R & EFE 12,167
Non-controlling interests FEPE R (5,504)
Fair value of investment previously ZANEARREED
classified as investment in Joint ERENRERT
Venture (=l (5,922)
Satisfied by cash IR & AT 741
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

34. %56 (®)

(a) The step acquisition of Bengbu Zhi (@) "RBUBEHETEGYESR
Xin Property Co., Ltd. (continued) PR TA (&)
The Group incurred transaction costs of AEERRERBEFEEERS
RMB46,000 for this acquisition. These XA A R #46,0007T c ZER 5K
transaction costs have been expensed and AEXZHIFAGZEBRR 21T
are included in administrative expenses in the FXXA o
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The fair values of the trade receivables RIS BB E 5 e YR8 K& H A
and other receivables as at the date of R REBEBHNRFEINOR/AR
acquisition amounted to RMB8,661,000 and #8,661,000T & A R #2,248,000
RMB2,248,000, respectively. They are equal to T RTFEEREGAERE -
its gross contractual amounts.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the ERAWE —BENBARMRKRE R
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: ENMWT:
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash consideration paid EXNBRERE (741)
Cash and bank balances acquired EWERE RRITE S 9,104

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREEHMGEHRERE

included in cash flow from investing

MBEERASFEDRA

activities p =L 8,363

Transaction cost of the acquisition included FFARBELEEFHNIR SR
in cash flows from operating activities ENKRERZNAK (46)
8,317
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

The step acquisition of Bengbu Zhi
Xin Property Co., Ltd. (continued)

Since the acquisition, Bengbu Zhi Xin
contributed RMB16,498,000 to the
Group’s revenue and RMB1,148,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the
beginning of the year, the revenue from Group
and the profit of the Group during the year
ended would have been RMB779,114,000 and
RMB38,225,000, respectively.

The acquisition of Hong Xin
Environmental Group Co., Ltd.

On 31 January 2020, the Group acquired
a 51% interest in Hong Xin Environmental
Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries ("Hong Xin
Group”) from Shanghai Honghui Enterprise
Management Consulting Partnership Limited
Partnership. Hong Xin Group is engaged in
the provision of urban sanitary services. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was
in the form of cash, with RMB20,000,000
paid on 11 November 2019, RMB3,000,000
paid on 27 November 2018, RMB7,000,000
paid on 17 December 2018, RMB31,800,000
paid on 6 January 2020 and RMB30,000,000
paid on 15 January 2020. The contingent
consideration arrangement entitles the Group
to have the receivable from the former owners
of Hong Xin Environmental Group Co., Ltd,
if they are unable to achieve their targets
of adjusted profit of 2019 to 2020. Based
on the assessment by the management, the
adjusted profit targets will more than likely to
achieve. Thus, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be
Nil at 31 December 2020.

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

34. £ 5 6F (&)

(a)

(b)

TRBEWEBEHEETEGYES
BRA TR (&)

BUREBUAKR: EEEEDHEAK
%= @B 8 Bt & £2020F128318 1
FEHRZEEHENARE
16,498,0007t & A K #1,148,000
ik

WeaEHRENHEE AEEF
Ak EREFMEIRNBARR
779,114,0007T & A K #38,225,000
7TE o

WBAMRREEETR DT

7202018318 A& BB L85,
ECXERAANGBEEERSE
B)WEMIREEEBR AR ([
REBEDS1%EZ - AMMEERSE
RERBEHEBTRRE - WEXN
BEREUNRAFEAZN  EPA
R #20,000,0007T #2019F11A N
B AR%3,000,0005C 742018
F1MA278 4 - A R #7,000,000
TCHR2018FNATTE XM AR
31,800,0007T 720201868 X fit
N A R #30,000,0007T 7202041
A5ESf - AARAREBELHFEARE
EERELMBREEEER QA
B AT HE A A R20194F E 20204 Kk 4%
ERELAZENBEERRKERE
FEMNERRE EREEEN
T AR ERCHARTERE o
& Itk - R2020F12 A318 » JE Yk sk
RARENAFEBTAE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34. £K S8 (®)
(b) The acquisition of Hong Xin (b) WEBAMREEBEER 2 T
Environmental Group Co., Ltd. (#&)
(continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and REEBEBHOAMEBARINEERE
liabilities of Hong Xin Group as at the date of BAFEBMAT:

acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
U =g
BROATLHE
Notes RMB’000
H iF AR® TR
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMEREZE 13 28,959
Right-of-use assets EREEE 4,225
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREFEEYD 7,534
Intangible assets BEEE 16 54,000
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 2,829
Deferred tax assets BEEBIEEE 213
Trade receivables B 5 W RIA 48,648
Prepayments and other receivables TE TR IE K B i FE W
KIA 53,363
Other payables and accruals H b e~ R R A
=gt (22,269)
Interest-bearing bank loans and other FTERIT R A M fE K
borrowings (26,871)
Lease liabilities HEBE (4,533)
Tax payable &S B 18 (3.384)
Deferred tax liabilities B IR A& (13,500)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value 1% A F{E &+ Z &9 7] 5

AEEFE 129,214
Non-controlling interests FEVE R HE = (63,315)
Goodwill on acquisition W B R g B 15 25,901
Satisfied by cash AR & 91,800
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(b) The acquisition of Hong Xin

Environmental Group Co., Ltd.
(continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables
and other receivables as at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB48,648,000 and
RMB50,720,000, respectively. They are equal
to their gross contractual amounts.

Goodwill is primarily attributable to the
operating synergies and other benefits

expected to be derived from the acquisition.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

34. £ 5 6F (&)
(b) WERLBEEEAR D T

(43
\%ﬁ/

KU B HI R B 5 e KR R K At
BWHENAFEINOBARE
48,648,0007T & A K #50,720,000
L AFEFEREAGNAE -

EEIERBAENAKBES
B A 2 155 R 2 B R 4t 25

ERWRE -—RNBARNRER

acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: ENMBT:
RMB’000
AR T
Cash consideration paid EXHRENRE (91,800)
Other non-current assets HiERBDEE 30,000
Cash and bank balances acquired BB RE RRITE S 7,534
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AR BEBFRESIRERE
included in cash flows from investing mRekReEEYWRLD
activities ==t (54,266)
Transaction cost of the acquisition included EFTAKRBEZZHHIE SR
in cash flows from operating activities ENRBRZHK A (300)
(54,566)

Since the acquisition, Hong Xin Environmental
Group Co., Ltd. contributed RMB249,712,000
to the Group’s revenue and RMB20,097,000 to
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the
beginning of the year, the revenue of Group
and the profit of the Group during the year
would have been RMB785,449,000 and
RMB37,473,000, respectively.

BWEBUER AMMEBEREEBEEAR
~AElD Rl M A S E B B £2020
FRANBLEFENKRE RE &
A R #249,712,0007T & A R ¥
20,097,0007T °

WeaEHRENEE AEEF
A REMEIHIBARE
785,449,0007T & A R# 37,473,000
7T|: o

TR EERARAR 42020255



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

35. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 35. HE—EKH B QA
2020
—E-EF
Notes RMB’000
H iF AR® TR
Net assets disposed of: FTHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BEREE 1,286
Cash and bank balances Re RRITEH 28,374
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 4,880
Prepayments and other receivables FE A FRIE K B A Uk
IR 12,179
Trade payables B S EMNNRIA (3,880)
Accruals and other payables JEETE A & H h FE S
IR (31,967)
Tax payable JE < B 18 (471)
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR HE A (5,097)
5,304
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHEBARE
B 6 (46)
Satisfied by cash AR & 2 5,258
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash HE—HWBRARMPRAERREESE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary BYZRAFEITWOT
is as follows:
Cash consideration ReERE 5,258
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHENRE RRITER (28,374)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in H& — B AR FRE S K
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReFEWz2RHFHE (23,116)

256 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. REBHERERMT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB7,529,000 (2019: RMB Nil) and
RMB7,529,000 (2019: RMB Nil), respectively,

in respect of lease arrangements for plant and

(a) FEFRERS
FR ABELZXBENRERH
mME ASENFERAREEREE
BEMNIERSEMIIABARE
7,529,0007C (20194 : &) & A R ¥&
7,529,0007C (20194 : ) -

equipment.
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) METHELENEBEE
financing activities
2020 20204
Interest-
bearing
bank loans
and other
borrowings Lease
and interest liabilities
FERTRHE
o & X & Fl B HEaE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AR¥TxR
At 1 January 2020 2020F1 A 1H 61,515 —
Changes from financing cash flows Bl & IR & 7 & & & 11,684 (4,055)
New leases FHE 7,529
Interest expense FERAX — 433
Covid-19-related rent concessions PHAGTHHIERS
from lessors ZIEHBAHEE R — (385)
Reassessment and revision of lease 0 Hi & 1 &F s M & 5]
terms — (493)
Increase arising from acquisition of W B B B A &) 35 A0
subsidiaries 26,871 4,533
At 31 December 2020 72020412 4318 100,070 7,562
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

36. RERERBRWE(E)

(b) REZBHELENEBERE (&)

2019 20194
Interest-
bearing bank
loans and
interest
FHEERTT
EREAE
RMB'000
AR% T
At 1 January 2019 201941 H1H 20,000
Changes from financing cash flows RER&RE & 39,839
Interest expense FERAX 1,676
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 61,515

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in

(c) HERSRHAHE
RenEREENEERZRL

the statement of cash flows is as follows: MEWT
2020 2019
—EC-oEE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE Tt N R
Within operating activities KETEEBNR 1,398 2,458
Within financing activities BEEEN 3,622 —
5,020 2,458

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
had no significant contingent liabilities.

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the
Group's other borrowings are included in notes 13,
22 and 30 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

39. COMMITMENTS 39. &
The Group had the following capital commitments RB|ER REBEBUTEARFAE:

at the end of the reporting period:

2020 2019
Pyl ==
RMB’000 RMB'000
retTr I RRE

Contracted, but not provided for: DT 4B KRB
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —EHE AR — 61,800
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 0. BB IR S

(@) Particulars of the related parties which entered (a) AEBEHEBEBRAITLEARZIN
into material transactions with the Group are HEAT:
as follows:
Name Relationship Referred to as
=g BR f& 18

EBHEEBEREBRAR  Controlled by the Controlling  Shanghai Gaoze
Shareholders

FH 4% AR A% 3R 12 FERE
ARMBRMYMEBERABEMRAG Associate Nanjing Songzhu

B MR
MEHIIMEEEARAF  Joint venture Hunan Pu Jiang

BEMDE MEEIT
FBREMERR AR Associate Shanghai Qiang Sheng

B EEeAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BB AR B (8)
(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties, other than by HEBRIFANRXZERTBHRERE
those already disclosed elsewhere in the foit TR EERINAT -

financial statements are as follows:

2020 2019

—z-zs EEEPES

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
e =T R

Property management MEEBRBERA
service income
Shanghai Gaoze: FEREE: (i) 310 -
Nanjing Songzhu R AT (i) 707 —
Hunan Puliang E R IT ) 758 =
Shanghai Gaoze: EBEE:
Cash advances HE B (i) — (765)
Interest income A B U A (ii) 214 —
(i) The services provided to related parties were made (i) BEBAFRENRE DBREREHLR
according to the published prices and conditions SEFZEEFPHEAMERRIEMHE
offered to the major customers of the Group. i e
(i)~ The amount due from Shanghai Gaoze is unsecured (i) MERESHEREDERR FHE
and with an interest rate of 4.78%, and it has no B4.78% K B E TE BN -

fixed payment terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(¢) Due from related parties:

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

40. BB E R Z (&)

(0)

Nanjing Songzhu R
Hunan Puliang WEE T
Shanghai Gaoze EBmE

FE U R B 77 500R
2020 2019
- b5l T OLF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB T N R
86 —
63 —
2,989 2,465

The carrying amounts of RMB310,000,
RMB85,000 and RMB63,000 from Shanghai
Gaoze, Nanjing Songzhu and Hunan Pujiang
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
payment terms.

The carrying amounts of RMB2,465,000 due
from Shanghai Gaoze is unsecured and with a
fixed interest rate and has no fixed payment
terms.
(d) Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group:

REMED B AK®310,000T &
A R #85,000 & A R#63,0007T
WEW EBHZE - mRRAMT KRS
MBELIRELNEER 28 KE
EEEHE o

8 m B A K #2,465,0007T &Y JE U

EBHmERBRIDEERN  REE
MERGFEREETEERS -

AEBTEEEASFHH:

2020 2019

3l T L F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE Tt N

Short term employee benefits % H R B8 A 2,578 2,654

Post-employment benefits RINEREF 137 323
Total compensation paid to key ENETEEEABEFH M

management personnel R 2,715 2,977

Further details of directors’ and the chief
executive’s emoluments are included in note 8
to the financial statements.

EZEmATBRASBNME 0 E—
THBHENYHEREMES -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 4. REFE2EMIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBEHRR SENEeRITANKEEB
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting w
period are as follows:
2020 2020
Financial assets TREE

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
at fair value  through other
through profit comprehensive
or loss income
BAYE
BAYE FAHMZ
FTABEN [y
Mandatorily Financial assets
Designated as Equity at amortised
such investments cost Total
REBHRX
TENEHE
BHEETE BERE EE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR

Equity investments at fair R AFEFAR
value through other it 2 I 55 1

comprehensive income R A% & — 8,796 — 8,796
Trade receivables BHEWHIE — — 143,031 143,031
Financial assets included  FTATBRFIER

in prepayments and H A fE U 50R

other receivables MEBEE — — 55,692 55,692
Financial assets included 3T A E {1 3E7 5

in other non-current BENERE

assets I3 — — 36,470 36,470
Restricted bank balances 2[R # R 174 8 — — 12,525 12,525

Financial assets at fair BRRATFEFAR
value through profitor ~ HMERMEE

loss 30,312 — — 30,312
Cash and cash equivalents R & KR &

ZEY — - 126,506 126,506

30,312 8,796 374,224 413,332

262 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)
2020 (continued)

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
41. REBEE SR IA(H)

20204 (#%)

Financial liabilities TRLBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
= 8 R A st
ENSRERS
RMB’‘000
AR T
Trade payables S ENRIE 107,632
Financial liabilities included in other FFAEMENRIBEREFTERD
payables and accruals T EL B & 43,432
Lease liabilities ME&aE 7,562

Interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings

FRRTT M H A 5 5K
100,070

258,696
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 4. ZEEE2EMIA(E)
CATEGORY (continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBERR SENEeRITANKEEB
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting m
period are as follows:
2019 20194
Financial assets TREE

Financial assets

at fair value
through other
comprehensive

income
BOTE
STAEM 2 E K
HNEREE
Financial assets
Equity at amortised
investments cost Total
BBEKATE
RAKE MemEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARETT

Equity investments at fair value ~ RAFEFAEMZER

through other comprehensive HARAREE

income 6,290 — 6,290
Trade receivables BHEWHE — 100,183 100,183
Financial assets included in STABNRIE KA U

prepayments and other HENESREE

receivables — 37,271 37,271
Restricted bank balances B8 5188 17 4 8% = 14,113 14,113
Wealth management products VEEBRER = 5,000 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEEY — 143,557 143,557

6,290 300,124 306,414
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)
2019 (continued)

42.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
41. REEE SR IA(H)

20194 (#&)

Financial liabilities cRmaE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R SH K AN AT
ENERMEE
RMB'000
ARETFTT
Trade payables 5 ENRIE 74,923

Financial liabilities included in other FFAEMBENREBEREGTERDN
payables and accruals TRAERA 46,863
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 61,515
183,301

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values

2. SMITANAFERLIFESER

ERRENHRSRRESEY  ER

of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank BlR1THEESR MEEEREm BHEW
balances, wealth management products, trade HIE BHEMNRIE FFABEMNKIE R

receivables, trade payables, financial assets included
in prepayments and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank loans

approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Hib BRKBENESREE  sTAEME
NREREFERNEREE HESR
BERAERTERNRFEEELREE
BE TEARZEIAREHANRES -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 42. TR TEAENAFERAFEER

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the
finance manager is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial
officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which
represent wealth management products issued by
banks in Mainland China. The Group has estimated
the fair value of these unlisted investments by using
a discounted cash flow valuation model based on
the market interest rates of instruments with similar
terms and risks.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
management has estimated the potential effect of
using reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to
the valuation model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable
inputs to the valuation of financial instruments
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at

31 December 2020 and 2019:

Valuation
technique

il fB £ 1

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
2. SRTEN A AFLERAFESR

(#&)

Significant

T & A 20204 &2019412A318 & @t
TAFBEZEATBERG AHRIKEER
StBRESTOBE:

Sensitivity of

unobservable input fair value to the

(level 3)
BERFITEHRE
MARB(E=ZH)

input
REEH@A
BEZHRE

Equity investments at Valuation multiples
fair value through
other comprehensive
income

BEAVEAAREMEZT FESH
W s AR B

Average EV/EBITDA
multiple of peers

GERSS
EV/EBITDATS &

5% (2019: 5%)
increase/ decrease in
multiple would result
in increase/ decrease
in fair value by
RMB340,000 (2019:
RMB290,000)

B8 T T ¥%5%
(20194 : 5%)
BN FEEM
B A R #340,000
7T (20194 :

A R #290,0007T)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 2. R ITENAFERAFEEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (%)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy NFEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRIFAEEERITAN A FETE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial E&:
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value: BRATEFENEE:
As at 31 December 2020 72020512 H31H

Fair value measurement using
EATIREETATENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RERTSE EATEE EAFTEE

ZHBE GABE GaABE
(F-%) (F=R) (B=R) At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTRT AR®TR AR¥TxR

Equity investments designated 1§ E R A FEFAE
at fair value through other 2 B A B R

comprehensive income K& 2,244 — 6,552 8,796

Financial assets at fair value ~ KA FEHARBE S
through profit or loss BREE — — 30,312 30,312
2,244 — 36,864 39,108
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 2. ERMIENAFERLATFESER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (#8)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEER (8)
As at 31 December 2019 E(‘2019¢12)5131 EI

Fair value measurement using

FRATHZEETATLENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WERMS  EAUBE EANAEE
2 fE BWABE WABE

(F—H) (F=&) (B=4&) it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT ARBTT AREBT:R

Equity investments designated 15 & iR A FEFAE
at fair value through other i 2 E S R
comprehensive income RE — — 6,290 6,290

The movements in fair value measurements within FR - FELHANNAFEIFEEEOT
Level 3 during the year are as follows:

2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T NG R

Equity investments at fair value through A FEFA M2 E

other comprehensive income WK IRAEKE
At 1 January ®1A18 6,290 700
Total losses recognised in other B 2 T N A T SR A

comprehensive income 518 4858 (2,107) =
Purchases BE 4,613 5,590
At 31 December M12A318 8,796 6,290
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. B EREERBEERBUER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and bank balances, bank loans and other
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
As the Group has no bank loans with floating
interest rate, there is no interest risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and nearly all transactions are conducted
in RMB. As nearly all of the Group’s assets and
liabilities were denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries
of the Company in Mainland China were not
subject to significant foreign currency risk. As at 31
December 2020, the Group's assets and liabilities
denominated in HKD were mainly held by the
Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China which had HKD as their
functional currency, and the Group did not have
material foreign currency transactions in Mainland
China during the year.
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AEESHMIAEENTERBRAIE
B - FERBERABDESRR -EF
ERNTHEEESHERBRABUER
BT o

# & @ B
A SR B T B RT R - MR R
ERE R o

Hh BE = Bz
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant. For transactions that are
not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk
for the financial guarantee contracts.

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
. RREEEERBEER(E)

=8 &R
ZIS%%@{%B@Z%%EI%{ BREMNE=ZT
XS BREARENREK  MARZE

A1ﬂﬁﬁ§%m§ﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬂﬁﬁ
RERF - W AEEERHEERE
Wiger  MAKRBRERARITERX °
A IFABBERLEENNEEBAED
RHME EARGEEEZIEREH]
EBERT  AEEBTERHEEEKRR -

BB LR K F KRR

T%%ZﬁlJEA12H31E$E%F$EI{E,\Bz
R(ETEERBHEN KRIEEFTEE
X AN 3 45 ] B3 Efﬂéﬁﬂ AlERIER)

E’JFTE%&ET 2 ERR - A REFER
|§ \A—Ec

iﬁlJ@%Eﬁ,%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ&%
BERAGHEERR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

As at 31 December 2020

43. T BEREERERERRBEE)

B By £ PR KRR (&)

72020512 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
NREARS
EEFE 2HRLEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1E & EPLE L] BlnE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR¥Tn ARETn AR%Tn AR%Trn
Trade receivables* B 7MW R — - — 141,615 141,615
Financial assets included in ABRFERE
prepayments and other ERRENERE
receivables I3
— Normal** — & 55,692 — — — 55,692
Financial assets included in other  stAEBERHEE
non-current assets NeREE
— Normal** —EE* 36,470 — - - 36,470
Restricted bank balances ZREBTES
— Not yet past due — HREH 12,525 - — — 12,525
Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEN
— Not yet past due —HABH 126,506 - - - 126,506
Financial assets at fair value BATEGFARRE
through profit or loss eREE
— Not yet past due —HARBH 30,312 - — — 30,312
261,505 - - 141,615 403,120
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. R EKREEEERBEX(H)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging JEL B b PR R SR P& B (48)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121 AR
FEFE rHEREEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1RE FRE 3R Blh % @it

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETTL ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR

Trade receivables* EHENHIE — - - 100,183 100,183
Financial assets included in AABNRERE

prepayments and other ERRENERE

receivables E

— Normal** — &+ 37,271 — — — 37,271
Restricted bank balances RBHRITER

— Not yet past due — E R 14,113 — - - 14,113
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEN

— Not yet past due —HRBH 143,557 - - - 143,557
Wealth management products HEERER

— Not yet past due — AR H 5,000 — — - 5,000

199,941 — — 100,183 300,124

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the g RAEBEBREXRAGLENE S E KK
simplified approach for impairment, information based on EME ERBEEESHNERNTHK
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the financial HwEME22HEE -
statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in o HFAERMNRE EMERREREMEE
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is NeREENEELEZRHMABHAERE
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due BEXRKRPASREEBS VIR ERRKXIESLM
and there is no information indicating that the financial WERTHRBRIEE] - T8 - ¢WEEMN
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial FEEEEHR B[R]

recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

43.

BHEEREEBEERBEE)

mm:“

B Bz b PR & K B BR

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s ERASEESRKRAREBEFMELENEE
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables R HE—FEEIE - EHBEREM
are disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements. FE22H R o

Since the Group trades only with recognised and HRASEBEHERAERE Eﬂ-ﬁ’]%

creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral.
managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical
region and by industry sector. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group's trade
receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors
and industries.

Concentrations of credit risk are

=R MABBHERENR -
RRETHERF/HFFRRILE KRR
TENHERE - ARNAEEE ZRIR
BENEPEREZOMN AR D BRITE
AEBEERBRNETREELMEE -

I:l/\

Liquidity risk REBESRRE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of AEEFAKEE RS ESFEITA
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. ERAEESRRAER liI:I/\E.%J%

This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and
other interest-bearing loans.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the end of each reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is
as follows:

B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
43. K RKREEEERKE(H)
REBESRA (8)

AEENESRABREHREPRERA
MARBBENRAENTHBERAT

As at 31 December 2020

®2020512A31H
On Less than 3to 1to
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
=2

RER SPR=@A +=@EA -EIf @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TR AR%®Tn AR%®Tn AR¥Tn

Lease liabilities MEAE — 1,269 3,069 4,421 8,759
Interest-bearing bank loans ~ FTERTEFRE

and other borrowings AEE — 42,239 56,179 3,164 101,582

Trade payables U GES 99,563 4,761 1,151 2,157 107,632
Financial liabilities included in & A E s FE {4 28
other payables and accruals R EFERH S

BAR 43,432 - - — 43,432

142,995 48,269 60,399 9,742 261,405

As at 31 December 2019
72019512318
Less than 3to0 1to
On demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
=%

®EX SPR=@AR +=Z@A —Z1fF Bt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBETE AR®TR AR®TRT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank loans HEBITER = 766 62,678 = 63,444

Trade payables BHENFIE 68,781 6,142 — . 74,923

Financial liabilities included in 5t A E b JE 4 3078 &
other payables and accruals Bt ERAMELEE
& 46,863 — — — 46,863
115,644 6,908 62,678 — 185,230
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. B EAREEREERBER#E)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group
is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. Y BEREERERRBE(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued) BEARERE (8)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, AEEFRAERAGBL R(ANAERR
which is total debt divided by total equity. Total NREREEER  BEKBENA
debt includes interest-bearing bank loans. Capital RITER - EREAEER -

represents total equity.

2020 2019
—z-zs EEEEPES
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR% T [N

Interest-bearing bank loans and other 5+ B R 17 & H b (&%

borrowings 100,070 61,515
Total debt BED 100,070 61,515
Total equity A 333,681 239,566
Gearing ratio EXRBELE 30.0% 25.7%

44, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 44. SR EHHEEH

Subsequent to 31 December 2020 and up to 2020612 A3MBZ B REBERRERS -
the date of this report, there was no material ARAF K ANEEHBES KNHEBEE -
subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by

the Group.

SETHREERARAR F82020277



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR AL

31 December 2020 202012 A31H

OF THE COMPANY

45, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 45. X 7] B
ZN

Information about the statement of financial

position of the Company at the end of the reporting N

period is as follows:

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NG R
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RN—EEBARMIKE 59,535 59,535
Equity investment designated at fair EEEAFEGTAEAMm
value through other comprehensive PEHKZEHREEE
income 2,244 —
Total non-current assets ERBHEELE 61,779 59,535
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JE W B /B~ B 3R 66,531 69,616
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTRRIE - H o fE IR IE
other assets N E & E 18,311 18,660
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMREeZEEY 3,447 18,282
Total current assets mEEERE 88,289 106,558
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Amount due to a subsidiary AN ENGIE ¢ 1,230 1,272
Interest-bearing bank loans FRIBITER — 4,515
Total current liabilities mEAaERE 1,230 5,787
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEEE 87,059 100,771
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 148,838 160,306
Net assets BEFE 148,838 160,306
EQUITY R
Share capital % 7 3,391 3,391
Reserves (note) (B 3E) 145,447 156,915
Total equity B 148,838 160,306
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE IR AR B EE

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H

45, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 45. R F) B RO &k (8)

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Bt 5 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARBREEHADT
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
Exchange through other
fluctuation Accumulated comprehensive
Share premium reserve losses income Total
BAFETA
Hih2mBEM
SREEMN
R#7EE EXRRBDHE BitER AVERRE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARETTT ARETT ARETL
Balance at 1 January 2019 201951 A1H
EoFe 173,785 3,337 (13,036) - 164,086
Final 2018 dividend declared B EIK2018F
RER S (2,903) — — — (2,903)
Interim 2019 dividend declared B Zk2019%
HERA — — (4,613) — (4,613)
Total comprehensive loss for the FR 2T B A
year — 345 — — 345
At 31 December 2019 and 201912 A31R
1 January 2020 R2020%1818 170,882 3,682 (17,649) = 156,915
Final 2019 dividend declared EEIR2019F
RERE
Interim 2020 dividend declared £ E%2020%F
HHKRA (3,600) — — - (3,600)
Total comprehensive loss for the 4 A2 B 518 44
year — — (2,209) (2,369) (4,578)
Exchange difference on HEBIINER
translation of foreign MEREZR
operations — (3,290) — — (3,290)
At 31 December 2020 20205 12A31R 167,282 392 (19,858) (2,369) 145,447

46. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2021.

46. H#itE M B W R

B 78 3 3k M2021F3A30R = £ & it
AN R T o
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EEMEEE

OPERATING RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“—EZZF ey —E-N\E ZE—+tF& ZE-RE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INGL-ESA AR%Tr ARETT ARETFR AR®TrR
Revenue g % 763,808 481,530 392,258 363,303 309,268
Gross Profit eSS 117,247 74,171 67,383 66,869 60,643
Profit for the year £ R A 36,968 20,481 26,240 36,167 30,536
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
As at 31 December
R12831H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
iyt 38 T —NF —E-N\FE ZE—+tF ZE—RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
LB AXETir AREFTRT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 277,844 147,232 64,889 62,442 52,900
Current assets RBEE 378,385 311,375 322,475 306,683 205,944
Total assets EEHE 656,229 458,607 387,364 369,125 258,844
Non-current liabilities  JEREN B & 19,356 = = == ==
Current liabilities mEaE 303,192 219,041 147,621 153,622 198,552
Total liabilities BEHAE 322,548 219,041 147,621 153,622 198,552
Net current assets REBEEFE 75,193 92,334 174,854 153,061 7,392
Total assets less BEEBAER
current liabilities RBAE 353,037 239,566 239,743 215,503 60,292
Net assets EEFRE 333,681 239,566 239,743 215,503 60,292
Capital and reserves BAK 5
Share capital RA 3,391 3,391 3,391 3,349 =
Reserves i 245,061 224,842 227,698 206,905 56,271
248,452 228,233 231,089 210,254 56,271
Non-controlling RS
interests 85,229 11,333 8,654 5,249 4,021
Total equity HER 333,681 239,566 239,743 215,503 60,292
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